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All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior 
to the meeting. 

 

ATTENTION:  This will be a virtual meeting of the Board of Directors pursuant 

 to Assembly Bill 361 issued by the Governor of the State of California. 
There will not be a public location for participating in this meeting, but any interested member of the public  

can participate telephonically by utilizing the dial-in information printed on this agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note:  In the event of technical difficulties during the meeting, the District Secretary will adjourn the 
meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be rescheduled for a future special meeting which shall be 

open to the public and noticed pursuant to the Brown Act. 
 

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 
November 16, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 

Location: Virtual Meeting 
Novato, California 

   
 

Video Zoom Method 

 
 CLICK ON LINK BELOW:     SIGN IN TO ZOOM: 

 

 Go to:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82191971947 OR  Meeting ID:  821 9197 1947 
 
 Password: 466521      Password:  466521 

Call in Method: 
 
Dial:   +1 669 900 9128 
   +1 253 215 8782 
   +1 346 248 7799 
   +1 301 715 8592 
   +1 312 626 6799 
   +1 646 558 8656 
 
   Meeting ID: 821 9197 1947# 
 
   Participant ID:  # 
 
   Password: 466521# 
 

For clarity of discussion, the Public is requested to MUTE except: 
1. During Open Time for public expression item. 

2. Public comment period on agenda items. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82191971947
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All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 
 

Est. 

Time Item Subject 
6:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  PRESENTATION BY SCWA ON REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY RESILIENCY STUDY 

 2.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, November 2, 2021 

 3.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 4.  OPEN TIME: (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 5.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

 6.  MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT 

 7.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

  CONSENT CALENDAR 

The General Manager has reviewed the following items.  To his knowledge, there is no 
opposition to the action.  The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as 
recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at 
the request of any person. 

 8.  Consent - Approve:  Re-Authorizing Meetings by Teleconference of Legislative Bodies of  
     North Marin Water District                                                                             Resolution 

  ACTION CALENDAR 

 9.  Approve: Stafford Lake Backfeeding – 2022 Water Year 

 10.  Approve: Consulting Services Agreement for Drought Surcharge Study with  
     Hildebrand Consulting 

 11.  Approve: Consulting Services Agreements with West Yost Associates, GHD and  
     EKI  Environment & Water 

  INFORMATION ITEMS 

 12.  Kastania Pump Station Rehabilitation Project, including the Draft 2021 Kastania Pump Station  
     Transfer Agreement and the Draft 2021 Amended and Restated Interconnection 
     Agreement Between North Marin Water District and Marin Municipal Water District 

 13.  FY 2021/22 First Quarter Progress Report – Water Conservation 

 14.  FY 2019 through FY 2021 Stafford Dam Activities Report 

 15.  Cyber Security Evaluation and Plan Update 

 16.  North Bay Water Reuse Authority Board Meeting – September 27, 2021 

 17.  NBWA Meeting – November 5, 2021  

 18.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Disbursements – Dated November 4, 2021 
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All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 

Est. 

Time Item Subject 

Disbursements – Dated November 11, 2021 
Point Reyes Light -Salinity Notice – November 4, 2021 
Point Reyes Light - Salinity Notice – November 11, 2021 
Marin IJ – NMWD AD No. 1 -Did you know? – November 9, 2021 
Marin IJ – NMWD AD No. 2 -Did you know? – November 12, 2021 
 

  
News Articles: 
Marin IJ – Marin County Drought Tracker - October 30, 2021 
Marin IJ – Marin County Drought Tracker - November 6, 2021 
Marin IJ – Recent rains bring drought relief 
Marin IJ – Upgrade Sonoma wells could help Marin supply – COPING WITH DROUGHTS 
Marin IJ – Appeal fails in battle on well – NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
Marin IJ – Storms hike water supply, but conservation still urged 
 

  
Social Media Posts: 
NMWD Web and Social Media Report – October 2021 
 

 19.  
CLOSED SESSION: In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957 

  for Public Employee Performance Evaluation (One), Title: General Manager 

8:30 p.m. 20.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Item #1

To:

From:

Subject:

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Man

Regional Water Supply Resili
t:\gm\bod misc 2021\regionâl wâtor supply res¡l¡ency

MEMORANDUM

dy Presentation
study presentation memo 11.12.2021.doc

November 12,2021

ln October, 2020 the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) approved a water contractor

funded $600,000 Regional Water Supply Resiliency Study, The objective of the Study is to develop

a regionalwater supply decision support tool that can be used to evaluate the impacts from short-

and long{erm water shortages (such as seismic and drought events) and develop operational

strategies and water supply capital projects to improve the region's water supply resiliency. The

decision support tool is a planning-level model framework that considers the collective built

infrastructure, water supplies, and operations of SCWA and its water contractors. lt is anticipated

that the Study will identify projects that SCWA and its water contractors could implement and also

pursue grant funding.

This multi-year Study is being performed by Jacobs Engineering Group (Jacobs) and is

scheduled to be complete by Summer 2022. Due to the record two-year (2020 - 2021) drought,

Jacobs was requested to accelerate their work to focus on identifying potential near term drought

resiliency projects that could be implemented this Fall to provide more water supply given the low

storage levels in Lake Sonoma and uncertainty of rainfall this winter. Jay Jasperse, SCWA Chief

Engineer will provide a presentation on the work performed to-date by Jacobs and discuss the

various immediate drought management projects that are undenaray including: (1) Santa Rosa Plain

Water Supply Resiliency Project, (2) Capturing naturalflows in the Russian River and (3) Forecast

lnformed Reservoir Operation for Lake Sonoma.

A copy of Mr. Jasperse presentation is provided as Attachment 1. ln addition, a related

Marin lJ article entitled "Upgraded Sonoma Wells Could Help Marin Supply" is included in the board

packet under Miscellaneous.
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*Please note:  This item has been updated to reflect the most current information. 



Gomplex lnter-Gon nected System

Son. Water system serves as backbone of water supply
for Sonoma and Marin counties

Retail providers have growing local supplies and
demands

Systems are connected, but only loosely integrated ...
especially in times of shortage

Multiple individual, specific models
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Sonoma Water Resiliency StudY

iliencv Studv seeks to:
lD key factors impacting regional water supply resiliency,
evaluate the current levels of resiliency without
j u risd ictional constraints,
develop decision support framework model & process

lD opportunities to improve regional resilience in the future

First of a kincl look at nteorated Reqional Svstemthe I

Russian River & Potter Valley Project (Eel River)
Sonoma Water "backbone" sYstem
9 retail customer systems/ & 6 groundwater basins
local supplies & recycled water
multiple risk drivers

@Jacobs 2019
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Resiliency Study Project Overview

6 -9 months 18 months 24 months
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Work P[an for Phase 2 Outlines Tasks Due to Drought: Elected to fast-track
drought scenarios ahead of other
shortage scenarios (e.9., seismic)

Preparing scenarios, metrics, and DSM

deve[opment

Evatuating baseline leveI of resil'ience

Developing and evatuating adaptation
strategies to improve resitience

ffi

ffi
Report preparation, stakehotder
engagement, and project management



Decision Support Modet

r Model that lntegrates 3 major systeffis,
. Russian River and Potter Valley Project
. Sonoma Transmission System
. Retail Customer Systems

r Main Modet lnputs
. Reservoir and River flows
. Member agency demands
. Maximum Member Agency [oca[ supplies available

r Model rules delivers supplies to member
agencies

. Rules decide priority of supplies used by member
agencies

æ?

Tran issioh^

Retail Customer
systems, MMWD Þ

and North Marin
Surface Water
Reservoirs



Model. Val.idation Assu m ptions

r Member Agencies groundwater, recycled water, and surface water supplies were
set to what was detivered to member agencies in the past.

r Historical inflow to the system provided by ResSim model and historical inflow
to MMWD reservoirs also provided by MMWD GoLdSim Model.

r HistoricaI Member agencies model demands set as historical Member Agency
deliveries.

Current Storage
Conditions (Oct 1 2021)

Significant shift in
system demands

End of historica[ (ResSim)
lnftow Time Series data

2009 201t 2011 ?012 20ï] ?014 2015 2016 2tt7 ?t)18 2t19 2Û20 2027 2022 2D23 2ö24 2025
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Model values

Model. Val.idation Results

. Validation = Comparison between Model results and historical
va[ues (storage, deliveries and flows)

. Checks:
Russian River Storage Operation - Mendocino and Sonoma storages

Russian River diversions - Collectors

Member agency detiveries

SpLit of groundwateç recycted water and Local surface water delivered
to agencies

--9C_o
.9 .g(n r-
,l'S HistoricaI vatues

time

Status: Complete

Significant shift in
system demands

End of historica[ (ResSim)
lnflow Time Series data

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 7:077 2018 2011' 2W 2021 2t22 2023 ?.ü24 2025
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Droug ht Scenario Forecasting
' Drought Scenarios:

2020-2021 drought plus 1976-1980 (includes 1976-1977 drought)
Stochastic analysis (S-year interva [)

20 CLimate forecasts per California 4th C[imate Assessment

Status: ln process

' ldentify drought impacts
. Re-run modeL with drought mitigation programs/projects

Current Storage
Conditions (Oct 1 2021)

2009 201û 2011 2012 2t)13 2014 2015 2t16 2t77 2018 2t19 2A20 2021 2022 20?3 2t24 2025

ffi



Survey of Range of Drought Management Options

r Jacobs met with most retail customers to devetop initial ideas on range of
drought management options

r Synthesized options into 4 major categories
lncrease supp[y
Reduce demand
lmprove operations

- Modify poticy and regutations

10 @Jacobs 201 9



lnitial Synthesis of Drought Water Management Options
. lncrease Supply

Regiona[ groundwater banlz (Santa Rosa Plain, Sonoma Valtey, Petaluma, Novato)
Alexander Vatley Fl.oodMAR
Sonoma DevelopmentaI Center water supp[y and forebay for groundwater recharge
Expand potable reuse
lncrease groundwater production (new or rehabilitated welts)
Ocean desa[ination and/or brackish water desalination
lnterconnection with Bay Area suppties (water transfers)

. Reduce Demand
Water conservation and water use efficiency in agricultural, municipal and Cll sectors

. lmprove Operations
Kastani a P um p Stati on improvem ents
Expand surface storage (Lake Stafford weiç sediment removal)
Lake Sonoma Forecast lnformed Reservoir Operations (FIRO)

lncrease recycted water storage
Storage operationaI management levels
Lake Mendocino variab[e gates and out[et channel improvements

' Modify PoLicy and Regulations
Reg ulatory flexi bi tity th ro ug h TU CPs

1t OJacobs 201 9



Evaluation Criteria for Comparing Drought M¡tigation Options

r Performance
Reduction in projected shortage

- Storage levels above thresholds
Benefits to regionaI system

r Eva luation Criteria
- Cost

- Timing for lmptementation
EnvironmentaI impacts
Feasibil.ity
Energy use

Permitting LegaI

r Performance, cost, and timing criteria witl" be evaluated quantitativel.y (with ranges)
r Other criteria wil,l. be evaluated qualitatively
12 @Jecobs 201 9



Early Simulation Results
r Earty simulations of drought management options
r Using 10/1/21 & 11 /1/21 initial storage conditions and simulating through

e/30/26 (WY 2022-2026)
r Hydrology represents an extreme stress test of WY 197 6-80 conditions
r Shortage occurs primaril.y in 2023 and extends into 2024
r Total cumulative baseline shortage is -38,000 AF (Oct 1,2021 conditions)
r Total cumulative baseline shortage is -32,OO0 AF (Nov 1,2021 conditions)

r Near-Term Drought Management reduces shortages -34,200 AF

13 @Jacobs 2019



Near-Term Drought Resiliency/Response Actions

r Regional conservation measures (2 OYo)

r Maximize use of natural flows from Russian River system
r Kastania Booster Station
r lncrease groundwater extraction & implement groundwater banking
r Evatuate system inter-connections

14 @Jacobs 20 1 9



I

IWork with TAC

Next Steps

o Finalize Decision Support Model simulations &
assessment of drought options

o Technical memorandum on drought assessment
o ldentify near-term & longer-term measures to build

drought resiliency
o Ult¡mately, evaluate other water supply shortage drivers

(e.g., seismic hazards)

I
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Item #2

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 2,2021

CALL TO ORDER

President Grossi announced that due to the Coronavirus outbreak and pursuant to the

Brown Act as modified by Assembly Bill 361, this was a virtual meeting. President Grossi called

the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water District to order at 6:00 p.m.

and the agenda was accepted as presented. President Grossi added that there was not a public

location for participating in this meeting, but any interested members of the public could participate

remotely by utilizing the video or phone conference dial-in method using information printed on

the agenda. President Grossi announced in the event of technical difficulties during the meeting,

the District Secretary will adjourn the meeting and the remainder of the agenda will be

rescheduled for a future special meeting which shall be open to the public and noticed pursuant

to the Brown Act.

President Grossiwelcomed the public to participate in the remote meeting and asked that

they mute themselves, except during open time and while making comments on the agenda items.

President Grossi noted that due to the virtual nature of the meeting he will request a roll call of

the Directors. A roll call was done, those in remote attendance established a quorum.

Parlicipating remotely were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Jim Grossi, Michael Joly and

Stephen Petterle.

President Grossi announced all public attendees will be invited to speak and will need to

use the raised hand icon in Zoom or dial *9 to be called upon.

Mr. Mclntyre pedormed a roll call of staff, participating remotely were Drew Mclntyre

(General Manager), Tony Williams (Assistant GM/Chief Engineer), Terrie Kehoe (District

Secretary), Julie Blue (Auditor-Controller), Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance

Superintendent) and Robert Clark (Operations/Maintenance Superintendent). Also pafticipating

remotely were Andy Beck (Fedak and Brown LLC) and lT consultant Kevin Cozart (Core Utilities).

President Grossi announced for those joining the virtual meeting from the public to identify

themselves. Padicipating remotely was Keith Cunningham.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Joly seconded by Director Petterle, the Board approved the minutes

from the October 19,2021 Regular Board Meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle
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NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

G EN ERAL MAN AG ER'S REPO RT

Recent Rainfall Events

Mr. Mclntyre announced the large atmospheric iiver event over the weekend of October

23-24 brought over 7-inches of rain to Novato and more to our watershed. He stated while most

of the rainfall was absorbed into the dry soils, we did gain about three feet in Stafford Lake

elevation equating to -300 AF of storage. Mr. Mclntyre added as of yesterday, total rainfall to

date was 8.6 inches which equals the total rainfall recorded last winter. He noted since the third

week in October the Stafford Lake level has increased 4.3 feet equating to -500 AF of additional

storage. Mr. Mclntyre reported Lake Sonoma increased storage by -14,000 AF. He emphasized

while these recent storms have produced significant rainfall, they do not break the multi-year

drought. He noted our need for continued conservation prevails as overall storage in Lake

Sonoma is still at historically low levels.

Sonoma Countv Water Aqencv (SCWA) Amended Temoorarv Uroencv Chanoe Order

(ïuco)
Mr. Mclntyre reported on October 22,2021the State Water Board amended the TUCO by

suspending the cumulative diversion reduction requirement of 20% while natural flows are

available on the Russian River. He added this suspension is likely to extend through November

30th as a minimum. Mr. Mclntyre noted although the diversion reduction mandate has been

suspended, the agency continues to call for continued 2Oo/o conservation recognizing the record

low storage level in Lake Sonoma.

Potter Vallev Proiect (PVP) PG&E Transformer Update

Mr. Mclntyre referred to an article under miscellaneous that provided a summary of the

Potter Valley powerhouse transformer failure problem. He informed the Board that the

transformer is estimated to cost five to ten million dollars to replace and take at least eighteen

months. Mr. Mclntyre added, as a result of this news there is a lot of discussion about reduced

Eel River water transfers into Lake Mendocino this winter since the powerhouse will not be able

to generate power.

Director Grossi asked how much water was diverted in a normal year. Mr. Mclntyre replied

if the powerhouse is functional winter diversion rates are about 240 cfs. He added that there is

NMWD Draft Minutes 2of7 November 2,2021



the potential for 130 cfs to be diverted using the bypass facility however PGE has not committed

to diverting any flow above the 45 cfs required to serve Potter Valley.

Director Joly asked what the percentage of capacity was in both Lake Sonoma and Lake

Mendocino. Mr. Mclntyre responded Lake Sonoma was at 40% and Lake Mendocino was at

32o/o, adding Lake Pillsbury was at 47,000 AF.

OPEN TIME

President Grossi asked if anyone from the public wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

ST A F F/ D I RECTO RS RE P O RTS

President Grossi asked if any Directors or staff wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and the following was discussed.

Mr. Clark provided an update on the West Marin Low Sodium Water Fill Station. He stated

low saline potable water was provided for the last four weeks. Mr. Clark noted there has been

four consecutive weeks with system wide sodium levels lower than 1 15mg/L, therefore the District

will discontinue fill station operation on November 5th.

ACTION ITEMS

RE-AUTHORIZING BY TELECONFERENCE OF LEGISLATIVE B ODIES OF
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NORTH MARIN TER DISTRICT

The continuation of the Board of Directors meetings by Teleconference was discussed.

Mr. Mclntyre proposed re-authorizing meetings by teleconference, proclaiming that due to the

ongoing public health State of Emergency remote meetings should continue. He stated

Resolution 21-26 will extend the continuation of teleconference meetings thirty more days

effective November 2, 2021 through December 2,2021 pursuant to Brown Act provisions.

Director Grossi asked if the new mask mandate will have any impact. Mr. Mclntyre replied

his recommendation in the near term is to continue to have virtual meetings until there is more

certainty on stable infection rates as we move into the holiday season and colder weather. He

added that maintaining the recommended social distancing spacing is difficult in our small Board

room setting. Mr. Mclntyre asked the Board for their input, as to get a consensus of how the

Board would like to hold future Board meetings. Director Petterle stated he attended the Marin

County Board of Supervisors meeting earlier in the day and it was the first public hybrid meeting

he had participated in. He noted the Board themselves wore no masks, but were separated from

the public and the speakers took off their masks when they spoke. Director Petterle added

otherwise the public wore masks and some attended remotely to help keep the number of people

in attendance down. Director Grossi added that hybrid meetings are complicated, because often

NMWD Draft Minutes 3oT7 November 2,2021
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people are talking over one another. He noted he was at a conference in Palm Dessert with over

five hundred people and it was all in person. Mr. Mclntyre stated he will continue to monitor trends

and, in the meantime, will continue to recommend re-authorizing meetings by teleconference

every 30 days.

Director Joly asked out of the fifty-four employees at the District, what the vaccine rate

was, Mr. Mclntyre replied, he did not know the exact percentage, but he believes it is well above

seventy percent.

Director Joly asked for an update on re-activation of SCWA groundwater wells. Mr.

Mclntyre replied that the first of three wells was up and running producing about 1.5 mgd.

Director Joly stated that at some point when it is safe to meet in a group, it would be nice

to get together with entire staff and the Board. Mr. Mclntyre agreed, stating we will not be getting

together for the holidays; however, he hopes an event can be scheduled in Spring 2022.

President Grossi asked if there were any comments from the public and there were none.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board adopted

Resolution No.21-26: "Resolution Finding Proclaimed State of Emergency, that Local Officials

Continue to Recommend Physical Distancing, and that Meeting in Person Would Present

lmminent Risks to the Health or Safety of Attendees; and Re-Authorizing Meeting by

Teleconference of Legislative Bodies of North Marin Water District from November 2, 2021

through December 2,2021 Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions" by the following vote.

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ACCEPT OUTSIDE ,S FY 20/21 FINANCIAL REPORT AND MANAGEMENT

REPORT

Ms. Blue stated the District worked with Fedak and Brown LLP this year and had a

successful audit. She stated that the memo outlined the end of year account adjustments

including Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits. Ms. Blue reported allwork by Fedak and

Brown LLP was done remotely and she commended the District's accounting staff for all their

hard work and dedicated service.

The FY 20121 comprehensive annual financial repod was presented by Andy Beck of

Fedak & Brown LLP, Mr. Beck reported the audit was performed following proper audit and

accounting standards. ln addition, internal controls, methodologies and best practices were

assessed. Mr. Beck noted the audit approach is to review supporting documents to make sure

NMWD Draft Minutes 4of7 November 2,2021
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they support the balances in the financial statements. He reporled they did not identify any

weaknesses and District staff has done excellent work and gave them the highest rating with no

deficiencies.

Director Joly asked about the unrestricted revenue, if it was free to use without any

restrictions, for example for pension benefits. Mr. Beck replied the restrictions would be from

outside agencies and at this time there were none, the revenue is available for spending on

providing water or to finance capital projects.

Director Petterle stated the previous auditors advised the Board about reserves. Mr. Beck

replied that reserves are established by policy by the Board of Directors. Ms. Blue stated the

District does have a Board approved reserve policy that is provided to the auditors when

requested. Mr. Mclntyre stated the District looked at the reserve policy during the 2020 Novato

Water Rate Study and during the FY 20121 budget cycle, He noted there was a graph included

that demonstrated the current condition of the reserves as well as a forecast. Ms. Blue confirmed

that it is also part of the financial planning process and staff looks at the reserves during the

budget process.

Director Joly stated on that point, he would like a have a presentation fairly soon to show

the cost of additional water supply and cost of the building renovation. Mr. Blue replied they do

not have all the known costs yet, and if financial plans change staff will need to give an update to

the Board. Director Grossi stated the District needs to have the ability to analyze the debt and

look at these upcoming projects.

President Grossi asked if there were any comments from the public and there were none.

On the motion of Director Fraites, and seconded by Director Joly the Board accepted the

Outside Auditor's FY21 Financial and Management Report by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

GALLAGHER WELL NO. 2 INSTALLATION - APPROVE BID ADVERTISEMENT

Mr. Williams reported this is for Phase 1 of the Gallagher Well No. 2 Project. He stated

the scope of work for Phase 1 construction includes drilling of the new well, installation of the well

and conductor casings, well screens and seals, and pump testing. Mr. Williams noted the

preliminary engineer's estimate for Phase 1 of the project is $80,000, including contingency. Mr.

Williams added with Phase 2 of the project most of the work will be done by District crews,

however Phase 1 requires a specialty contractor and well driller. He apprised the Board that once
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the District secures the easement from the Gallagher family, we will be ready to start the project.

Mr. Williams reporled the challenge will be the availability of well drillers since they are currently

in high demand. He noted if the schedule falls in place the District should have a fully operational

well by mid-summer.

President Grossi asked if there were any comments from the public and there were none.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Petterle the Board authorized

the bid advertisement for Gallagher Well No. 2 Phase 1 - Well lnstallation and Development by

the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements - Dated October

21, 2021, Point Reyes Light - Salinity Notice for October 21, 2021, Point Reyes Light - Salinity

Notice for October 28,2021, NOAA Three Month Precipitation Outlook - November, December,

January, FY22 1't Quader Labor Cost Report, Customer Email - Point Reyes Fill Station, Cal

OES - Emergency Action Plan Approval- Novato Creek Dam, Marin lJ - Legal Notice - NMWD

Summary of Emergency Water Conservation Ordinance 41 for the Novato Service Area, and

Point Reyes Light - Legal Notice - NMWD Summary of Emergency Water Conservation

Ordinance 39 for the West Marin Service Area.

The Board received the following news articles. Marin lJ - Marin County Drought Tracker;

Marin lJ - Creating redundancy crucial for future of Marin water supply; Marin lJ - Approve water

pipeline, push for other ways; Marin lJ - Marin rainfall year ends with dicey outlook ahead -
DROUGHT; Maven Reports - This Just ln,..Governor Newsom Expands Drought Emergency;

Statewide, Urges Californians To Redouble Water Conservation Efforts; The Mendocino Voice -
Powerhouse down at Potter Valley Project, creating more uncertainty about its future; Point Reyes

Light - Coastal commission rejects appeal of North Marin well; Marin lJ - Edicts to save water

stiffen - DROUGHT; SFGATE - Top expert on California's atmospheric rivers: 'lt can break the

drought'; Marin lJ - Rain lifts hopes for suppliers of water; Marin lJ - MMWD tilts away from desal

plant and Point Reyes Light - Storm brakes records, fills waterways.

Mr. Mclntyre noted the Cal OES letter in reference to the Stafford Dam Emergency Action

Plan approval, He added that there is a new requirement for all dam owners to have regular

annual emergency training exercises moving fonruard.
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Director Joly referred to the letter written by Laurie Monserrat and asked which employee

she was referring to. He stated he thought it was a wondedul comment made by our customer

and commended the employee for being so helpful and supportive to our customers. Mr. Clark

replied she was referring to our temporary employee Jose Ochoa. He stated Mr. Ochoa has been

helping with both the Residential Recycled Water Fill Station and the West Marin Low Sodium

Water Fill Station and his work has been outstanding. Director Joly asked Mr. Clark to tell Mr.

Ochoa the Board's appreciation for doing a great job. Director Grossi added it was good to hear

the great feedback.

CLOSED SESS'ON

President Grossi adjourned the regular session at 6:48 p.m. and the Board began the

closed session at 6:58 p.m. in accordance with Conference with Legal Counsel -Significant

Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) One

Potential Case.

oPE / SESS'O,V

Upon returning to the regular session at7'.25 p.m., President Grossi announced the Board

had not taken any reportable action during closed session.

ADJOURNMENT

President Grossi adjourned the meeting at 7:25 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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Item #6
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR October 2027
November 16,2021

1.

Novato Potable Water Prod* - RR & STP Combined - in Million Gallons'FYTD
Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FYIB/19 FY17/18 22vs21%
July
August
September
October

282.9
212.4
214.5
1 98.5

341 .7

290.1
225.6
307.8

317.7
287.1

280.5
286.0

341.1

300.9
255.0
zbc.þ

331.0
303.0
292.4
273.7

-17o/o

-27o/o

-5o/o

-36%

FYTD Total 908,2 1 165.2 1,171.2 1,162.6 1,200.1 -22%

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FYIB/19 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %

July
August
September
October

6.0
5.7
5.9
5.'1

8.2
9.2
7.9
o.t

8.9
8.4
7R

7.5

10,2

9.9
9.5
8.3

9.5
B.B

8.4
7.9

-260/o

-38o/o

-260/o

-25%

FYTD Total 22.7 32.0 32.6 37.9 34.5 -29o/o

Stafford Treatment Plant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %

July
August
September
October

b/.u
31.3
41.7
28.2

68.2
1 03.8
115.0

103.4

112.6
81.5

122.7
102.3

1 05.8
81.1

16.1

7,7

78.6
79.3
605
74.5

-37o/o

-61%o

159o/o

2660/o

FYTD Total 168.1 210.7 390.3 292.9 419.1 -20o/o

Recycled Water Production* - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
Month FY21/22 FY20/21 FY19/20 FY18/19 FY17/18 22 vs 21 %
July
August
September
October

42.9
46.4

34.6
18.4

39.0
43.2
29.5
22.8

36.5
33.3
29.7
26.6

30.2
30.6
33.5
20.1

27.7
¿o. I

25.0
19.1

10o/o

7%
17%

-20o/o

FYTD Total* 142.3 134.5 126.1 114.4 97I 6%

tExcludes potable waterinput to the RWsystem: FY22=1.2MG:FY21=24.7 MG;FY20=19.4; FY19=20,6 N4G; FY18=15,8MG

t:\ac\excel\w tr use\[production,xlsx]nD rpt

2. Stafford Lake Data

. Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet
** Lake storage less 390 ¡y¡Q = quantity available for normal delivery

Temperature (in degrees)

1

Rainfall this month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevation*
Lake e**

October Average

1.38 lnches
1.70 lnches

181.1 Feet
509 MG

October 2021 October 2020

B.28
8.29

181.0
507

lnches
lnches
Feet
MG

0.00
0.07

178.4
407

lnches
lnches
Feet
MG

Minimum Maximum Averaqe
Octobe12021 (Novato) 55 111 74

October2020 (Novato) 46 '108 75

t:\gm\progress report\cuilent progress report october 2021,doc



3. NumþerpfSe¡s!çes

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv Status Report (October)

5 Develooer Proiects Status Renorf lOctoberl

October 31

Novato Water Recycled Water West Marin Water Oceana Marin Swr
FY22 FY21 lncr o/o FY22 FY21 lncr %o FY22 FY21 lncr Vo FY22 FY21 lncr o/o

Total meters installed
Total meters actiw
Actirc dwelling units

20,794 20,787 0.0% 99 oo 0,0% 798 791 0.9Yo

20,625 20,566 0.3% 96 g4 2.1% 788 782 0.8%
24,O97 24,084 0.1% 837 832 0.6% 235 235 0.0%

Description Octobe12021 Octobe12020

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 0.560 0.528

lrrigation Field Discharge (MG) 0.000 0.605

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 5.9 9.0

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) Dry 9.1

Job No. Project % Complete % This month

1.2820.00
1.2831.00
12851.00
1.2841.00
1.2821.00
1,2836.00
1.2835.00

Bahia Heights
Landsea Homes
385 Bel Marin Keys
Hamilton Village
Atherton Place
Residence lnn
Springbrook

97
96
75
96
9B
10
75

75
1

0
25
75

District Proiects Status Report - Const. Dept. (October)

Job No. Proiect % Complete % This month

1.1798.00 Replace Valves on Center Road
1.7162.06 New RW Hydrants
2.2720 Silver Hills

Emplovee Hours to Date. FY 20121

5
95
5

5
90
5

As of Pay Period Ending October 31,2021
Percent of Fiscal Year Passed = 33%

6. SafeW/Liability

FY 22 through Oct
FY 21 through Oct

Days since lost time accident through Oct.31 ,2021

\\nmwdserver'l\administ rat ion\AC\ EXC EL\ Personnel\wc\WC.X LS

2

Developer
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

District
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

Construction 594 1,400 42o/o ffi Construction 778 3,460 23%
Engineerinq 901 1,504 60% KW Enqineerinq 719 2,722 29%

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time
Liability Claims

Paid

Lost Days
OH Cost of
Lost Days

($)

No. of
Emp.

lnurlwd

No. of
lncidents

lncurred
(FYrD)

Paid
(FYrD)

($)

ot
11

$13,814
$4,840

2

1

2

1

0

1

$0
$6,590

t:\gm\progress report\currenl progress report october 2021.doc
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7. Energy Gost
October Fiscal Year-to-Date thru October

FYE kwh ø/kwh Cost/Day kwh ø/kwh Cost/Day

Pumping 1 18,666 27 .01, $1,032 543,733 27.5ø $1,214

otheÉ 64,297 
t se.s6 $691 186,078 ' zz.oç $4s5

229,948 ' 27.8ø $2,060 904,871 27.3ø, 009

2021 Stafford TP
Pumping

OtheÉ

46,317
158,738

44,679

21.5ø
25.5ø

29.5ø

$333
$1 ,352

$439

258,947
680,872

191,374

1 e.8ø

25.6ø

30.1 ø

$416
$1,439

$476
249,734

53,705
140,442

50,034

$362
$1,1 01

$462

325,558
643,871

211,074

1e,1ø

23.6ø

27.eø,

$505
$1,244

$483

25.8ø

20.eø

24.3ø

28.6ø

$2,124 1 ,131,193 25.0ç, $2,331

2020 Stafford TP

Pumping

OtheÉ
244,181

lActual electricity u s ed 33,600kV\fi.
2other includes West Marin Facilities

24.4ø $1,e25 1,180,503 23.1ø, $2,232

TIAC\Board Reports\PGE\PG&E Usage\FY 21.22\[PGÊ Usagelo.2021xlsx.xlsx]mo rpt

B. Water Conservation Update

9. Utilitv Performance Metric

*16 planned outages, 6hrs for job on Silver Hills in Point Reyes
n*7 unplanned, 2hrs for 2-inch main leak on Sunny Side in Point Reyes and 8-inch main on Nunes

J

Month of
October 2021

Fiscal Year to
Date

Program Totalto
Date

Hiqh Efficiencv Toilet (HET) Rebates 11 51 4,326

Retrofit Certificates Filed 12 37 6,869

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out I 37 985

Washinq Machine Rebates 4 13 6,843

Water Smart Home Survey 0 0 3,899

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS
(No. of Customers lmpacted)

October 2021 October 2020 Fiscal Year to
Date 2021

Fiscal Year to
Date 2020

PLANNED

Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours 3 56 71

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours *16 to

Duration Greater than 12 hours
UNPLANNED
Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours n*7

1 10 29
Duration Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours 1

SERVICE LINES REPLACED
Polvbutvlene 3 7 20 48
Copper (Replaced or Repaired) 0 1 15 4

t:\grn\progress reporl\currenl progress report october 2021.doc



10, Summarv of COVID-19 Costs and Wate r Bill Delinq uencv lmpacts - to Date

Total

lncrease in on-call Labor Costs

Payroll Accounts Receiwble Collection Costs

Time off to Employees for COVID related reasonsn -

Vendor Expenses - lncluding Legal Fees

Total Covid-19 Costs to Date

2 Years Ago

10t2019

$ 1 15,600

$ 12,100

$ 46,300

$ 45,000

Last Year

10t2020

This Year

10t20211

$ 219,000

* Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) & CAsupplemental Paid Sick Leave (SPSL)

Allows employees totake time offforCOV|D medicalreasons includingvaccination.

Water Bill Delinquency lmpacts

Customer Accounts Past Due (count)

Delinquent Balances % Due on Account

Delinquent Balances $ Due on Account*

+ High balance on record ofS150K ino7l2o2t

T:\AC\Board Reports\Board M eros\202 1[COV lD Costs.xlsx]Progress Report

$

1.8o/o

3.8%

53,000 $

6.2o/o

8.9%

98,000

3.5o/o

9.7%

$ 132,000

4t:\gm\progress teport\currenl progress reporl october 2021.doc



NORTH MARIN WATËR DISTRICT

Summarv of Go¡nplaints & Service Orders October 2021

Tvpe Oct-21 Oct-20 Action Taken October 2021
11t9t202'.1

Gonsumers' Problems
Service Line Leaks
Meter Leak Consumer's Side
House Plumbing
Seepage or Other
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
Low Pressure
High Pressure

Total

Service Repair Reports
Meter Replacement
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc. Field lnvestigation

-l'otal

Leak NMWD Facilities
Main-Leak
Service- Leak
Services-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Meter Replacement
Meter Leak
Washer Leaks

T'otal

Hiqh BillGomplaints
Gonsumer Leaks
Meter Testing
Nothing Found
Excessive lrrigation

-['otal

Low Bill Reportq
'l'otal

Water Qt¡alitv Gonnplaints
T'otal

TOTAL MCIfrlTl-l:

FiscalYTD Sum¡narv
Consumer's System Problems
Service Repair Report
Leak NMWD Facilities
High BillComplaints
Total

3

3
19

4
ót
10

0
0

70 56

13 14

7

0 0

39 Notified Consumer
0 Notified Consumer
0 Notified Consumer
0 Notified Consumer
7 Notified Consumer
7 Notified Consumer
1-
2-

Replaced

Repaired
Repaired

Repaired
Repaired

Repaired

1

0

0
0

1

3
4

11
,t 19

0

6
1

0
0

1

t)

3
4
0

3
2
0
1

0
0

0
0

1-
1-
3-
2-

0

00

-13%96E4

159
o

177
31

95
82
85
25

1

Chanqe Frimarilv Due To
-18% Decrease ln Service Line Leaks.

-89% Decrease ln Water Off/On Due To Repair:

108% lncrease ln Fire Hydrant Leaks.

24o/o lncrease ln Excessive lrrigation.
----M Decrease overall376 387



"ln House" Generated and
Gompleted Work Ordens

Check Meter: possible
Change Meter: leaks,
Possible Stuck Meter
Repair Meter: registers,
Replace Boxes/l-ids
Diq Outs

Total

Bill Adjustments LJnder Eoard Policy:

Qctober 2l vs. October 20

Ocl-21
Oct-20

Fiscal Year vs Frior FY

21t22FY
20t21FY

57
3
I

20
J

1

90
1

0
2
2
0

1

93

16
52

105

$4,9s4
$13,806

$20,043
$34,8'15

63
99

t:\cons sruc\complâ¡nt report\[complâ¡n 22.xlsx]oct21



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Julie Blue, Auditor-Co ntroler þß
Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor

November 12,2021

ru+

Subj: Auditor-Controller's Monthly Report of lnvestments for October 2021
t\ac\word\jnvestu2\investment r€port 1 021.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amortized cost value (i.e., cash

balance) of $26,414,266 and a market value of $26,411,526. During October the cash balance

increased by $472,707. The market value of securities held decreased $2,740 during the month. The

ratio of totalcash to budgeted annual operating expense stood at 142o/o, up 3% from the prior month.

At October 31,2A21,82o/o of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's Local Agency

lnvestment Fund (LAIF), 10o/o in Time Certificates of Deposit, 4% in the Marin County Treasury, and

4% retained locally for operating purposes. The weighted average maturity of the portfolio was 31

days, compared to 35 days at the end of September. The LAIF interest rate for the month was 0.20%,

compared to 0.21% the previous month. The weighted average Portfolio rate was 0.29o/o, compared to

0.31o/o the previous month.

lnvestment Transactions for the month of October are listed below:

10t5t2021 US Bank LAIF $300,000.00 Trsf to l4lF account
10t8t2021 US Bank LAIF $450,000.00 Trsf to LAIF account

10t12t2021
10t14t2021
10t21t2021

Goldman Sachs Bank
US Bank

US Bank
1-AIF

$249,139.76- 
s+ôÖ,ooo.oo account

LAIF US Bank $860,000.00 Trsf tom lÁlF account



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
A[.'DITOR-CONTROLLER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

Rating
AA-

October 31,2021
Purchase Maturity Cost

Date Date Basisr

Various Open $21,689,775

S&P 10t31t2021
Market Value

o/o oÍ
Yield' Portfolio

nzoTs--2%AIF
Time
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD

11t15t21
1219121

1t18t22
3t7t22
4t7t22
4t18t22
5t9t22
9t25t24
8t18t23
9t11t23
2120124

247,000
247,OO0
247,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
249,000
249,000
249,000

Type Description
State of CA Treasury

Certificate of Deposit
Flagstar Bank
Synovus Bank
Morgan Stanley Bank
Wells Fargo National Bank
American Express Natl Bank
Synchrony Bank
Pinnacle Bank
Enerbank
Sallie Mae Bank
UBS Bank
BMW Bank

Other
Agency Marin Co Treasury
Other Various

1.75o/o 1o/o

1.65% 1%
1.75o/o 1o/o

1.35% 1%
1.35% 1o/o

1.20o/o 1%
0.90% 1o/o

0.45o/o 1o/o

0.35% 1o/o

0.35% 1o/o

0.45o/o 1%
-T55.%- ----ffi

$21,687,035

nla 11115119

nla 1219119

nla 1116120

nla 316120

nla 4l7l2j
nla 4117120

nla 517120

nla 9125120
nla 8118121

nla 919121

nla 8l2jl21

247,000
247,000
247,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
249,000
249,000
249,000
249 000

$1,045,676
949 15

AAA Various Open
nla Various Open

TOTAL IN PORTFOLIO

$1,045,676

Original
Loan Amount

15
0.22o/o 4o/o

0.41% 4o/o

@_-dm
Weighted Average Maturity = 3l Days

unO,

TCD: Time Certiflcate of Deposit.
Agency: STP State Revolvìng Fund Loan Reserve.
Other: Comprised of 5 accounts used for operating purposes. US Bank Operat¡ng Account, US Bank STP SRF Loan

Account, US Bank FSA Payments Account, Bank of Marin AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petty Cash Fund.
l Original costlessrepaymentof principal andamortizationof prem¡umordiscount
2 Yield defined to be annualized interest earnings to maturity as a percentage of invested funds
3 Earnings are calculated daily - this [epresents the average yield for the month ending October 31, 2021

Loan Maturity
lnterest Bearing Loans Date Date

Marin Country Club Loan 1l1l1g 1111147

Marin Municipal Water - AEEP 711114 711132

Employee Housing Loans (2) Various Various
TATAL INTEREST BEAR'A'G LOAAJS

Pr¡ncipal

Outstandinq
lnterest

Rate

$1,265,295
$3,600,000

$l,123,951
$1,930,238

1.00o/o

2.710/o

Contingent

t:\accoun{ants\¡nv€stments\log.xlsllog

The District has the ability to rneet the next s¡x months of cash flow requirements.
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MEMORANDUM

To: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager November 12,2021

From: Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton, Accounting Supervisor and Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

Subj: lnformation - FY21l22 September Financial Statement
t:\accountants\frnancials\stmtfy22\md&40921.doc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)
. 

See Page 8.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / '1,000 gal

lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Sep-21
Actual
$1,743,213

1,932,171
476

FY21t22
ActualYTD

$7,226,530
6,202,485

(84,773)

FY21t22
Budqet
$23,717,000

22,559,000
(1,383,000)

FYTD /
Budqet %

30Yo

27o/o

6%
(417%)($188,482) $939,273 ($225,000)

(2,784,000)877 261 401 996

$688,778 $r,341,268 ($3,ooe,ooo)

For the first quarter of the fiscal year 2021-2022, the District generated a net income of $939,273 and
saw a net cash increase of $1,341,268. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in
6% under budget and Operating Expense came in 2o/o over budget. $900,617 (8%o) of the Capital
lmprovement Projects Budget was expended this fiscal year to date. At month end the ratio of total cash
to budgeted annual operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at 139%.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACGEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

Sep-21
Actual
$1,294,203

1,682,310

FY21t22
ActualYTD

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$6,924,981
5,395,015

(14,205\

FY22vs 21

Up/(Down)
(14o/o)

1%

118o/o

(70o/o)

(0%)
(25%)
12%

(70%)
(60%)
(54%)
(0%)
0%

0%
24o/o

I 691

$5,961,663
5,470,792

(30,e47)

($378,415) $459,923 $1,515,760

20,621
122

$6.84
($18 35)

($3 tt¡
$o

($1 16,12e)

$2,835
$0

$51,056

20,621
669

$6 84

$22 30

$0.69
$763,1 80

($216,362)

$8,1 45

$205,320
$1 72,1 93

20,561

892
$6.09

$73.72
$1 70

$1,643,400
($216,362)

$8,100
$205,320
$139,252

Consumption for the fiscal year to date was 25% less than the prior year same period. Total operating
revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, decreased 14% ($963,317)
from the prior year same period. lncluded in the above charges is a drought surcharge of $1.00/1,000
gallons for use above 300 gallons per day for residential customers and for all use for commercial
customers. Total operating expense was $75,777 more than last year same period.

1



Memo - September Financial Statement
November 12,2021
Page 2 of 3

The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 168 MG this fiscal year-to-date at a cost of $3,750/MG'versus
$3,214lMG'from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 490 MG at a cost of $4,72211{iG.

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations was 4o/o more than last year. Salary and benefit cost was
$1,555,771, which was 23% of the $6,636,000 budget for Novato operat¡ons.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $459,923 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $34,000 and to a net income of $1,515,760
for the prior year. 9771,158 (9%) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget was spent
versus $266,723 (5%) forthe prioryear. $763,180 in connection fees have been collected ($558,000 is
budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $216,362 were transferred this fiscal yearfrom the Novato
Water Fund to the Recycled Water Fund. The Novato Connection Fee Reserve has a net deficit of
$4,707,200 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of Connection Fee receipts. This is down
from a net deficit of $5,314,048 last year. That deficit will be reimbursed by future Connection Fee
revenue. The Novato cash balance increased $689,188 in September, and stood at $19,678,393 at
month end, compared to a budgeted projection of $13,743,000 at fiscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Connection Fee Alloc from Novato
RW Costs

Sep-21

Actual
$340,460

137,820
10.352)

FY21t22
ActualYTD

$899,221
443,639
(50,261)

FY20t21

ActualYTD
$692,263

503,267
(45,105)

FY22vs 21

Up/(Down)
30%

(12%)

11%

182%

2o/o

17%
10%

$192,288 $405,321 $143,892

96

49.2

$6.61
0.0

32.2

2.5
0.0

$116,r29
$49,035

96
131.1

$6 5e
0.0

102.5
21.4

1.2

$216,362
$180,921

94
112.4

$5.97
3.0

92.1

16.5

9.1

$216,362
$162,347

11%
29%

(B7o/o)

0%
11o/o

131.1 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year{o-date, 17%o more than the prior year.
Operating revenue was 30% more than last year. Total operating expense was 12% less than the prior
year same period. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $1,786/MG'? (including potable water
consumed) versus $3,214llVlG3 from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is

$2,023/MG.

The fiscal year net income of $405,321 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $448,000 and a
net income of $143,892 for the prior year same period. $27,184 (27%) of the Recycled Water Capital
lmprovement Project Budget was spent versus $0 (0%) for the prior year.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $5,697,913 at month end, $4.2M of which amount resides in
restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled Water
Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund.

1 Stafford production cost = TP op expense ($333,338) + SRF loan interest ($45,570) + plant depreciation ($146,1 13)1140 MG produced
2 Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($180,921) + treatment expense ($4,ZZO¡ + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan interest
($9,157) + Deer lsland plant depreciation ($28,980)/125 MG produced
3 SCWA production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,651) + debt service charge ($174) + Russian River conservation charge ($3S0¡ + Russian

River projects charge ($33)
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WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal

Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Sep-21
Actual

FY21t22
Actual YTD

FY20t21
ActualYTD

FY22vs 21

Up/(Down)
(1%)

(1 1o/o)

45%

1%

(24%)
26%
44%
91%

$85,520
90,940
(1,637)

$293,031
220,551
(5,147)

$294,665
249,101

951

($7,057) _____$gz,3!1_
787

16.3

$14.50
$85.56
$4'14

$30,800
$3,659

_______$19,519_
782

21.4

$11.47
$59.48
$2 17

$0

$0

787
3.7

$1 8.1 I
($B oz¡
($1.02¡

$0

$o

Consumption for the fiscal year was 24% less than the prior year. Operating revenue was 1% less than
last year. lncluded in the above charges is a drought surcharge of $2.50/1,000 gallons for use above 200
gallons per day for residential customers and for all use for commercial customers.

Operating expenditureswere $28,551, or 11% lessthan the previous yearsame period. Thefiscal year
net income of $67,334 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $165,000 and to a net income of
$46,515 for the prior year. $69,159 (6%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget was expended this
fiscal year, and $30,800 in connection fees were collected ($0 is budgeted). The West Marin cash
balance decreased $11,484 in September, and stood at $206,765 at month end, compared to a
budgeted projection of $395,000 at fiscal year-end.

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Sep-21
Actual

$23,029
21,102

FY21t22
ActualYTD

$72,615
67,503

FY20t21
ActualYTD

$68,796
46,416
3,216

FY22vs 21

Up/(Down)
6%
45%

(51%)

(74o/o)

0%
(0%)

2 774 1 582

$¿ 701

235
$98

$20.00
$o

$o 694

235
$eB

$28.48
$0

$25 596

235
$e8

$35 99

$o

Operating revenue of $72,615 was 6% more than the previous year due to the 5o/o rate increase effective
July 1 ,2021. Operating expenditures were 45o/o 921,087 more than the previous year. The fiscal year net
income of $6,694 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $92,000 and to a net income of $25,596
for the prior year. $33, 1 17 (2o/o) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this fiscal
year.

No connection fees have been collected ($0 is budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased
$14,881 in September and stood at $355,748 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of
$382,000 at June 30,2022.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U n restricted/U ndesignated Cash
Restricted Cash 1ruote t¡
Connection Fee Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capitat Replacement & Expansion Fund

Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Cash lttote z¡

Liability Contingency Fund
Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Cash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Cash & lnvestments

Gurrent Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accou nts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

Total Current Assets

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

93,344,557 62,897,384

$0
2,005,189
2,417,211

634
1,045,043

614,299
275,773

1,430,370
23,440

4,658,025
4,000,000

$2,229,028
2,371,663

325,106
968,905

80,346
44,835

726,983
23,335

1,045,043
0

0

1,331,485
21,682

4,658,025
4,000,000

$1,714,204
1,810,938

82,122
968,356

80,346
44,835

726,983
335

$o
0
0

0

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$161 ,785

$0
2,005,189
2,417,211

0
0

614,299
275,773

0
656

0
0

000
697,9'13

$0

$408,951
369,947
25,139

0
0
0
0
0

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0 $285,388

$0
0
0

56
0
0
0

$0
0
0

78
0
0
0

5

À

98,885
797

0
0

0
305

0
0

0001 505 70122,505 5 000
$25,937,045 $19,676,619

$r 774 $1 774

$25,938,820 '19,678,393

$355,748

$5,697,913 $206,765 $355,748

$206,765
$0

$33,258
190,778

0
0

0
0

0

0

$72,615
0

217,845
549

0
0
0
0

,770,202 $5,451 ,120 0991,0$2036s224703

t:\acæuniants\fi nancials\stmtfysvlntlx.xls1 t h2l2O21 LO4 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Other Long Term Receivables (Note 4)

Loans Receivable

Propertv and Plant
Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatrnent Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (l 6"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Nore 5)

Net Property and Plant

Buildings and Equipment (ruote o)

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (ruote s¡

Net Buildings and Equipment

Construction ln Proqress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GASB75

TOTAL ASSETS

$3,784,365 fi2,604,140

TOTAL

$525,000
3,259,365

$1,47s,091
5,675,845

22,761,018
24,661,732
29,425,134

108,953,092
1,267,600

$194,217,513
(64,342,992)

$2,1 19,365
1,130,307

323,072
1,619,023
1,007,877

220.890
$6,420,534
(4.670.516)

$1 ,451,444
6,446,381

NOVATO
WATER

$525,000
2 079 140

$1,368,872
5,183,433

18,782,300
20,912,751
29,302,810
71,092,203

0

$146,642,369
(53,603, r 79)

$2,I 19,365
1,130,307

323,072
1,619,023
1,007,877

220 890
$6,420,534
(4.670.5'16)

$1,446,955
3,186,91 1

4,633,866
99,423,074
3,007,344

489,891

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$0

$103,41 I
492,412
454,159

2,105,523
122,324

6,023,862
0

$9,301,690
(4,361,976)

$0

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0

$808
0

858,362
0
0
0

1,267,600

$2j26,771
(1,147,425)

$0
0

$0

$0
305,410
305,410

1,284,756
0
0

$0
180 225

91,180,225

$o
0

2,666,198
1,643,458

0

31,837,027
0

$36,146,683
(5,230,412)

$0

$0
116,778
116,778

31,033,049
0
0

$0

$4,489
2,837,282
2,841,771
7,781,485

0
0

$0
0

$0
0

$129,874,521 $9e,039,190 $30,916,271 $4,939,714 $979,346('|

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$o
0 0

$1 ,750,018 $1,750,018

7,897,825
139,522,365

3,007,344
489 891

938,715,224 $8,212,286 $1,931 ,513$179,512,986 $130,653,963
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable

Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment Insurance Reserve (Note 8)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Enterprise Vehicle Leases
Deferred Revenue

Total Current Liabilities
Restricted Liabi I ities

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Enterprise Vehicle Leases
Net Pension Liability @6130120
Total OPEB Liability (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 68
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 75

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Construction Advances $714,859
Total Restricted Liabilities $714,859

Lonq Term Liablilities (Note 7)

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

$1,703,662
369,491

1,785,312
397,810
275,000
166,673

8,565
393,550

23,063
23,440

1,1 56,1 80
45,229

217 845

$6,565,820 $4,956,070

$639 098
9,098

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$1,546,324
354,491
868,841
346,890
275,000

45,570
8,565

359,474
23,063
21,682

1,060,940
45,229

0

$3,555,000
6,695,774

0

0
0

3,759,424
227,811

14,727,660
4 938 031

33,903,700
634,837
104,267

$148,724
0

916,471

656
42,857

0
0

91,229,811

$0
$0

$0
0

1,273,680
5,670,948
6,286,299

0

0

0

0

913,230,92

$8,614
15,000

0
50,920

0

0

0
31,076

0
797

39,285
0
0

13,098
0

217 845

121

0

0
'103

0
0

0

$0
0

0

0

0

0

0
3,000

0
305

$0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

o)
$145,691

$75.761

6234,248

$0
$75,761 $0

0
0

$773,294 $234,248

$3,555,000
6,695,774
1,273,680
5,670,948
6,286,299
4,311,266

227,811
14,727,660
4 938 031

$47,686,469
634,837
104 267

55r

842$551

$0
0

0
0
0

842
0
0
0

7

0

0

$0
0
0

$55,706,253 $40,237,972 914,460,739
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Net Assets

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see betow)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer (To)/From Reserves
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Transfer

TOTAL ¡.IABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCE

98,885
0
0

203,000
262,714

67,334
(56)

0
0
0

70,000
356,408

6,694
4,653

TOTAL

$86,885,592
13,637,997
43 319 599

$r43,843,187

($5,6e3,162)
0

1,842,473
2,417,211

614,299
275,773

1,430,370
4,000,000
2,759,513
6,219,000

(33,535,872)
939,272

(1.305.330)
($20,036,454)
$123,806,733

($1,5oo,ooo)
(37,672)

^
511,342

0
(279,000)

NOVATO
WATER

$78,252,871
426,448

29.299,619
$107,978,939

(54,707,2oo)

1,331,485
4,000,000
2,759,513
5,723,000

(25,899,973)
459,923

n.229.696),
($17,562,948)
$90,415,991

($1,500,000)
0
0

482,304
0

(212,O0O)

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$2,142,837
3,163,585
2 270 993

,577,415

($138,424)
$7,438,991

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,755
86,060

709,356
$1,475,171

$222,094
$1,697,265

$5,810,128
9,961,904

11 039 630
$26,81 1,662

$0
0

1,842,473
2,417,211

614,299
275,773

0
n

0
223,000

(8,255,022)
405,321
(80,231)

($2,557,176)
924,254,486

$0
(37,672)

0
7,441

0
(50,000)

($80,231)

$o
0
0

15,944
0

(16,000)

$0
0
0

5,653
t,

t1.000)

($z($zz0,301)
0
0
0
0
0

,665 1)

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

'-l

($1.305,330) ($1,229.696) ($þþ) $4,653

$8,212,285 $'1,931,513$179,512,986 $130,653,963 938,715,224
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT - ALL SERVIGE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE(EXPENSE)
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD & LGVSD

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

oTHER SOURCES(USES) OF FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital lmprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Low lncome Rate Assistance
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES)

$7,232,320 $23,717,000

$5,679,489
1,411,201

72,615
69,015

$17,216,000
5,741,O00

290,000
470,000

33o/o

25%
25%
15o/o

30%

31o/o

230k
22%
2oo/o

23o/o

24%
17%
32o/o

42%
25o/o

27%

89%

0%
20o/o

32%
13%
ook

0%
6%

$1,618
85,144
47,768

(18e,4e3)
(181)

0

$6,350,394
'1,469,796

68,796
94,479

$2,030,892
151 ,051
224,277
551,269

44,515
998,1 02

88,274
123,729

1,022,160
968,216

$6,559,000
646,000

1,026,000
2,794,OO0

195,000
4,086,000

528,000
381,000

2,440,000
3,904,000

$7,983,465

$2,240,798
179,711
304,455
556,529

23,320
869,973
I 15,576
85,555

833,372
982,491

$6,202,485

$1,029,835

$1 13

47,920
42,991

(174,667)
(1 ,1 30)

0

$22,559,000

$1,158,000

$116,000
241,OOO

136,000
(1,372,000)

(501,000)
(3,000)

$6,191 ,779

$1,791,685

($84,773) ($1,383,000) ($55,1 43)

N ET r N CO M E/( LOSS) _________$945, Oæ_ ----l$z5,o-ool -42oo/o $1,736,542

$3e6,206 ($2,784,000)

$1,341,268 ($3,00e,000)

25% $982,491
1,643,400

0
0

12,445
8,1 00

205,320
(70,404)

(e80,07e)
(251,208)

(2,760)
(2,236,938)
($68e,633)

$1 ,046,910

$968,216
793,980

0
0

12,507
8,1 45

205,320
(77,872)

(900,617)
(284,35e)

(5,7e0)
(323,324)

$3,904,000
558,000

3,675,000
1,450,000

38,000
0

205,000
(2e5,000)

(9,692,000)
(2,541,000)

(86,000)
0

42o/o

0%
Oo/o

33o/o

100%
26%
9%

11o/o

7o/o

I

cASH r NCREASE(DECREASE)

tr\accountants\financials\stmlfyl0\finfyl 0.xlsIbudget vs. actual]



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND GASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenuei(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer ln-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FEMA/CAL OES Grant-OM Treatment Pond
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Prior Period Adjustments

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position June 30, 2021

Net Position September 30,2021

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net lncomei(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Marin Country Club Loan Principal Pmts
Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,202'l
MV Cash & lnvestments Sept 30,2021

$7,226,530
6,202,485

$1,024,045
ß4,773\

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$5,961,663 $899,221
443,639

$293,031
220,551

$72,615
5,470 792 OI 503

$490,871
(30.947)

$455,582
(50,261)

$72,481
(5,147)

$5,112
1,582

$939,272

$175,852
8,145

205,320
793,980

0
0

$172,193
8,145

205,320
763,1 80

0
(216,362)

$3,659
0
U

30,800
0
0

$459,923 $405,321 $67,334 $6,694

21

$o
0
0
0
0
n

$o
0
0
0
n

6,362

$1,183,297

0

$2,122,570
121,684,163

$932,477
0

$1,392,400
89,023,591

$216,362

0

$621,682

23,632,803

$34,459

0

$101 ,793
7,337,198

$o

0

$6,694

1,690,572

$123,806,733 $90,415,991 $24,254,486 $7,438,991 $1,697,265

$939,272
968 216

$459,923
715,280

$405,321 $67,334
50,287

$6,694
1 1,488191 161

$1 ,907,489 $1,175,203 $596,482 9117 ,621 $18,182

$793,980
0
0

(978,490)
8,1 45

205,320
12,507

(284,359)
(849,237)
168,958
288,550

71,259
(2,854)

o

($566,221)

$763,1 80

0
(849,030)

8,1 45
205,320

0
(111,014)
(450,726)
173,817
595,769

(166,363)
(111,e52)
(216,362)

($15e,216)

$o
0
0

(27,184)
0
il

12,507
(160,87e)
(397,244)

0
11,287
17,113

148,724
216,362

($17e,315)

$30,800
0
0

(6e,15e)
U

0
0

(12,466)
71,349
(4,85e)

(101,211)
2,936

(3e,626)
0

($122,236)

$0
U

U

(33,1 1 7)
U

U

0
0

(72,615)
0

(217,294)
217,573

0
0

($105,453)

$1,341,268 $1,015,987 $417,167 ($4,615) ($87,271)

$24,597 ,552 $18 662,406 $5,280,746 $21 1,380 $443,019
$25,938,820 $19,678,393 $5,697,913 $206,765 $355,748
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I

SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE
2021 ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bill Adjustments-LIRA
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPERAT¡NG REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water

PUMPING
Operating Expense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

$1,294,203 $5,961,663

$999
238

0

52
0

14
435,237 I 8'18 111

SOURCE OF SUPPLY $436,540 $1,840,243

$2,1 07
418

15,798
77

3,549
183

$2,1 52
1,544

18,759
1,287
2,658

79
2,051,744

$837,085
(3,808)
(2,040)

440,940
0

825
't8

0

13,604
605

6,975

$4,590,909
(14,223)
(5,640)

1,322,820
0

1,800
54

360
39,1 85
2,048

24,351

$5,441,571
(7,e63)
(2,730)

1,400,777
0

2,205
45

1,700
40,638
12,841

35,896
$6,924,981

30%
20%
8%

24o/o

0o/o

26%
5%
7%
24%
9o/o

24o/o

29%

lBo/o

3o/o

23o/o

0o/o

8o/o

1o/o

31o/o

30% 92,078,223

$o
198

2,780

$o
1 '1,803

3,354

0%
360/0

60Â

260/o

24%

$o
11,758
8,770

36 245 '116 687 131 856

PUMPING $39,223

$20,76'1
39,791
6,594
3,940

$131,843

$63,1 08
107,6s8

'11,901

7,322

$152,384

$58,563
106,449
14,299
17,386
4,1 66

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint
Leased Lines 2 841 5 929

37o/o

34o/o

21o/o

8o/o

30%

3oo/oOPERATIONS $73,928 $195,919 $200,864
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER YEARTO DATE YTD/
2021 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purlfication Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service I nstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$198,456

22Yo

32o/o

18o/o

28o/o

5%
20o/o

18o/o

20o/o

24o/o

24o/o

260/o

17o/o

10o/o

30o/o

22o/o

31o/o

24o/o

360/o

29o/o

11o/o

27o/o

0o/o

12Yo

21Yo

360/o

29o/o

83%
29%
37Yo

29Yo

$10,332
38,749
36,6'11
'19,545

2,392
10,534
13,445
9,275

31,666
2,703
7,421
8,201

931
6,653

$34,1 20
112,506
78,852
35,780

5,692
38,041
28,348
20,316
89,966
11,142
19,832
14,911
6,764

(7,460)

$30,285
92,520
75,852
28,679
9,888

35,289
43,940
20,33'1
95,607
14,035
17,176
15,141
6,825

683
79,887

9140,728
38,509
73,116
54,856
5,894

57,886
7

18,178
2,458

19,418
50,890
7,298

36,605
33,363

192,691
6,660

65,438
540

16,562

$71,147
11,735
16,344
'10,639

2,759
26,375

0
6,927

156
25,917
18,912
4,398

1 8,1 95
17,253
42,080

(367)
5,285

14,005
4,555

$488,810

$195,415
38,331
41,658
43,553

7,654
77,993

7

15,964
3,702

69,707
58,549
10,814
67,202
80,549

145,957
'10,545

38,964
42,134
11 900

260/0

57%
15o/o

29o/o$296,3'15 $960,598 $821,097
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER YEARÏO DATE YTD/
2021 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
U ncollectable Accou nts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Admin istrative Expense
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$27,448

$25,227
142

15,688
683

$83,305

$73,646
567

40,540
3,067

$1,442
0

29
12,519
1,326
6,073
5,035

912
908
320

(1 ,1 15)

$4,832
0

246
35,490
4,099

16,297
15,092
2,736
4,607
3,175

(3,26e)

5o/o
jYo

12o/o

26%
23o/o

30%
23o/o

25o/o

92o/o

9o/o

22o/o

18o/o

29o/o

8%
41o/o

16Yo
31o/o

25o/o

25%
64%
31%
4o/o

28o/o

13o/o

9%
0%
8o/o

94o/o

25%
9o/o

260/o

35o/o

18%
24Yo

38%
23%
220
-60/o

30%
15o/o

98o/o

40o/o

$4,941
0

104
52,769
5,934

22,123
13,655
2,736
7,715
3,955

(4,350)

$109,582

$48,748
't,390

20,950
2 587

s41,740 s117,821 $73,674

$8,728
5,040
6,785
6,000

15,047
312,589

10,839
5,268

52
896

72,715
2,028
8,801
8,142

1 1 ,109
2,088

468
45,755
35,607
37,555
46,1 68

(64,408)
(3e,057)
(e4,1 16)
329,004

$4,014
2,124
9,574

0
14,190
92,226
2,229
1,238

0
271

30,453
676

7,497
88

3,708
'1,356

0
4,195

14,011
12,429
15,681
36,697

(14,473)
(36,748)

$10,705
5,297

32,420
6,208

18,846
320,594

6,886
3,957

0

1,154
90,994
2,028

16,999
564

11,104
2,801

350
14,674
45,998
37,286
50,015

5,085
(47,542)
(82,140)
382,688130 394

$331,831

236,829
$1,682,310

$936,973

715,280
$5,470,792

25%
29o/o

$773,1 01

706,203

$s,395,015

oPERATINGINCOME/(LOSS) ($388,106) $490,871 27o/o $1,529,965
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER YEARTO DATE YTD/

2021 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Workers'Comp Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

BEG¡NNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water

ENDING FUND EQUITY

($11,681)
22,528

2,442
0
0 -77%

23o/o

46%
52%

$14,435
22,528

2,442
0

(5,41e)

$33,986
38,587
27,200

(22.797\

$55,1 50
35,491

5,666
6,361

$102,668

$38,439
50,681
27,572

18't

$116,873

$1,515,760

$84,949,826
1,s'15,760

139,252
8,1 00

205,320
1,643,400
(216,362)

23%
32o/o

22o/o

$4,218
45,785
4,950

'l98

0

$13,289
5,830

26,262
62

$45,443 fi76,977 270/0

$11,782
14,860
8,586

525

$35,588
45,570
25,757

24Yo

23%
23%
50/o
24%

1jjo/o
137o/o

24o/o

009
$35,753 fi107,924

NET TNCOME(LOSS) ($378,415) $459,923 28%o

$89,023,591
(378,415) 459,923

51,056 172,193
2,835 8,145

0 205,320
0 763,180

(116,12e) (216,362)
$90,415,991 $88,245,296
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I
SEPTEMBER

2021
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water, LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenVControls Maint

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Cathodic Protection
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISS¡ON & ÞISTRIBUTION

$1,073
532

2,622
108

0
0

$1,350
4,892
1,950

0
365
158

$325,1 32
14,278

$864,021
32,470

050 2 730

560/o

28%

53o/o

31o/o

46o/o

0%
0%

30%
160/0

$671,179
20,884

200
$340,460

45,011
4,024

143,553
37,368

$899,221 54o/o $692,263

128,909
33,437

$49,035 $180,921

0

$162,347

$0
0

506 1 484 1

$o
134
371

$o

$506

$904

$1,484

$2,997
0

14,607
0
0

$1,505

$5,022
2,515

78,007
0

20%
0o/o

43o/o

0o/o

Oo/o

18o/o

11,01
0
6
0
0 2 698

$11,920

$0
0
0

108
0

(11,490)

$17,604 $88,241

27o/o

3o/o

52%

($11,382)

9245
0
0

14
0

3,529
20

0
0
0
0

0%
0o/o

12%

-2o/o

0o/o

0o/o

1o/o

0o/o

43o/o

3o/o

0o/o

Oo/o

o%

$8,716$4,334

($3zs¡
0
0

14
0

11,471
338

0
0
0

1BB

$93
0
0

535
0

1,632
68

3,466
0
0

,808$a
3 150

$1 1,636 18o/o $8,944
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I
SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2021 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2Yo)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMlNISTRATIVE
Legal Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (2.4o/o)

GAS868 Adjustment
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total lnterest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Capital Contribution Expense-NSD&LGVSD

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS) $1e2 288

$503 267

$455,582 204o/o $188,996

$19,669

64,1 53
$137,820

$36,1 70

191,161
$443,639

$422
$422

$68
0

15,781
2 711

$18,559

214,532

$1,837
17,274

80
2 862

$22,053
0

$22,053

$10,558
56,599

0

$67, I 57

$143,892

$22,794,516
143,892
216,362--w

$112 $328

$o
12,342
21,357

2,471

$o
12,342
6,502

825

$112 $328 16%
160/o

0%
247o/o

39o/o

27o/o

52o/o

25o/o

31o/o

2o/o

$o

260/o

15o/o

25o/o

25o/o

0o/o

8o/o

(eo%)

24%

$202,640

$475
8,922

39
942

$475
8,922

39
2 831

$10,378
0

$12,267
0

$10,378

$2,986
17,744

0

$9,157
53,370

0

fi12,267 150/o

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
FRC Transfer to/from Novato

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$20,730 $62,528

$405,321

$23,632,803
405,321
216,362

@-
192,288
116,129
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER
2021

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bill Adjustments-LIRA
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

PUMPING

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines

WATER TREATMENT 
OPERATIONS

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

$85,520 $293,031

$66,912
(28)
(15)

18,637

$236,919
(866)
(1 50)

55,9'11

0
20

0

0

0

0
14 197

30o/o

26%
0o/o

2%

24o/o

29o/o

$1 139

$258,454
($13,047)

($30¡

$48,1 35

$o
$s
$e

$294,665

$496
49

0

0

$1,611
77

8,040
0

1%o

80o/o

0o/o

49Yo

$144
84

0
0

$545 $9,728 $228

3 711 11 708

$791
2,058

$3,286
2,729

33o/o

23o/o

260/o

26%

19%
15o/o

7o/o

21o/o

15o/o

$1 ,1 38
12,198
12,486

$6,561 $17,724 $25,822

$1,719
1 ,013

0

596
350

$3,439
4,914

491
5,448

$4,862
3,711

75
1,056
1 051 0581

$3,678 $10,754 $15,350

$1,481
3,853

0
84

472
8,614
5,738
1,640

864
1,579
4,281

$4,827
9,968

294
84

3,071
8,614

14,985
2,405
1,944
5,262
6,672

$3,934
10,698

1,993
756

8,636
6,491

12,039
2,230
9,381
6,546

54o/o

360/0

60/o

Bo/o

31o/o

36Yo

33%
34%
39%
53%
32%
35%

2245

$28,605 $67,927

16

$58,1 25
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I

SEPTEMBER
2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev I nspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

Legal Fees
Consulti ng Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$19,525 $25,867

0
2,158

0

0

0

$280
886
498

$41 3
2,695
2,648

0

5,291
0
0
0

8,617
12

0
707
992

2,316
92

0
2,986

0
(e02)

2Yo

15o/o

53o/o

160/o
jVo

0o/o

0%
123%

1o/o

0%
8o/o

2SVo

6%
2o/o

0o/o

299%
0o/o

-13o/o

15o/o

$453
3,624
1,075

7
2,758

0

0

0

3,1 34

34
2,35

3,936
0
0

707
207
779

0
0

1,907
0

0
0

5

J

15,217
1,206

0

0

0
8 166 587I

Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING $91 3

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program $1,518

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION $1,518
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

$o
0

913

$1,700
0

2 679
,379

13%
0o/o

22o/o

17o/o

148%

148%

75%

31o/o

59o/o

19o/o

26%o

46%

$39,931

$1,644
0

3,553

$s 908

$5,1 97

$1r,881

$1,498
0

5,937
5 462

12,897

16,698

$90,940

$5,908

$1,498
0

19,503

$11,881

$1 13

0
16,995

16 779 14 995
$37,779

50,287

$220,551

$32,1 03

50,663

$249,1 01

oPERATTNG TNCOME/(LOSS) ($5,420) $72,481 $45,564

17 t:\accountants\f¡nancials\stmtfyxxvinfyxx.xlsll h2l2021 B:01 AM



WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER
2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
lnterest-Advance from Novato (Note 11)

Other Non-Operating Expense
NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$o
0

81

0

0
(17)
72

s4,282
0

165
1,363

0

783
0

0%
0o/o

$o
0

81

0

0

0

$5

0o/o

0o/o

24o/o

0o/o

40

$1 36 $121

$5,224

$6,593

18%

35o/o $46,5'r5

$7,344,831
46,515

$7,391 346

$1,729
0

44

,642
0
0

0

44

0
0

$1,773

($7,057)

$5,268

$67,334

,642$s

(7,057)
$7,337,198

67,334

3,659
30,800

0

0

$7,438,991

18 t:\accountants\f nâncials\stmtfyxx\flnfyxx.xlsl t h212021 I O1 /\M



OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER

2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges $23,029 $72,615

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE $23,029 $72,615

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION

25%
25%

$68,796
$68,796

Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$290
0
0

874
556

s2J71
0

348
694
301

2,594

$8,720

$440
0

2,590
242

20
1,638

0

3,791

60/o

0o/o

45%o

10o/o

2o/o

7 5o/o

0o/o

52%
24o/o

5o/o

0o/o

0o/o

20%
39%
260/o

13Yo

24o/o

2jYo
7 5o/o

9o/o

32o/o

$2,044
0

3,502
167
449

0

$2,580
0

5,413
512
60

5,977
0

7,860
$22,403

0

6,297
$12,459

$6,1 09

$4,753

375

$e1 3
0

0

1,769
788

199 3 677
$2,920 $7,146

$o
447

1,195
281

$4,027
1,816
8,250

873

1,062
937
379

$2,375

$1,922

90

$14,967

262 13o/o

13%$eo $262 $3zs

19
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

SEPTEMBER

2021

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Consulting Services/Studies
Legal Fees
Distributed from Novato (1.1o/o)
Liability lnsurance
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$o
0

2,034
184

$0
0

6,682
551

$o
878

4,261
526

3,943

0o/o

337
$3,555

3,895

$21,102

4 004

95o/o

28o/o

94Vo

23o/o

260/o

160/o

39Yo

Oo/n

1

oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS) $1,e27 $5,1 1 2

$1 1,238

11,488

$67,503

$e,608

11,093

$46,416

$22,380

$250
2,072

59
835

0

$s,216

$o

$0
1,557

29
1,188

77

$o
1,557

29
73

0

$2,851

$o
77

$1,659 3o/o

0%
B%
2o/o

7Yo

$o
77 0

$77

$4,701

$77

$6,694

$1,690,572
6,694

$1,697,265

$o

$25,596

$1,624,590
25,596

Ti oso¡¡s

4,701

20
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQU IPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
t:\accountanls\financials\stmtfy22\[cpm092 1 . xl s] equi p

SEPTEMBER
2021

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 21t22
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER Notes

1 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Meter Maintenance Program
n. Particle Charge Analyzer

2 ENGINEERING
a. File Management System

3 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. Peterbilt 335 (#508) Cab & Chasis
o. Leased Vehicles

TOTALEQUIPMENTEXPENDITURES $39,144

Notes
(1) Replacement item

$0 $7,649 $120,000 $112,351

$39 144 $39 144 $40 000 $856 r

$39,144 $39,144 $40,000 $856

$0

$0
0

$0
7,649

$120,000
0

$120,000
(7,649)

0
$o

31,079
$135,000

0
$135,000 r

(31,07e)
$0 $31,079

877,872

$135,000

$295,000

$103,921

$216,271

21
11h212O21 7:56AM



n Veh# ned

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2021
Fìscal Date

t Recove
45 18

Vehicle Cost Mile

e L¡fe to Date FYfD22 FYfD21
469 39

Ë
2 n^'

47
49
505
506
509
51 1

5t¿
513
515
5r6
517
518
520
521
522
523
524
526
527
528
531
55J
534
535

N)
N)

Year

z 2003
s 2008
¿ 2008
s 2008
a 2010
¡ 2010
e 2010
e 2012
to 2012
tt 2014
tz 2015
n 2015
u 2015
ts 2016
tø 2017
tt 2016
re 2018
rs 20'18
zo 2019
zt 2019
zz 2019
zz 2019
z¿ 2019
zs 2020
zø 2020
zz 2020
za 2020
ze 2Q20
zo 2021
zt 2021
zz 2021

EV 0 4x4 on

Dodge Dakota 4x4
Ford F250 4x4
Ford F250 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250
Ford F250
Ford F150
Ford F250 4x4
Ford Escape 4X4
Ford F150 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Escape 4X4
Nissan Frontier
Ford Cargo Van
Dodge Ram 2500
Chev Colorado 4x4
NISSAN ROGUE
NISSAN FRONTIER
FORD F-150 2WD
FORD F-150 4x4

STP
Pool
Pool
Pool
Bergstrom
Davenport
Construction
Reed
Castellucci
Kurfirst
Ocodhain
Arendell
Watkins/Shop
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Rupp
Stompe
Eng/l/Vtr Consv
Castellucci
Grisso
STP
FSR
Kehoe, Chris
STP
Kane
Kauwe
Clark
STP
LeBrun

639
465
702
808

2,871
3,291

510
2,113
3,218
1,639
3,056
5,237
1,946

542
1,690
2,784
3,710
2,852
1,122

356
2,883
1,257
2,489
1,926
3,352

304
976

2,058
3,110

542

$61 1

$84
s112
$814

$1,755
$977
$208

$1,063
$1,502

$893
$793

$1,260
$683

$64
QÕI Ã

$2,652
$1 ,1 60
ç1,847

9254
($o¡

91,157
9142
$607
$653
$943
s473
$239
s717
$699
$1 41

$557

$487
$0
$0

$662
$2,093
$l,491
91,522
$3,808
$3,332
$2,535
$1 ,1 97
$2,346

$826
$o

$955
$2,434

$298
$2,938

$727
$378

$3,240
$205
$686
$882

$3,478
$250

($1 24)
($8+¡

($1 t z¡
($r 52)
$338
$51 4

$1 ,314
62,745
$r,830
$1,642

$404
$1,087

$1 43
($6+¡
$40

($218)
($862)

$1,091
$472
$378

$2,082
$63
$79

$229
$2,536
($2ze¡
($16e)

s1,147
$384
($sz¡

128,037
107,766
80,413

1 '19,080

102,251
126,780
91,599
80,360
89,714
22,913

104,585
105,717
53,339
52,742
31 ,1 48
42,808
29,531
3'1 ,910
1 4,1 66
16,444
15,734
2,445

'15,841

12,431
19,922
5,637
3,276
9,906
3,110

542

$0.43
$0.79

$0.49
$0.47

$0.96
$0.1 8

$0.16
$1.01
$0.61
$0.30
$0.41
$0.50
$o.47
$0.54
$0.26
ç0.24
$0.35
$0.1 2
$0.54
$0.95
$0.31
$0.65
$0.23
($o.oo)
$0.40
$0.11
$0.24
$0.34
$0.28

$0.26
$0.1 8

42

$0.47
$3.60
$2.12
$0.63
$0.39
$0.32
s0.27
$0.47
$0.52
$0.47
$0.41
$0.32
$0.35
$0.21
$0.27

$0.00
$0.00

$0.79
$0.38
$0.50

$0.60
$0.s5
$0.68
$0.43
$0.28
$0.34
$0.38
$0.33
$0.47

CHEVROLET COLORADO 2WI 536
FORD F250 4X4 537
FORD F250 4X4 538
FORD F15O 2WD 539
FORD F15O 2WD 540
NISSAN ROGUE 541
NISSAN FRONTIER 542
Ford Ran 4x4 543

$0.46
$0.61
$0.49
$0.32
$0.37
$0.49
$0.29
$0.31
$0.39
$0.60
$0.31
$0.30
$0.22
$0.26

$1.56
$0.24
$0.35
$0.22

60.42
$0.27
$0.45
$0.45
$0.20
$0.33
$0.29
$0.31
$0.19
$0.32
$0.29
$0.00
$0.27$1

$1

$1

$70
864
083
$49
586 029 040 18

r 1999 Ford F350 WSvc Body
z 2002 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
s 2006 lnt'l 4300 Crew
¿ 2009 Peterbilt 325 Crew
s 2012 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
ø 2015 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
t 2017 Ford F350 4x4
e 2019 FORD F550 3 YD DUMP

ota on

19 Pool
44 Construction
503 Construction/Crew
508 Construction/Crew
5'14 Breit
519 Sjoblom
525 Lemos
530 Construction

422
't,048

870
890

1,020
1,595
2,225

139,566
115,171

53,277
43,451
50,340
49,089
45,504

$0.00
$1.73
$2.55
$2.09
91.42
$1.27
$0.59

$0.37
$2.37
$0.71
$0.61
$1.84
$1.29
s1.17

$0.84
$1.27
$3.63
$0.73
$1.36
$1 .17

$0.68
$0.72

26,159

$1 57
$2,484

$61 I
$543

$1,874
$2,063
$2,597

$828

$756
s4,522
65,782
$6,1 32
$3,612
$5,390
$3,1 92

038
163
589
738
1t7

$2
$5
$5
$1

Þc

$s99

840
$595

1.00
I 1 ,165 .40

r 
Expense amount shown excludes deprec¡ation (this amount was $81,000 for FY21, will update with FY22 amount to include Leased veh¡cles).

$7/hr and the recovery rate for vehicles 1-ton and over ¡s $14lhr. An additional 50% ¡s charged to developer projects to reflect the fair market value of the veh¡cle be¡ng used
3 Purch¿æd ud in @ d 32,ru miles. Mile¿ge shom ßffilincured since OßhdÞurc&*

1.20



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
t:\accouñ1ânts\financials\stmtry22\[cpm092 1 -xls]water conseruation

COST THRU
JUNE 2021

SEPTEMBER
2021

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 2,1122

BUDGET
(ovER)
UNDER

TOTAL
cosT

1-770CÈ01

1-770c-02

1-770G03

1-770G06

1-7700-07

1-774G.11

1-7700-12

1-770ù13

t770rI15

1-770c-16

1-770ù17

1-770G.19

1-7700-04

1-t-70C-2O

1-7700-21

1-7700-23

1-7704-24

1-7700-25

1-7700-35

1-7700-26

1-7700-27

$454,159
27,227
53,519

354,796
55,1 05

1,039,189
18,896

483,043
242,197
102,417

5,682
49,466

1,751,961
128,886

3,843
3,300
2,916

66,421
16,449

67,561
39,151

'100,955

1 15,8'19
20,290

323,141
174,598

11,327

$8,946
642

0
435

0
1,989

0
50

U

4,030
940
153

7,659
284

0
0

'100

0
0

$21,936
s2,754

$o
$1,550

$0
$6,823

$o
$1,126

$o
$11,008

$3,300
$91 9

$21,958
$1 ,418

$1 50
$0

$400
$21

$284

$476,096
29,981
53,519

356,346
55,1 05

1,046,012
18,896

484J69
242,197
113,425

8,982
50,385

1,773,919
130,303

3,993
3,300
3,316

66,442
16,733

1-7700-29

'1-7700-30

1-7700-31

1-7700-32

1-7740-28

1-7702-04

Description
NOVATO
a. Residential

1 Cash for Grass
2 Landscape Effìciency Rebates
s Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
u Toilet Rebate MF
a Residential Audits
o High Efflciency Toilet Distribution
1o Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
tt Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
lz ET Controller Rebate
rs Administration
14 New Development Wtr Cons Program
rs Demand Offset Rebate Program
ro Grant Administration
tz Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
ts Residential Fill Station
rs UWMP

b. Commercial
r Toilet Rebate Program
2 Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
r Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
¿ Public Outreach I H,O Fair
s Marketing
o Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
t Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgeis
a Large Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

WEST MARIN WATER
rogram

6,382
0
0

5,388
3,919

0

8,000
9,000

0
67,000
15,000

0

1,414
8,858

0
44,106

4,081
0

107,541
1 15,961
20,290

346,035
185,5'18

11,327

92,072
41,339
14,960
19,822

112,458

0
116

0
0

567

2,000
0

6,000
2,000
9,000

1,858
(657)

6,000
2,000
6,732

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

'18,000

2,000
20,000

0
10,000

1,000
5,000

130,000
10,000
2,000
1,000

$13,064
2,246
5,000
3,450
1,000

11,177
2,000

18,874
0

(1,008)
(2,300)
4,081

108,042
8,582
1,850
1,000
1,600

(21)
(284)

2,000
0
0

N)(,

1-7700-33

1-7700-34

1-7701-O2

1-7701-O3 1-7701-04

1-8672-17

1-7700-04

1-7700-05

1-8653-02

1-7702-01

1-8653-0'1

1-7702-03

0
142

0
567

0
6,586

142
0

22,894
10,919

0
0

142
657

0
0

2,268

5,000
2,000

5,000
1,433

67,561
39,718

92,214
41,996
14,960
19,822

114,727

n

$5,992,967 $41,740 5117,821 $377,000 $259,179 $6,110,788

$159,461 $1 ,518 $5,908 $4,000 ($1,908) $165,3702-5166-00

TOTALWATERCONSERVATIONEXPENDITURES $159,461 $1 ,518 $5,908 $4,000 ($1 ,908) $165,370



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I
t:þccountans\lnancralsbtmtM2u cpm 092 1 -fs lÞroìecb

COSTTHRU SEPTEMBER FYTD FY 21122 (OVERYUNDER TOTAL

Description JUNE 2021 2021 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

1 PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS
a.

'1-7183-u

ne
1 Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch
2 Replace Cl Pipe-GrantAve
3 Replace 6" ACP Pipe (810') Glen Rd
4 Redwood Blvd P¡pe Lowering
5 Novato Blvd Widening Diablo to Grant
6 Remove/Replace 12" Valves-Center Rd

7 Other Main Replacements (60+ years old)
o Main/Pipeline Additions

1 San Mateo lnlevOutlet Pipe (2,200')
2 Other Main/Pipeline Additions

c. PB Service Line Replacements
1 Repl PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 Svcs)
z Repl PB-San Marin Dr/lgnacio Blvd

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
r Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
r MSN B2-UtilityAgreementCosts'

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
a. Detector Check Assembìy Repair/Repl 1-l+ry4
b. Anode lnstallations ltsoly¡
c. San Marin Aqueduct Valve Pit (STP to Zone 2)
a. Rehab Black Pt Pressure Regulating Station
e. Rehab Harbor Dr pressure Regulating Station
f. Frosty Lane lntertie Ball Valve Upgrade

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

$0
215,568
228,705

10,507
14,258

0

U

219,640
0

0
80,098

$0
1,583

27,605
0

4,055
0
0

1,026

0
1.214

$1 50,000
0
0
ñ

200,000
0

200,000

850,000
150,000

70,000
0

$150,000
(1,583)

(27,605)
0

195,945
0

200,000

848,974

70,000
(1,214)

$0
217,151
256,310

10,507
r 8,313

0

0

220,665

0

81 ,312

$o
0

0
0

247
0

0

0

0
0

1-7186-00

1-7193-00

1-7194-00

1-719100

'1-7198-00

1-7150-00

1-7139-u

1-8737-v

1-7118.02

1-7007-14

1-709G04

1-7190-00

1-6302-21

1-6313-20

r-6316-20

0 0 0 70,000 70,000 0

$768,776 $247 $35,483 $1 ,690,000 $l ,504,517 $804,259

$1 28.979 s765 $8,1 45 $0 t$8 145) s137 .124

$128,979 $765 $8,1 45 $0 ($8,145) $137 ,124

N)À $87,653
264

0

18,714
0

0

0

51 ,244
0

68,996
12,002
tt 945

s278,484

20,405

150,287
253,172

$3,012

$38'r,356

8,289

0

10,274

$100,000
10,000

150,000
25,000
25,000

0

$96,988
10,000

150,000
20,281
25,000

0

s1,218,644

121 ,711

525,000
364,726

$90,666$3,01
264

0

23,4344,7
0

0

2

0

0

7
0

0

0

57
0

0

0

0

3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P. IMPROVEMENTS
a Administration Building

1-6s01-44 r NMWD Headquarters Upgradet
o. Stafford Treatment Plant

1-6600-6e r Dam Concrete Repair (Apron)
'1-6600-e6 z Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair"
'1-6600-u 3 OtherTreatmentPlantlmprovements
r-6600-e2 ¿ SÏP-Chemical System Upgrades
1-6600-83 5 FÍlter Underdrain/Media R&R
1-6600-34 o STP-High Service Pump #3 Replacement

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

a. Tank Construction
r Old Ranch Rd ïank Replacement

b. Tank Rehabilitation
r Hydropneumat¡c Tank Repairs

c. Other Tank & PS lmprovements
r Lynwood PS Motor Control Center
z Crest PS/Relocate School Rd PS

$106,632 $3.019 $7,732 $310,000 $302,268 $1 14,364

$429,500 $129,416 $311,212 $3,475,000 $3,163,788 $740,711

2z,

0

0

19
0

0

0

157
0

0

0

0

50,000
r 75,000
50,000
75,000
20,000

0

50,000
172,843
50,000
75,000
20,000

0

$372,736

2,986

0
4,391

$'1,600,000

130,000

525,000
375,000

0

53,40r
0

68,996
12,002
17

$659,840

28,693

150,287
263,447

1-6207-20

1-7170-AO

1-6112-24

1-61 41-00



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I
l\¿ccôuntånls\fi nâncrals\stmM2\lcDm0921.f slDroreæ

COST THRU
JUNE 2021

SEPTEMBER
2021

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 21122

BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET
TOTAL
COSTDescr¡ n

1-6120-23 3 Trumbull PS/Repl Pump Flange
TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

5 RECYCLEDWATER
s-7162-04 t Replace Cl-Atherton Ave

a. Other Recycled Water Expenditures
s-7162-os 1 Caruash Retrofit-128 Vintage Way
s-7162-06 z Truck RW Load Expansion 2021

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER

6 VVEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM
2-6263-20 a. Replace PRE Tank #4A(25K Gal w/125K Gal)
2-660e-20 o. New Gallagher Well #2
2-Be2e-oo c. PB Replace in Sync w/County Paving
2-718s-ao o. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilizationa
2-as12-ao e. Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement
2-7200-ao f. Silver Hills Culvert Replacement

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
8-8672-28 a. lnfiltration Repair (Manhole Relining)
B-708s-0s b. Tahiti Way Lift Pump Replacement
B-7173-oo c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA"
B-7173-01 d. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-Grant Management
B-7'iee-oo e. Replace OM Generator

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

(Accrued)/Deferred
a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82'
b. NMWD Headquarters Upgrade'
c. Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization'
o. OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA"

510 0 5'10

s702.347 $386.622 $406,429 $2,630,000 s2.223.571 s1 ,108,777

U b 0 b

$0

1,151
26,033

s27 184

$50,000
50,000

0

0

$1 00 000

$0
631,000

50,000
4,000

400,000
0

$40,000
100,000

1,450,000
0

0

$0
(3,575,000)

(550,000)
(1,450,000)

$50,000
50,000
(1 ,151)

126.033)

s72 816

($r 3,661)
579,634
50,000

1,928
398,578

(638)

$8,650
100,000

1,448,852
(61e)

0

sn

$1,391,843
364,766

1,455
722,658

33,203
0

$2,513,925

$81,763
9,489

190,530
0
0

($33,062)
(42e,500)

0
(61,082)

s26 354

$49,958

$o
(129,416)

(2,073)
0

s27.184

$1 13,1 13

9,489
191,678

619
0

$0
0

0

0

$0
0

ct

$0
0

321
26,033 26.033

$4,1 88
42,935

0

2,073
124
638

$13,661
51,366

0

2,073
1,422

OJÕ

$1,405,504
416,132

1,455
724,730

34,625
oJ0

$69,1 59 $1 ,085,000 $1 ,01 5,841 $2,583,083

N)(¡

$0
0

0

186
0

$31,350
0

1,148
619

0

$281,782 $1 86 $33,117 $1,590,000 $1,556,883 $314,899

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES $5,082,128 8598,724 $900,617 $11,250,000 $10,199,383 9þp82115

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS

($8,1 45)
(311,212)

(2,073)
(861)

$8,145 (541 ,207)
(3,263,788) (740,711)

(547,928) (2,073)
(1,44e,139) (61,s44)

FUNDTNG By OTHERS (ACCRUEDyDEFERRED ($523,645) ($131 ,488) ($322,290) ($5,575,000) ($5.252,710) ($845,e3s)

Received
a.

b.

c.

d

MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Re¡mb-Segment 82'
NMWD Headquarters Upgrade'
Gallagher Ranch Streambank Stabilization"
OM Treatment Pond Rehab-404 Grant-FEMA"

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJ ECT EXPENDITURES

($120,684) $o $o $o $o ($120,684)

$0000$0$0
(411,398) 0 0 0 $0 ($411,398)
(86,060)ooo$o($86,060)

($618,142) $0 $0 $0 ($618,142) ($618,142)

$3,940,342 $467,236 $578,327 $5,675,000 $4,328,532 $4,518,669



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2I
tlaccountanb\inancrâlsbtñMZIc0ñ0921.f sl0rorecF

COST THRU

JUNE 2021

SEPTEMBER
2021

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 2'U22

BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET
TOTAL
cosTDescr¡Dtion

CIP SUMMARY-NET EXPENDITURES:
Novato Water
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

Net Capital lmprovement Proiect Outlays

Current Month FYTD Total
$392,811

26,354
47,885

I ¿1b

$459,946
27,184
67,086

FY 21t22
Budqet
$4,900,000

100,000
535,000

FYTD/
Budqet%

9Yo

27%
13%
23o/oJZ 256 140 000

$467,236 $586.472 $5,675,000 10

Notes to Caoital lmprovement Proiects Schedule:
(1) Funding provided 100% by Caltrans.
(2) $16.2M NMWD Headquarters Upgrade is proposed to be funded by 20 year 3.5% bank loan.
(3) Project developed as part of October 2017 Feasability Assessment prepared by Prunuske Chatham.
(4) Loan from Novato Water-As included in the 2021 WM Water rate study - to be paid with interest. Loan to occur in FY21 &FY22.
(5) OM Treatment Pond Rehab-Project to be funded al7ío/oby grants. Eligible project costs are budgeted at $2.2M (75%=$1.425M). Also includes loans for

capital projects of $250K in FY22.

7,649

w
o)

8%0007

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

$522,227
26,354
49,958

186

9%
27%
60/o

2%
Outl

CIP SUMMARY-GROSS EXPÊNDITURES:

000117

BudBFYTD TotalCurrent Month

mentlmGross

$8,475,000
100,000

1,085,000

9771,158
27,184
69,1 59

I1759992133

CONSU LTING SERVICES/STUDI ES

b. Potter Valley Project FERC Relicensing
c. Electronic Document Management System
d. Distr¡ct Boundary Election Map Review and Redraw
e. Cathodoc Protection Master Plan
f. Pump Eficiency Hydraulic Study
e. Stafford Dam EAP & lnundation Mapping Updates
f. Surplus Properties
g. Recycled Water Program Strategy
h, Emergency Operations Plan Update
i. Stafford Lake Watershed Sanitary Survey
j. 2020 Urban Water Management Plan
k. District Allocation of North Bay Reuse Authority Budget
L Financial Model Training
m. GASB 75 (OPEB) Disclosure Information Report

12,071
4,427

U

U

0
20,695

0
0

2,633
0

940
0
0

1,539
U

2,342
0

10J20
913

10,000
1,890

500

$225,000
5,000

60,000
40,000
20,000
25,000
l 0,000

0
5,000

0
0
n
n

0

$31 2

2,633
0

940
0
0
0
0

2,342
0

10,120
913

10,000
0

500

2,368
60,000
39,060
20,000
25,000

8,461
U

(2,342)
5,000

(10,120)
(e13)

(1 0,000)
(1,890)

14,703
4,427

940
0
U

22,234
0

2,342
0

10,120
91.218
10,000
3,885

Ia.

1-4050-01

6882.04

500

1-4085-00

1-7140-01

'1-4057-00

1-4077-00

90,305
0

I OOÃ



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel-RestrictedCash
Gonnection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new development.
These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the service area where
the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as expenditures are
incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance accrues interest
monthly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment Plant. The WRCRF
is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for Construction of
Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was signed by the District. The
September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended limiting the
reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanical equipment (including transmission
pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute's recommended 6%
interest rate factor and 25-year life, renders an annual funding requirement $115,000. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD) by
the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposited in this fund.
Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance Costs
do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes. A payment of $305,711 was made
to Novato Sanitary District in December 2019 for the Clearwell lmprovement Project.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits
interest to these funds quarterly.

STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
($1,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2O-year repayment period. Every
January 1 and July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits with the County 10% of the semi-
annual SRF payment. This Reserve Fund was fully funded at 6/30/19. The County credits the fund with
interest quarterly, which is applied to the semi-annual payments, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2
semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserye fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

RWS Gentral SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($275,773) prior to the
construction completion date.
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Note2-DesiqnatedGash

Liability Contingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $'1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it reached
a balance of $2 million. ln FY98 the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and builtup a
proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the reserve was made
available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted Housing Program. ln
August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation
Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans. Currently there is $525,000
in Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March 2005, $652,400 was expended
from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes Station. The home is currently
rented. ln 2006, $8,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in West Marin. The fund balance does
not accrue interest.

Workers'Compensation Fund: Commencing July 20'19, the District switched from self-insuring its
workers'compensation liability to 1't dollar workers'compensation insurance with Zenith lnsurance
Company. The premium for 1't dollar insurance is higher than staying with the SIR plan, but the risk of $1M
out of pocket costs is eliminated. ln FY22, the Worker's Comp Reserve Fund was reduced $23,440, the
amount of the one remaining claim filed when the District was self-insured, with the balance transferred to
Unrestricted Cash.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and
have a minimum of l2 years (for employees hired on or before September 30, 2018) and a minimum of 20
years (for employees hired after September 30, 2018) of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's
contribution toward the chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the
same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for
both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse
becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per
year ($319/month). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million for current retirees plus
$250,000 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board
directed staff to add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate
amortization of this liability. The accrualis maintained as a Long-Term Liability entitled TotalOPEB Liability.
ln 2021 an Actuarial Analysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $4.9 million. The Retiree Medical
Benefits cash fund earns interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds of
$671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.
Starting inFY21l22, this reserve was increased to $4.0 million based on the District's planned pay-go capital
spending per the 2020 Novato Water Rate Study and subsequent financial plans. Funds are borrowed from
the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance
does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financialadvisors, serves to ensure adequate working
capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. Funds are
borrowed from the operating Reserve Fund to offset the shortfall in unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned to
an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service territory
that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the District.
Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the Program.
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lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value occurring on
the purchased property. There are two employee-housing loans currently outstanding totaling $525,000: a
$250,000 loan dated March 2015, and a $275,000 loan dated June 2018.

Note 4 - Other Lonq Term Receivables

ln 2014, the District entered into an interconnection agreement with MMWD for their share of the Aqueduct
Energy Efficiency Project. The2.71%$3,622,882\oan will have yearly payments due of $205,320, and the
final payment is due in July 2032.|n 2015 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club
for their share of the pipeline extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course.
ln 20'16 the District received a $6.6 million 30-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Recycled Water Central
project, and Marin Country Club agreed to paythe District$1,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $8,142 at
1.0% over 30 years for their share of the pipeline extension. Marin Country Club also agreed to pay
$430,463 of the District's local share of the project in bimonthly payments of $8,242 over 10 years at2.B%,
which is the Novato Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin
Country Club's water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the l0 year loan in full in December 2018.
The final payment from Marin Country Club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047 .The Marin Country
Club also owes the District $189,402.89 in previously unbilled water receipts due to a recording error in
their 6" AMI meter. $89,990.87 of this amount was paid by Marin Country CIub in October 2020 and the
remaining balance due of $99,412.02 will be re-paid in $2,000 monthly installment payments and will be
paid in full March 2025.

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv
Aqueduct. .. . ..

Dam......
Buildings & Structures...
Mains...
Pumping Equipment...
Water Treatment Equipment,.
Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facilities...
Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations) . . . . .

Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment.
Vehicles 1 ton or greater...
All other vehicles......
Sewer Mains...
Sewer Pumps.

Note 6 - Ca lization Policv
The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Locat Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Life (Years)

150

100

40
50
25
20

50
50
10

10

5

40
'10
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Note 7 - Bqtd & Loan Servicinq Schedule for Fiscal Yea¡ 2021-2022

FY22

lssue
Date

Original Payment Final
Pmt

lnterest
Expense

Principal
Paid

6t30t22
Outstanding

Service Area Descriotion Rete Amount Due Balance

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

4 RWTP

5 RW North

6 RW South

7 RW Central

SRF Loan
STP

Bank
Loan

Mar¡n

Chase Bank
Loan

$16,528,850

$7,000,000

$4,600,000

7t1 & 1t1

2Tthlmo

3/1 & 9/1

7t1t29

10127t31

3t1t33

Novato Total

6t19t27

Varies

Varies

12t31t47

$ 1 75,634

$137,863

$103.027

$868,841

$344,1 79

$6,695,774

$3,847,238

$3,555,000

2004

2011

2018

2.39%

3.54Yo

2.69Vo s27 5,000

$416,524 $1,488,020 $14,097,832

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

2006

2013

2013

2016

2.4o/o

2.6%

2.2%

1.0o/o

$4,302,560

$4,375,605

$5,361,952

$7,1 30,503

6t20

Varies

Varies

12t19

$36,259

$71,561

$78,057

s64.S71

$237, r 08

$21 0,332

$254,349

$1,273,680

$2,542,002

$3,293,705

$6,286,299$21 802

Recycled Water Total $250,848 $912,591 $1 3,395,686

Bank
Loan

Marin
8 WM Water 2012 3.54% $'1 ,000,000 2Tthlmo 10127131

West Marin Water Total

$20,237 $50,522 $564,427

920,237 $50,522 $564,427

FY22 Total $687,609 $2,451,'133 $28,058,125

1. ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.39o/o 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of 9104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25o/o by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2O-year 3.54o/o (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note'15 below, and note to loan 9 above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a '1s-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation system Project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4% 2}-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,015 in
Construction Period lnterest, the loan principaltotaled $4,302,560. The projectwas completed in June
2007, and the first payment was made June 19, 2008.
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5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6% 20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
The projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

6. ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o
2}-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion project. The
projects were completed on September 4, 2013, and the first payment was made in Decembe r of 2013.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0o/o 3O-year loan of
$7,130,503 forthe Recycled WaterCentral ServiceArea Expansion. The projectwill be completed in
December 2017, and the first payment was made December 31,2018.

8. ln June 2012lhe Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and
the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. See note
to loan 2 above.

Note I - Unemplovment Insurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the District
reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid on our
behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount paid over
the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currenfly $4S0 x 52 = $23,400).

Note 9 - Pav roll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Sectionl2S payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - Interest Policv on lnter-District Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of thà
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of: 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.77% at6130121)', or 2. The average interest rate earñed on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period, plus $50 per month.

Note 1l - Auqmentations

Note 12 - Prior riod Adiustment

Note 13 - Explanation of Finan cial Statement Components

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Sources
and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash Flow by
Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides information
about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the District's
creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of the District is improving or deteriorating.
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The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses on
this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and comply
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and expenses
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and can be
used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees and
other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page g is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 28) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the Vehicle
Fleet Analysis (page 23), Equipment Expenditures (page 21) and Capital lmprovement project
Expenditures (page 25), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note l4 -Connecti on Fee Transfers from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expansion Local Share SRFRWF Expansion Transfer

North South Central NBVITRA Loan
BPGL Loan

SRFLoan Repayment CIP Total E)(ecuted
FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FY1 O

FY1 1

FY12

FY1 3

FY14

FY1 5

FY1 6

FY17

FYl 8

FY1 9

FYzO

FYz1

FY 22

$133,659

9233,478

$236,29 1

$o

$265,500

9723,525 $4,024

$17,sô3 ($4,024)

$0 $ô6,729

$362,524

$5,071 ,512

($2,168,755)

$5,499

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

922,755

fi22,795

$22,795

922,795

922,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$o

$464,572

$500,529

$ô14,299

$6'14,299

$614,299

$614,299

$890,072

$350,287 ($1,046,471)

$890,072

$216,362

$29,725

$73,273

$ 173,250

$231,652

$156,1 14

$637,656

$802,390

$1,550,200

$688,916

9806,664

$36,687 $1,230,940

$5,747,513
($1 ,248,e22)

$1,084 ($689,600)

$890,072

$29,725

$50,478

$150,455

$75,1 98

$ 133,319

$115,883

$31 5,023

$63,035

$38,283

9102,842

$194,636

$38,908

$6,966

$0

$133,659

$1,970,400

$'l,550,200

$688,91 6

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,5'13
(ç1 ,248,e22')

($68e,6oo)

$890,072

$133,659

$1,175,098

($7,088)

$802,390

$1,5s0,200

$688,916

$806,6ô4

$1,230,940

$s,747,51 3

($ 1 ,248,s22)
($ô8e,6oo)

$890,072

$3,337,s09 $1,314,751 $273,539 $5,769.089$603,428 $1.006.589
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MEMORANDUM

Item #8

November 12,2021To:

From:

Subject:

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Re-Authorizing - Meetings by Tel
Water District

of Legislative Bodies of North Marin

tlgm\bod misc 2021\boârd of directors mestings by taleconlerênce 11.12.2021 f¡nal.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION Adopt Resolution No. 21-XX: "Resolution Finding Proclaimed
State of Emergency, That Local Officials Continue to
Recommend Physical Distancing, and that Meeting in Person
Would Present lmminent Risks to the Health or Safety of
Attendees; and Re-Authorizing Meetings by Teleconference of
Legislative Bodies of North Marin Water Districtfrom November
16,2021 through December 16,2021 Pursuant to Brown Act
Provisions".

FINANCIAL IMPACT None

As authorized by the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20, Board meetings have been held

virtually over the past eighteen months to protect attendees, including members of public, District

employees, and Board members, from potentialexposure to the novel coronavirus disease 2019

('COVID-19"), On June 1 I ,2021, the Governor issued Executive Order N-08-21 which rescinded

these temporary modifications to the Brown Act, effective September 30, 2021. On September 16,

2021, the Governor signed Assembly Bill 361 (2021) ('AB 361") amending the Brown Act to allow

local legislative bodies to continue to conduct meetings virtually under specified conditions and

pursuant to special rules on notice, attendance, and other matters. AB 361 took full effect on

October I ,2021.

AB 361 authorizes the Board of Directors to meet virtually during declared states of

emergency without noticing the location of individual Board Members or requiring such locations to

be open to the public if certain findings are made and certain procedures are followed. Where a

virtual meeting is held pursuant to AB 361 , the members of the public must be able to observe and

participate during the meeting,

The Governor's March 4,202l declaration of a State of Emergency remains in effect and the

State currently requires masks for all unvaccinated individuals and recommends all vaccinated

individuals wear masks indoors. CDC, CaI/OSHA, and OSHA continue to recommend physical

distancing of at least six feet to protect against transmission of COVID-19. Marin County

Approved by GM

Date



Memo re Board of Directors Meetings by Teleconference
November 12,2021
Page 2 of 2

continues to recommend following CDC guidance on physical distancing as a layer of protection

against transmission of COVID-19. On September 29, 2021, Marin County Public Health

announced it has launched a COVID-19 booster dose vaccination clinic at Northgate Mall.

Therefore, the current circumstances support a determination by the Board that meeting in person

would continue to present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees.

On October 5,2021, the Board adopted Resolution 21-22, thereby finding a proclaimed

state of emergency, that local officials continue to recommend physical distancing, and that

meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and

authorizing meetings by teleconference of legislative bodies of North Marin Water District from

October 5,2021 through November 4,2021 pursuant to Brown Act provisions.

On November 2,2021, the Board adopted Resolution 21-26, thereby finding a proclaimed

state of emergency, that local officials continue to recommend physical distancing, and that meeting

in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and re-authorizing

meetings by teleconference of legislative bodies of Notlh Marin Water District from November 2,

2021 through December 2,2Q21 pursuant to the Brown Act provisions.

lf adopted, Resolution No. 21-XX will allow the Board to continue to meet virtually for another

30 days, after which the Board will need to reconsider its findings and confirm the need to hold

virtual meetings. This reconsideration and confirmation will need to occur every thirty days until the

Board determines it is safe to meet in person.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Adopt Resolution No.21-XX: "Resolution Finding Proclaimed State of Emergency, That

Local Officials Continue to Recommend Physical Distancing, and that Meeting in Person Would

Present lmminent Risks to the Health or Safety of Attendees; and Re-Authorizing Meetings by

Teleconference of Legislative Bodies of North Marin Water District from November 16, 2021

through December 16,2021 Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions".



RESOLUTION NO. 21.XX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
FINDING PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY, THAT LOCAL OFFICIALS

CONTINUE TO RECOMMEND PHYSICAL DISTANCING, AND THAT MEETING IN
PERSON WOULD PRESENT IMMINENT RISKS TO THE HEALTH OR SAFETY OF

ATTENDEES; AND RE.AUTHORIZING MEETINGS BY TELECONFERENCE OF
LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT FROM NOVEMBER 16,

2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 16, 2021 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS

WHEREAS, all meetings of the legislative bodies of the North Marin Water District
("District") are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act ("Brown Act"),
Government Code Section 54950, ef seq, and any member of the public may observe,
attend, and participate in the business of such legislative bodies; and

WHEREAS, on March 4,2020, Governor Newsom declared a State of Emergency as
a result of the rapid spread of the novel coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19"); and

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Marin
ratified proclamations of health and local emergency due to COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City Council of the City of Novato ratified and
confirmed a proclamation of localemergency due to COVID-19;

WHEREAS, on March 17,2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor
Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Brown Act in
order to allow local legislative bodies to conduct meetings telephonically or by other means,
after which District staff implemented virlual meetings for all meetings of legislative bodies
within the District; and

WHEREAS, on June 1 1, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21,
which terminated the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 that allows local legislative bodies
to conduct meetings telephonically or by other means effective September 30,2021; and

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361
(2021) ("AB 361"), which amended the Brown Act to allow local legislative bodies to continue
to conduct meetings by teleconference under specified conditions and pursuant to special
rules on notice, attendance, and other matters; and

WHEREAS, AB 361, pursuant to Executive Order N-15-21, took full effect on October
1, 2021, and makes provisions under Government Code section 54953(e) for remote
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(bX3), subject to the
existence of certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the
Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and

I



WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or, loÇal
officials have recommended, measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body
must find that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of
attendees; and

WHEREAS, on October 5,2021, the Board of Directors previously adopted Resolution
No. 21-22, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative bodies of North Marin
Water District ("District") to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and

WHEREAS, on November 2, 2021, the Board of Directors previously adopted
Resolution No.21-26, reaffirming the finding that the requisite conditions exist for the
legislative bodies of Nofth Marin Water District to continue to conduct remote teleconference
meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953; and

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section
54953 (e), the Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of
emergency that exists in the District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and

WHEREAS, emergency conditions continue to persist in the District, specifically, the
State of Emergency for the State of California declared by Governor Newsom as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC") and Marin
County continue to recommend physical distancing of at least six feet from others outside of
the household; and

WHEREAS, "Protecting Workers: Guidance on Mitigating and Preventing the Spread
of COVID-19 in the Workplace," promulgated by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration ("OSHA") under the United States Department of Labor, provides that
"[m]aintaining physical distancing at the workplace for [unvaccinated and at-risk] workers is an
important control to limit the spread of COVID-19" and recommends that employers train
employees about the airborne nature of COVID-19 and impoftance of exercising multiple
layers of safety measures, including physical distancing, and that employers implement
"physical distancing in all communal work areas for unvaccinated and othen¡rise at-risk
workers," including physical distancing from members of the public, as a "key way to protect
such workers"; and

WHEREAS, Title B, Section 3205, subdivision (c)(s)(D) of the California Code of
Regulations, promulgated by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health of the California
Depaftment of lndustrial Relations ("Ca|/OSHA"), requires employers to provide instruction to
employees on using a combination of "physical distancing, face coverings, increased
ventilation indoors, and respiratory protection" to decrease the spread of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the recommendations by state and
local officials to use physical distancing as a layer of protection against COVID-19 and desires
to continue to provide a safe workplace for its employees and a safe environment for the open
and public meetings of the District's legislative bodies; and

2



WHEREAS, due to the continued threat of COVID-19, the District continues to
implement multiple layers of protection against COVID-19, including physical distancing, for
the safety of employees and members of the public; and

WHEREAS, while the District believes District work-related activities may be
conducted safely in person through imposition of various safety protocols, Board meetings
continue to present a unique challenge due to their being open to the public generally, with
limited space in the boardroom, and no ability to verify vaccination status or to provide
contact tracing for potentially exposed individual attendees; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby finds that the presence of COVID-19 and
the increase of cases due to the Delta variant has caused, and will continue to cause,
conditions of concern to the safety of certain persons within the District, including older and
immunocompromised individuals that are likely to be beyond the control of the services,
personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and, therefore, continues to present
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, including members of the public and
District employees, should meetings of the District's legislative bodies be held in person;
and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of
Directors does hereby find that the legislative bodies of North Marin Water District shall
continue to conduct their meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b)
of Government Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and
that such legislative bodies shall continue to comply with the requirements to provide the
public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of
section 54953; and

WHEREAS, the District will continue to conduct meetings for all meetings of
legislative bodies within the District virtually (i.e. through the use of Zoom, or similar virtual
meeting provider) and/or telephonically, in conformance with requirements under the Brown
Act.

THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the North Marin
Water District as follows:

The above recitals are true and correct and hereby incorporated into this Resolution,

ln compliance with the special teleconference rules of Section 54953 of the
Government Code, as established by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), the Board of
Directors hereby makes the following findings:

The Board of Directors has considered the circumstances of the state of
emergency; and

The states of emergency, as declared by the Governor, , continue to impact
directly the ability of the District's legislative bodies, as well as staff and
members of the public, to safely meet in person;

The CDC, and Cal/OSHA continue to recommend physical distancing of at
least six feet to protect against transmission of COVID-19; and

1
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d Meeting in person would continue to present imminent risks to the health and
safety of members of the public, members of the District's legislative bodies,
and District employees due to the continued presence and threat of COVID-
19.

The District's legislative bodies may continue to meet remotely in compliance with
the special teleconference rules of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as
amended by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), in order to protect the health and safety of
the public.

The Board of Directors will review these findings and the need to conduct meetings
by teleconference within thirty (30) days of adoption of this resolution.

3
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I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the 16th day of November 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:

Theresa Kehoe, Secretary
North Marin Water District

t:\gm\bod misc 2021\resolution meetings by teleconferencê 11.12.2021 iinal.doc
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Item #9

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Stafford Lake Backfeeding -2022 ater Year
t:\gm\wâter shortaga 2O2l\lake backfooding bod momo 11.11.2021.doc

November 12,2021

RECOMMENDED ACTION

FINANCIAL IMPAGT:

Approve Backfeeding Russian River Water to Stafford Lake

Up to -$400 Per Acre-Foot

The District has been backfeeding Stafford Lake during dry year periods dating back to the

1976-1977 drought. ln the early years, the District incurred the extra costs for this operation. ln

more recent years during 2009-2018, MMWD paid the costs for backfeeding as it benefited their

operations. A summary of previous backfeeding events over the last 30 years is provided as

follows:

Year Back-Fed Amount (acre-feet)

2021 11 00

2018 130

2014 359

2009 348

I 99 1 1000

1 989 782

1 988 200

Historical cumulative rainfall in Novato is graphed in Attachment 1. As we know, lhe2021

water year (October 1- September 30) was the lowest rainfall year on record since 1916. Water

year 2022 rainfall to-date is off to a good start with October 2Q21 rainfall of 8.6 inches equaling the

total rainfall recorded last winter. However, we have no guarantees on how much additional rainfall

will occur this winter. Reservoir storage levels are low in both Stafford (Attachment 2) and Lake

Sonoma (Attachment 3), Lake Sonoma is particularly concerning as it closely hovering above

100,000 acre-feet which is the lowest level recorded since construction of Warm Springs Dam in

1983. lt is estimated that we need at least another 10+ inches of rainfall to fill Stafford Lake and

SCWA staff estimate they need at least 24 inches of rain to fill Lake Sonoma. Given the recent two-

year epic drought and low reservoir storage levels, it is recommended that we proceed to backfed



Stafford Lake Backfeeding
November 12,2021
Page 2

Stafford Lake on or about December 1 to take advantage of natural flows in the Russian River

(when they are available).

The backfeeding cost of approximately $400 per acre-foot is derived from the cost to pump

SCWA water into Stafford Lake plus the marginal cost to re-treat SCWA water stored in Stafford

Lake. Obviously, there is a risk that the benefit of backfeeding water into Stafford Lake could be

negated if more winter rains result in filling and overflow at Stafford Lake. To minimize this risk, we

will try to manage backfeeding operation in concert with actual rainfall events. ln the end, it is my

belief that it is prudent to move forward with backfeeding now rather than waiting a couple of months

in the "hope" that more rainfallwill come.

RECOMMENDATION

Board authorize backfeeding of Russian River water into Stafford Lake on or about December

1,2021.
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Item #10

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors November 12,2021

From: Julie Blue, Auditor/Co nlroller)þ
Subj: Consulting Services Agreement for Drought Surcharge Study with Hildebrand Consulting

t:\ac\board reportJ\board memos\2021\dróught surcharga study\drought surcharge study - th¡rd pârty contract - 1 1 16.docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with

Hildebrand Consulting to conduct a Drought Surcharge Study

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Not to exceed 929,440

Backsround

During water shortage events, drought surcharges are implemented for the Novato Water

Service Area and the West Marin Service Area whenever mandatory reductions in water use are

triggered under the District's Water Shortage Contingency Plans. These surcharges are designed

to mitigate the loss in revenue resulting from decreased water sales during droughts. Earlier this

year, the District's rate consultant (Hildebrand Consulting) found that the current drought

surcharges do not generate sufficient revenue to cover the financial deficit created by decreased

water sales during a 20o/o mandatory reduction in use.

Obiective

The objective of the Drought Surcharge Study is to develop rates that are fair and equitable

and to ensure that the District's drought surcharge rates comply with California Constitution Article

Xlll D, Section 6 (commonly referred to as Proposition 218). Additionally, recent state legislation

(Senate B¡ll 606) requires that California water utilities develop contingency plans to address

water shortage events. SB 606 also requires the water utility to provide a description of the

financial consequences, and responses for, drought conditions, including revenue reductions,

expense increases due to response measures, mitigation actions in response to revenue

reductions, and a description of the cost of compliance with annual water supply and demand

assessments. lt will likely be beneficial to examine the structure of the drought surcharges in light

of the District's recent update to its Urban Water Management Plan and Water Shortage

Contingency Plan for the Novato Service Area earlier this year.

Consultant Selection

Hildebrand Consulting (Oakland, CA) has provided water rate setting and related services

to public agencies throughout northern California. Mark Hildebrand, the sole proprietor of

Hildebrand Consulting, recently provided professional expertise during the course of the District's

rate study for the Novato Water, Recycled Water, and West Marin Service Areas. Throughout
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November 11,2021
Page 2 o'f 2

each study he communicated clearly with Staff, the Board, and members of the public, and

provided thorough and substantive reports.

Scope of Work

Hildebrand's proposed scope of work is included as Attachment 1. The scope of work is

divided into five tasks listed þelow:

1. Water Shortage Financial Analysis

2. Drought Surcharge Structure Analysis

3. Report and21B Notice

4. Presentations

5. As-Needed Financial Planning and Rate Setting Services

The total fee for these tasks is estimated at a maximum of $29,440. The cost of this study

and as needed services will be expended through the Consulting/Services and Studies budget as

approved in the FY 21122 Budget.

Schedule

Any modifications to the drought surcharges will be proposed through the Prop 218 notification

process to be mailed out in the Spring of 2022. The analysis will begin in December 2021 to be

concluded in January 2022. The results of the study will be presented at one of the regularly

scheduled board meetings in February 2022.

RECOMM NDATION:

Authorize the General Manger to execute an agreement between Hildebrand Consulting,

and the Distriet for a Drought Surcharge Study for the Novato Service Area and the West Marin

Service Area with a not to exceed limit of ç29,440.
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Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA 94945

Subject: Proposal for the North Marin Water District 2022 Drought Surcharge Study

Dear Ms. Blue,

ln response to your request, Hildebrand Consulting, LLC. is pleased to submit this proposalto
the North Marin Water District (NMWD or District) to conduct a Drought Surcharge Study for
both the Novato Water service area and the West Marin Water service area.

During a water shortage event the District is impacted by a number of financial changes:

1) Rate revenue decreases due to the decrease in water sales.

2) Some operating costs decrease due to the decrease in water deliveries, including
wholesale water purchases, electricity (for pumping), and chemicals (for treatment).

3) Some operating costs may increase, namely the cost of the District's conservation
program.

ln the case of the District, the reduction in water sales revenue is more significant than the
reduction in operating costs, which results in a net financial deficit for the District. Drought
surcharges are designed to partially (or completely) mitigate that financial deficit, The District's

existing Drought Surcharges are designed to be overlaid on then-current Water Quantity
(usage) rates during the period of time that a water shortage is declared by the District's Board.

The surcharges are temporary and affect onlythe Quantity Rate and notthe fixed Service

Charge. The District has separate Drought Surcharge policies for the Novato Water service

area and for the West Marin Water service area.

An earlier study this year demonstrated that the District's current Drought Surcharges only result
in partial mitigation of the financial shortfall created by water shortage events (i.e., the
surcharges do not generate revenues that exceed the cost of providing service). The study
estimated that the financial deficit for the Novato Water enterprise during a 20 percent water
shortage event would be approximately $Z+S thousand. Such a deficit will occur despite the
implementation of the Drought Surcharge, which would mitigate the financial shortfall by about

SB0+ thousand, For the West Marin Water enterprise, the financial deficit will be approximately

S64 thousand, despite approximately $g0 thousand in additional revenue from the Drought
Surcharge.
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Recent state legislation (Senate Bill 606) requires that California water utilities develop

contingency planes with "six standard water shortage levels corresponding to progressive ranges

of up to 10,20,30, 40, and 50 percent shortages and greater than 50 percent shortage." SB 606

further requires a description of the financial consequences of, and responses for, drought
conditions, including revenue reductions, expense increases due to response measures,

mitigation actions in response to revenue reductions, and a description of the cost of compliance

with annual water supply and demand assessments.

An update to the District's current Drought Surcharges may be beneficialto align the surcharges

with the District's Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). The update would also examine
potential changes to the surcharge structure, such as decreasing tier allocations rather than

increasing q uantity cha rges.

The study will be conducted for both Novato Water and West Marin Water.

The proposed scope of work for this study includes the following

Task 1 - Water Shortaee Financial Analvsis

This task will involve conducting a water shortage financial analysis for both service areas. We

will leverage the financial plan models that were developed as part of the recent water rate

studies. We will evaluate the financial impact of reduced water sales, including estimating

changes in both revenue and expenses) associated with each stage of shortage. The analysis will
consider establishing various surcharges that align with the District's Water Shortage

Contingency Plan.

Task 2 - Droueht Surcharge Structure Analvsis

ln this task we will review various options for structuring the drought surcharges. This may

include percent increases to the Water Quantity charge or other options, such as tier allocation

red uctions.

Task 3 - Report and 218 Notice

The analysis and recommendations will be described in narrative and exhibits in a draft report. A
final report will be produced based on suggested edits from District staff, We will also provide

draft language to be incorporated into the District'Prop 218 notice (the Prop 218 notice will be

primarily developed bythe District as a separate task for rate adjustmentto Novato Water and

West Marin Water).

Task 4 - Presentations

We will present the study recommendations to the District Board at up to three (3) separate

meetings.

Page2 of 4
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Task 5 - As-Needed Services

The District occasionally requests support services that are related to the various rate studies
that Hildebrand Consulting has conducted for the District over the past 2 years. Such services
include modeltraining, financial plan updates, interagency agreement support, and other related
activities. This Task 5 establishes a budget of 22 hours (55,060) for such on-call services.

Project Consultants

Mark brings over 20 years of experience as a consultant to municipal governments and provides
a broad range of financial, utility rate, and management consulting services. He has performed
hundreds of studies covering a diverse range of cost allocation issues, financial planning, business
case evaluations, and litigation avoidanceto more than sixtyclients, He has been published and

frequently speaks on topics such as water rate-setting under the requirements of Proposition
21-8, cost-of-service principles, emerging regulatory issues, and strategic business planning. He

is dedicated to providing clients with an exceptional level of service and responsiveness, to
developing creative yet practical solutions to client needs, and to broadening understanding and
facilitating consensus on complex issues.

Cost Estimote

The estimated cost to perform the above scope of services is 529,440, including the optional (as-

needed) Task 5. This budget assumes that the Board meetings will be held in person,

It is our practice to bill clients monthly for actual time. We have not anticipated any billable
expenses for this project. Mark Hildebrand's hourly billing rate is $230.

Tosk I

Tosk 2

Tosk 3

Tosk 4

Tosk 5

Woter Shorfoge Finonciol Anolysis

Drought Surchorge Structure Anolysis

Report ond 2lB Notice
PresenTotions (3)

As-Need Consulting Services

24

28

24

JU

22

$5,s20

$6,440

$s,520

$ó,e00

$s,oóo

Iotolfor Þrought Surchorge Sfudy:
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Schedule

We understand that the District wishes to include any modifications to the drought surcharges

on the Proposition 218 notice that will be issued in the spring of 2022. As such, we will work with
the District to complete our analysis by late January and make our presentations to the Board in

February and March.

Proposalto the North Marin Water District
Drought Surcharge Study

*(* {t * ,lr

Hildebrand Consulting appreciates the opportunity to be of service to the North Marin Water
District. Please let me know if you would like to discuss any aspect of this proposal or the planned

project in greater detail.

Sincerely,

rk Hildebrand
Hildebrand Consulting, LLC

mhildebrand@hildco.com
510-316-0621(m)
www, hildebra ndconsu lting.com

Page 4 of 4





To:

From:

Item #11

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors November 12,2021

Tony Williams, Assistant General Manager/Chief Engineer$d
Subject: Approve - Consulting Services Agreements with West Yost Associates, GHD, and

EKI Environment & Water
R1NON JOB No ISSUES\Consuttânts\2021-23 Grant Support\BoD Memo\Grant Support Genêral Services Contrâct Award BOD Memo.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Board authorize General Manager to execute agreements with
West Yost Associates, GHD and EKI Environment & Water.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $200,000 each for a total amount of $600,000 (included in
FY22 and FY23 CIP Budgets)

Background

The District has historically relied on consultant services via qualified engineering and

other professional services firms to assist with the planning, engineering support and design of

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) or special studies to supplement in-house staff.

Considering existing and future grant funding opportunities from state and federal resources,

assistance is needed to ensure timely and effective applications as well as tracking and

evaluating available opportunities. ln early October 2021, staff prepared and issued a Request

for Qualifications (RFO) for grant funding support services for both state and federal funding.

The RFQ included a comprehensive scope of potential services beyond grant application

stage of a project, including: 1) identifying grant opportunities applicable to specific CIP projects;

2) preliminary or conceptual design, including equivalent level cost estimates for purposes of

grant applications; 3) benefit-cost analysis (BCA); 4) preparation of detailed plans and

specifications (contract documents); 5) assistance during bidding; 6) engineering services

during construction; 7) construction management and inspection services; and 8) grant

management, including administration and reporting. The RFQ identified minimum qualifications

including company experience, key staff experience, and knowledge and experience various

state and federal grants, including the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

Hazard Mitigation Assistance grants.

The RFQ was posted electronically on eBidboard (a web-based bid management

service) on October 1,2021and the advertisement closed on October 22. Three firms returned

responsive qualifications packages on the due date and are summarized as follows:

FIRM NAME LOCATION
West Yost Associates
GHD
EKI Environment & Water

Davis, CA
Santa Rosa, CA

Daly City, CA



Consultant Services Agreements BOD Memo
November 12,2021
Page 2 of 3

Selection Process

A selection committee, consisting of Tim Fuette, Ryan Grisso, and myself, participated in

the review of the qualifications submitted by each firm. The qualifications of each firm were

ranked separately by each committee member against the following selection criteria and

numerical points value:

25 points
30 points

(15 points)
m iance 5 ints

Total Possible 100 points

Upon completion of the proposal review, all three firms had comparable high scores

ranging from 89 to 85 total points. All three firms were ranked high because they demonstrated

the required experience, and qualified staff. Additionally, since the RFQ included a wide range

of potential services, each firm demonstrated specific strengths and capabilities in various

areas.

Staff recommends entering into general services consulting agreements with each firm

on a task-by-task basis for a total not to exceed amount of $200,000 through June 30, 2023 ('for

a total authorization of $600,000). Attached are the draft agreements with each firm to provide

the necessary grant funding support and related engineering services, each with a not to

exceed limit of $200,000 (Attachments 1 - 3). Actual work will be approved based on negotiated

task orders to the appropriate consultant on the basis of the grant funding or project

requirements, firm's expertise and experience and availability of resources. The District staff

will strive to avoid any conflicts or prohibitions for certain grants such as 2 C.F.R. Part 200

related to many federal grants as well as Government Code Section 1090.

This contracting approach will allow for efficient and effective pursuit of available grant

funding opportunities as well as executing approved CIP projects regardless of grant funding

status, As previous stated, the District has historically relied on outside consultants to

supplement in-house resources and currently the Engineering Depadment has 12 active

general services agreements in place for a range of services. The proposed three new

agreements will eventual replace some of these existing agreements as they approach the end

of their performance period and expire,

Financial lmpact

The Engineering staff has identified multiple CIP projects that could be eligible for

various known grant opportunities or potentially the pending federal lnfrastructure Bill. Current

Firm's Qualifications and Experience
Project Team Organization
State and Federal Funding Experience
Standard Rate Schedule

25 points )

)

)
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FY22 approved projects and future projects that may utilize these task order services include,

but are not limited to:

Novato Service Area
Leveroni Creek Embankment - Stafford Access Road Resiliency
Stafford Dam Concrete APron

Stafford Dam Concrete Apron Overlay
Crest Pump Station
Hydro-Pneumatic Systems RePair
Pressure Reducing Stations Flood Mitigation
NMWD Headquarters Upgrade Emergency Power
Critical Pump Station Emergency Power
Other Main Replacements
San Marin Aqueduct Valve Pit Modifications
Local Water Supply Enhancement Study (top alternative)

Recycled Water
Various lmprovements
System Expansion

West Marin
Lagunitas Creek Bridge PiPeline
Olema Creek Bridge Pipeline
Gallagher Well No. 2 Construction
Miscellaneous Water System lmprovements

Oceana Marin
TahitiWay Lift Station Emergency Power
Sewer Force Main lmprovements

E MMENDATI

Board authorize General Manager to execute consulting services agreements with West

Yost Associates, EKI Environment & Water, and GHD with a not to exceed limit of $200,000

each through June 30,2023.



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

The following is an agreement between North Marin Water District, hereinafter'NMWD",
and West Yost Associates, hereinafter, "Gonsultant"'

WHEREAS, Consultant is a duly qualified consulting firm, experienced in state and federal
grant applications, planning and engineering services related to water and wastewater facilities.

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of the NMWD, it is necessary and desirable

to employ the services of the Consultant provide grant funding support services and related

engineering design and construction management consulting services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties

hereto agree as follows:

PART A.- SPECIFIC PROVISIONS:

1. DEScRtpTtON OF SERVICES AND PAYMENT: Except as modified in this

agreement, the services to be provided and the payment schedule are:

a. The scope of work and fee amount covered by this agreement shall be that specified

on a task bY task basis.

b. The fee for the work shall be on a time and expense (T & E) basis utilizing the fee

schedule included in Attachment A of this agreement and shall not exceed $200,000
without prior written authorization by NMWD'

PART B -- GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION: Except as above, neither party hereto shall assign,

sublet or transfer any interest in or duty under this agreement without written consent of the other,

and no assignment énatt be of any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall

have so consented.

Z. STATUS OF CONSULTANT: The parties intend that the Consultant, in performing the

services hereinafter specified, shall act as an independent contractor and shall have the control of the

work and the manner in which it is performed. The Consultant is not to be considered an agent or

employee of NMWD, and is not entitled to participate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus or similar

benefits NMWD provides its employees.

g. ¡NDEMNIFICATION: NMWD is relying on the professional ability and training of the

Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this agreement. The Consultant hereby warrants

that all its work will be pedormed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and

standards, as welt as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood

that neither acceptance of the Consultant's work by NMWD nor Consultant's failure to perform shall

operate as a waiver or release.

a. With respect to design professional services provided under this agreement, Consultant

shall assume the defense of and defend NMWD, its directors, officers, agents, and

employees in any action at law or in equity to the extent that liability is claimed or alleged

to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to, either directly or indirectly, the intentional or willful

misconduct, recklessness, or negligent act, error, or omission of Consultant (or any person

or organization for whom Consultant is legally liable) in the performance of the activities

neceésary to perform the services for District and complete the task provided for herein.
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ln addition, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, and release NMWD, its directors,
officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all actions, claims, damages,
disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs, that may be asserted
by any person or entity including the Consultant, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to,

or relating to, the negligent acts, errors or omissions, recklessness, or intentional or willful
misconduct of the Consultant (or any consultant or subcontractor of Consultant) in

connection with the activities necessary to perform the services and complete the task
provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence orwillful misconduct
of NMWD.

b. With respect to all services other than design professional services provided under this
agreement, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend NMWD, its
agents and employees from and against any and all actions, claims, damages,
disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs that may be

asserted by any person or entity, including the Consultant, arising out of or in
connection with the activities necessary to perform those services and complete the
tasks provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of NMWD.

This indemnification is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of
damages or compensation payable by or for the NMWD or its agents under workers' compensation
acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

4. PROSECUTION OF WORK: The execution of this agreement shall constitute the

Consultant's authority to proceed immediately with the performance of this contract. Th work will be

specified on a task by task basis. Performance of the services hereunder shall be completed by June
30,2023, provided, however, that if the performance is delayed by eadhquake, flood, high water or
other Act of God or by strike, lockout or similar labor disturbance, the time for the Consultant's
performance of this contract shall þe extended by a number of days equal to the number of days the

Consultant has been delayed.

5. METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING
PAYMENTS: All notices, bills and payment shall be made in writing and may be given by personal

delivery or by mail. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail should be addressed as follows:

North Marin Water District
P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948
Attention: Tony Williams

Consultant:
West Yost Associates
1001 Galaxy Way, Suite 310
Concord, CA94520
Attention: Polly Boissevain, PE, Vice President

and when so addressed, shall be deemed given upon deposit in the United States Mail, postage prepaid.

ln all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be deemed given at the time of actual delivery.

Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and payments

are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph.

6. MERGER: This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement
between the parlies hereto with respect to the included terms of the agreement, pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856 and as a complete and exclusive statement of the
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terms of the agreement. No modification of this agreement shall be effective unless and until such
modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties'

7. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this agreement is intended to be severable. lf any

term of any provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid

for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this agreement and shall not affect

the validity of the remainder of the agreement.

g. TERMINATION: At any time and without cause the NMWD shall have the right in its
sole discretion, to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant. ln the event of

such termination, NMWD shall pay the Consultant for services rendered to such date.

9. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS/OWNERSHIP OF DATA: The Consultant assigns to

NMWD all rights throughout the work in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, and

right to ideas, in and to all versions of any plans and specifications, reports and document now or

later prepared by the Consultant in connection with this contract.

The Consultant agrees to take such actions as are necessary to protect the rights

assigned to NMWD in this agreement, and to refrain from taking any action which would impair those

righté. The Consultant's responsibilities under this contract will include, but not be limited to, placing

pioper notice of copyright on all versions of any plans and specifications, reports and documents as

NMWD may direct, and refraining from disclosing any versions of the reports and documents to any

third party without first obtaining written permission of NMWD. The Consultant will not use, or permit

another to use, any plans and specifications, reporls and document in connection with this or any

other project without first obtaining written permission of NMWD.

All materials resulting from the effofts of NMWD and/or the Consultant in connection with

this project, including documents, reports, calculations, maps, photographs, computer programs,

computér printouts, Olgitat data, notes and any other pertinent data are the exclusive propedy of NMWD.

Re-use of these materials by the Consultant in any manner other than in conjunction with activities

authorized by NMWD is prohibited without wriüen permission of NMWD.

Consultant shall deliver requested materials to NMWD in electronic format including

but not limited to engineering calculations, plans (AutoCad, current edition) and specifications (MS

Word, current edition).

10. COST DISCLOSURE: ln accordance with Government Code Section 7550, the

Consultant agrees to state in a separate portion of any report provided NMWD, the numbers and

amounts of all contracts and subcontractors relating to the preparation of the report,

11. NONDISCRIMINAT¡ON: The Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state

and local laws, rules and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race,

color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, maritalstatus, age, medical condition or physical handicap'

12. EXTRA (CHANGED) WORK: Extra work may be required. The Consultant shall not

proceed nor be entitled to reimbursement for extra work unless it has been authorized, in writing, in

ãdvance, by NMWD. The Consultant shall inform the District as soon as it determines work beyond the

scope of this agreement may be necessary and/or that the work under this agreement cannot be

completed for thè amount specified in this agreement. Said review shall occur before consultant incurs

7S% of the total fee approved for any phase of the work. Failure to notify the District shall constitute

waiver of the Consultant's right to reimbursement.

R:\NON JOB No ISSUES\Consultantsuo2l -23 Grant Support\Agreemênts\West Yost consultant services agmt docx

3 Rev'd Nov 2, 2018



13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Consultant covenants that it presently has no
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of its services hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that in the
performance of this contract no person having any such interest shall be employed.

14. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the consultant, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

Minimum Scope of lnsurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability coverage

2. Automobile Liability

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. Architects' and
engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability.

Minimum Limits of lnsurance

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations.): $1,000,000 per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and properly damage. lf Commercial General
Liability lnsurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general

aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecVlocation or the general aggregate limit

shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation lnsurance: as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability, $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Verification of Goverage
Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and amendatory endorsements

effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved bv the District before work commences. The District reserves the right to require at any
time complete and certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shallfurnish separate

ceñificates and for each subcontractor to the District review and anoroval Ail

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein

Self-l nsured Retentions

Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option
of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects
the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall provide a
financial guarantee satisfactory to the District (such as a surety bond) guaranteeing payment of
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.
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Other lnsurance Provisions

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by or on behalf of the Consultant.

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and

shall not contriþute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thitty (30) days' prior written notice by

ceÉified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.

Acceptability of lnsurers

lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll.

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Any dispute or claim in law or equity between District and

Consultant arising out of this agreement, if not resolved by informal negotiation between the parties,

shall be mediated by referring it to the nearest office of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services,

lnc. (JAMS) for mediation. Mediation shall consist of an informal, non-binding conference or

conferences between the parties and the judge-mediator jointly, then in separate caucuses wherein

the judge will seek to guide the parties to a resolution of the case. lf the parties cannot agree to
mutually acceptable member from the JAMS panel of retired judges, a list and resumes of available

mediators numbering one more than there are parties will be sent to the parties, each of whom will

strike one name leaving the remaining as the mediator. lf more than one name remains, JAMS

arbitrations administrator will choose a mediator from the remaining names. The mediation process

shall continue until the case is resolved or until such time as the mediator makes a finding that there
is no possibility of resolution.

At the sole election of the District, any dispute or claim in law or equity between District

and Consultant arising out of this agreement which is not settled through mediation shall be decided

by neutral binding arbitration and not by court action, except as provided by California law for judicial

review of arbitration proceedings. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of

JudicialArbitration Mediation Services, lnc. (JAMS). The parties to an arbitration may agree in writing

to use different rules and/or arbitrators.

t6. BILL¡NG AND DOCUMENTATION: The Consultant shall invoice NMWD for work
performed on a monthly basis and shall include a summary of work for which payment is requested.

The invoice shall state the authorized contract limit, the amount of invoice and total amount billed to

date. The summary shall include time and hourly rate of each individual, a narrative description of

work accomplished, and an estimate of work completed to date.

17. REASONABLE ASSURANGES: Each party to this agreement undertakes the

obligation that the other's expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired. When
reasonable grounds for insecurity arise, with respect to performance of either party, the other may,

in writing, demand adequate assurance of due peformance and until the requesting party receives

such assurance may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed

return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes not only the conduct of the party

with respect to performance under this agreement but also conduct with respect to other agreements
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with parties to this agreement or others. After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within a

reasonable time, noi to exceed 30 days, such assurance of due performance as is adequate under

the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this agreement. Acceptance of any

improper detivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved pady's right to demand

adequate assurance of future performance.

18. pREVAtLtNG WAGE REQUIREMENTS: Prevailing Wage Rates apply to all

Consultant personnel performing work under the Agreement for which wage determinations have

been made by the Director of lndustrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Sections 1770-
1782,. Consultant shall comply with all applicable prevailing wage labor code requirements.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
..NMWD''

Dated Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES
''CONSULTANT''

Dated
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I^/EST Æ YOST
Woler Ëngineered.

2022 Billing Rate Schedule
(Effective January L,ZO22 through December 3I,20221*

Principal/Vice President 5318

Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / ll 5272 I 528e

Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / ll 52Os I 5224

Engineering Aide $gs

Administrative I / ll I lll I lV s86/s1os/ $130/5144

Engineering Tech Manager I / ll 5313 / $31s

Senior Tech Specialist I / ll 5263 / 5z7s

GIS Analyst $22s

TechnicalAnalystl/ll Stzo / $1.44

Cross-Connection Control Specialist I I ll / lll / lV Srzs¡5736/ 5ts2/5170

CAD Designer l/ ll $147 / $166

Senior Construction Manager $Eo¿

Resident lnspector (Prevailing Wage Groups 4 I 3 I 2 I I) 5rc2¡5180/ S2o1 /$zoe

CM Administrative l/ ll $7s / $106

w Hourly rates include Technology and Communlcatìon charges such as general and CAD computer, software,

telephone, routine in-house copies/prints, postage, miscellaneous supplies, and other incldental project expenses.

W Outside Services such as venc1or reproductions, prints, shippìng, and major West Yost reproduction efforts, as well as

Engineering Supplies, etc, will be billed at actualcost plus 15%

w The Federal Mileage Rate will be usecl for mileage charges and will be based on the Federal Mileage Rate applicable to

when the mileage costs were incurred. Travel other than mlleage will be billed at cost.

K subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 1-0%.

Äl Expertwitness,research,technical review,analysls,preparationandmeetingsbilledatl5O%ofstandardhourlyrates.Expert

witness testimony and deposìtions billed at 2OO% of standard hourly rates.

ffit A Fìnance Charge of 1..5% per month (an Annual Rate of tB%\ on the unpaid balance will be added to invoice amounts

if not paìd within 45 days from the date of the invotce.

+ This schedule is updated annually Page 1 of 2



e#$Æ
2022 B¡ll¡ng Rate Schedule
(Effective January L,2022 through December 3t,20221*

Equipment Charges

WEST ß YOST
Woter. [:ngíneerecl .

2" Purge Pump & Control Box 5270 / day

Gas Detector 5so / day

Hydrant Pressure Gauge $10 / day

Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Standard

ì!.Þ,!iùi'f.lqù;.Pi.ùnnþreÞñ!ipiS¡'.rr,:rltr:,::.*;.::.:l.::,i r

Powers Water Level Meter

iÍè-.e¡¡¡ín;y.i,t! Uy,.ei.. ,'....:,,r,ij1i'.':]1|,l,'''.r.':::1,, . . ..,,.,..,,...,
Stainless Steel Wìre per foot

S4o I day

532 / day

50.03 / day

Sump Pump $24 I day

Trimble GPS - Geo 7x $220 I day

Turbidity Meter

Water Flow Probe Meter

Water Quality Multimeter

522 / day

520 I day

$18s / day

+ This schedule is updated annually Page 2 of 2



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

The following is an agreement between North Marin Water District, hereinafter "NMWD",

and GHD, lnc., hereinafter, "Consultant".

WHEREAS, Consultant is a duly qualified consulting firm, experienced in state and federal
grant applications, planning and engineering services related to water and wastewater facilities.

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of the NMWD, it is necessary and

desirable to employ the services of the Consultant provide grant funding support services and

related environmental, engineering and construction management consulting services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties

hereto agree as follows:

PART 4.. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS:

1. DESCRTPTION OF SERVICES AND PAYMENT: Except as modified in this

agreement, the services to be provided and the payment schedule are:

a. The scope of work and fee amount covered by this agreement shall be that specified
on a task by task basis.

b. The fee for the work shall be on a time and expense (T & E) basis utilizing the fee

schedule included in Attachment A of this agreement and shall not exceed $200,000
without prior written authorization by NMWD.

PART B -- GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. ASS¡GNMENT/DELEGATION: Except as above, neither party hereto shall assign,

sublet or transfer any interest in or duty under this agreement without written consent of the other,

and no assignment shall be of any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other pady shall

have so consented.

2. STATUS OF CONSULTANT: The parties intend that the Consultant, in performing the

services hereinafter specified, shall act as an independent contractor and shall have the control of the

work and the manner in which it is performed. The Consultant is not to be considered an agent or

employee of NMWD, and is not entitled to parlicipate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus or similar

benefits NMWD provides its employees.

3. INDEMNIFICATION: NMWD is relying on the professional ability and training of the

Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this agreement. The Consultant hereby warrants

that all its work will be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and

standards, as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being understood

that neither acceptance of the Consultant's work by NMWD nor Consultant's failure to perform shall

operate as a waiver or release.

a. With respect to design professional services provided under this agreement, Consultant

shall assume the defense of and defend NMWD, its directors, officers, agents, and

employees in any action at law or in equity to the extent that liability is claimed or alleged

to arise out of, perlain to, or relate to, either directly or indirectly, the intentional or wilful
misconduct, recklessness, or negligent act, error, or omission of Consultant (or any person

or organization for whom Consultant is legally liable) in the performance of the activities

neceisary to peform the services for District and complete the task provided for herein.
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ln addition, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, and release NMWD, its directors,

officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all actions, claims, damages,

disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs, that may be asseded

by any person or entity including the Consultant, to the extent arising out of, pertaining to,

oi relating to, the negligent acts, errors or omissions, recklessness, or intentional or willful

misconduct of the Consultant (or any consultant or subcontractor of Consultant) in

connection with the activities necessary to perform the services and complete the task

provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful misconduct

of NMWD.

b. With respect to all services other than design professional services provided under this

agreement, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend NMWD, its

agents and employees from and against any and all actions, claims, damages,
disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs that may be

asserted by any person or entity, including the Consultant, arising out of or in

connection with the activities necessary to perform those services and complete the

tasks provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful

misconduct of NMWD.

This indemnification is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of

damages or compensation payable by or for the NMWD or its agents under workers' compensation

acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

4. pROSECUTION OF WORK: The execution of this agreement shall constitute the

Consultant's authority to proceed immediately with the performance of this contract. Th work will be

specified on a task by task basis. Performance of the services hereunder shall be completed by June

3ß,2023, provided, however, that if the performance is delayed by earthquake, flood, highwateror
other Act of God or by strike, lockout or similar labor disturbance, the time for the Consultant's
performance of this contract shall be extended by a number of days equal to the number of days the

Consultant has been delaYed.

5. METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING
pAyMENTS: All notices, bills and payment shall be made in writing and may be given by personal

delivery or by mail. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail should be addressed as follows:

North Marin Water District
P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948
Attention: TonY Williams

Consultant:
GHD, lnc.
2235lVlercury Way, Suite 150
Santa Rosa, CA 95407
Attention: Theodore B. Whiton, PE, Vice President

and when so addressed, shall be deemed given upon deposit in the United States Mail, postage prepaid.

ln all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be deemed given at the time of actual delivery.

Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and payments

are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph'

6. MERGER: This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement

between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms of the agreement, pursuant to

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856 and as a complete and exclusive statement of the
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terms of the agreement. No modification of this agreement shall be effective unless and until such
modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties.

7. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this agreement is intended to be severable. lf any
term of any provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid
for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this agreement and shall not affect
the validity of the remainder of the agreement.

8. TERMINATION: At any time and without cause the NMWD shall have the right in its
sole discretion, to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant. ln the event of
such termination, NMWD shall pay the Consultant for services rendered to such date.

9. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS/OWNERSHIP OF DATA: The Consultant assigns to
NMWD all rights throughout the work in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent, and
right to ideas, in and to all versions of any plans and specifications, reports and document now or
later prepared by the Consultant in connection with this contract.

The Consultant agrees to take such actions as are necessary to protect the rights
assigned to NMWD in this agreement, and to refrain from taking any action which would impair those
rights. The Consultant's responsibilities under this contract will include, but not be limited to, placing
proper notice of copyright on all versions of any plans and specifications, repods and documents as
NMWD may direct, and refraining from disclosing any versions of the reports and documents to any
third party without first obtaining written permission of NMWD. The Consultant will not use, or permit
another to use, any plans and specifications, reports and document in connection with this or any
other project without first obtaining written permission of NMWD.

All materials resulting from the efforts of NMWD and/or the Consultant in connection with
this project, including documents, repods, calculations, maps, photographs, computer programs,
computer printouts, digitaldata, notes and any other pertinent data are the exclusive propeñy of NMWD.
Re-use of these materials by the Consultant in any manner other than in conjunction with activities
authorized by NMWD is prohibited without written permission of NMWD.

Consultant shall deliver requested materials to NMWD in electronic format including
but not limited to engineering calculations, plans (AutoCad, current edition) and specifications (MS
Word, current edition).

10. COST DISCLOSURE: ln accordance with Government Code Section 7550, the
Consultant agrees to state in a separate portion of any repoft provided NMWD, the numbers and
amounts of all contracts and subcontractors relating to the preparation of the report.

11. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws, rules and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race,
color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, maritalstatus, age, medical condition or physicalhandicap.

12. EXTRA (CHANGED) WORK: Extra work may be required. The Consultant shall not
proceed nor be entitled to reimbursement for extra work unless it has been authorized, in writing, in
advance, by NMWD. The Consultant shall inform the District as soon as it determines work beyond the
scope of this agreement may be necessary and/or that the work under this agreement cannot be

completed for the amount specified in this agreement. Said review shall occur before consultant incurs
75%of thetotal feeapprovedforanyphaseof thework. FailuretonotifytheDistrictshall constitute
waiver of the Consultant's right to reimþursement.
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13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Consultant covenants that it presently has no
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of its services hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that in the
performance of this contract no person having any such interest shall be employed.

14, INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
pedormance of the work hereunder by the consultant, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

Minimum Scope of lnsurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability coverage

2. Automobile Liability

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. Architects' and
engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability.

Minimum Limits of Insurance

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations.): $1,000,000 per

occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. lf Commercial General
Liability lnsurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general

aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecUlocation or the general aggregate limit
shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation lnsurance: as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability, $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and amendatory endorsements

effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
aooroved bv ihe District work commences. The District reserves the right to require at any
time complete and certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shallfurnish separate

endorsements District for All

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

Selflnsu red Retentions

Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the option
of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects
the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall provide a
financial guarantee satisfactory to the District (such as a surety bond) guaranteeing payment of
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.
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Other lnsurance Provisions

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be

endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by or on behalf of the Consultant.

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by

certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.

Acceptability of lnsurers

lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll.

1S. D¡SPUTE RESOLUTION: Any dispute or claim in law or equity between District and

Consultant arising out of this agreement, if not resolved by informal negotiation between the parties,

shall be mediated by referring it to the nearest office of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services,

lnc. (JAMS) for mediation. Mediation shall consist of an informal, non-binding conference or

conferences between the parties and the judge-mediator jointly, then in separate caucuses wherein

the judge will seek to guide the parties to a resolution of the case. lf the parties cannot agree to
mutually acceptable member from the JAMS panel of retired judges, a list and resumes of available

mediators numbering one more than there are paÉies will be sent to the parties, each of whom will

strike one name leaving the remaining as the mediator. lf more than one name remains, JAMS

arbitrations administrator will choose a mediator from the remaining names. The mediation process

shall continue until the case is resolved or until such time as the mediator makes a finding that there

is no possibility of resolution.

At the sole election of the District, any dispute or claim in law or equity between District

and Consultant arising out of this agreement which is not settled through mediation shall be decided

by neutral binding arbitration and not by court action, except as provided by California law for judicial

review of arbitration proceedings. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of
JudicialArbitration Mediation Services, lnc. (JAMS). The parties to an arbitration may agree in writing

to use different rules and/or arbitrators.

16. BILLING AND DOCUMENTATION: The Consultant shall invoice NMWD for work
performed on a monthly basis and shall include a summary of work for which payment is requested.

The invoice shall state the authorized contract limit, the amount of invoice and total amount billed to

date. The summary shall include time and hourly rate of each individual, a narrative description of
work accomplished, and an estimate of work completed to date.

17. REASONABLE ASSURANCES: Each pafty to this agreement undertakes the
obligation that the other's expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired. When
reasonable grounds for insecurity arise, with respect to performance of either party, the other may,

in writing, demand adequate assurance of due performance and until the requesting party receives

such assurance may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed

return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes not only the conduct of the party

with respect to performance under this agreement but also conduct with respect to other agreements
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with parties to this agreement or others. After receipt of a justified demand, failure to provide within a
reasonable time, not to exceed 30 days, such assurance of due performance as is adequate under
the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this agreement. Acceptance of any

improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved party's right to demand
adequate assurance of future performance.

lB. PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS: Prevailing Wage Rates apply to all

Consultant personnel performing work under the Agreement for which wage determinations have

been made by the Director of lndustrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Sections 1770-
1782,. Consultant shall comply with all applicable prevailing wage labor code requirements.

NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT
..NMWD''

Dated Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

GHD, lNC.
.,CONSULTANT"

Dated
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t.ì

r*riEÍT_lEffi
Technical Director

Professional

Design Technician

Drafting/Design
Business Services Manager

Admin Officer

Construction Manager

Engineer/Supervisor
lnspector/Specia list

Operator/Labou rer

s 2oo.oo

$ 11s.oo

S 13s.oo

s 8s.00

s 21o.oo

S 7s.oo

S 2os.oo

$ 1so.0o

$ 8o,oo

$ gs.oo

s 28o.oo

S 17s.oo

s 2ss.oo

5 12s.00

s 27s.00

s 21s.00

$ 2so.oo

$ 2oo.oo

s 16s.00

$ 12s.00

1 Rates are for employees of all GHD companies.

2 All travel cost will be invoiced at coach class rates. Lodging and meal expenses will be at cost unless

per diem rate is negotiated.

J Reimbursement for direct expenses incurred for proposed services, including sub-consultant

serv¡ces, will be billed at cost plus 1.5%

4 GHo has implemented a system of billing for consumables on a per hour basis, Associated Project

Cost (ApC) is a unit cost replacing the individual tracking of some of the consumable costs directly

related to projects. Each year the total consumable audited costs are compiled from our general

ledger including:

- Office consumables including engineering supplies and postage

- Reproduction consumable costs including equipment lease and maintenance, printing, and

- Communication consumables including telephone expenses

- Equipment consumable including CADD, software, and lT expenses

Associated project cost (APC) will be invoiced at the following rate:

a. General Associated Project Charges APC: $6.50 / labor hour or 4% of labor costs

b. Field Services/Construction lnspector APC: S11.50 / labor hour

5 Reimbursement for vehicles used for proposed services will be at the federally approved

mileage rates or at a negotiated monthly rate.

6 Overtime for non-exempt employees will be charged at L.5 times the hourly billing rate.

7 lf prevailing wage are applicable, the above billing rates and APC will be adjusted proportionate to

the increase in labor cost

8 The Rate Schedule is subject to change annually



AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

The following is an agreement between North Marin Water District, hereinafter "NMWD",
and EKI Environment & Water, hereinafter, "Gonsultant".

WHEREAS, Consultant is a duly qualified consulting firm, experienced in state and federal
grant applications, planning and engineering services related to water and wastewater facilities.

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of the NMWD, it is necessary and
desirable to employ the services of the Consultant provide grant funding support services and
related planning and engineering consulting services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

PART A -. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS:

1. DESGRIPTION OF SERVICES AND PAYMENT: Except as modified in this
agreement, the services to be provided and the payment schedule are:

a. The scope of work and fee amount covered by this agreement shall be that
specified on a task by task basis.

b. The fee for the work shall be on a time and expense (T & E) basis utilizing the fee
schedule included in Attachment A of this agreement and shall not exceed
$200,000 without prior written authorization by NMWD.

PART B -. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION: Except as above, neither party hereto shall assign,
sublet or transfer any interest in or duty under this agreement without written consent of the other,
and no assignment shall be of any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other paÉy shall
have so consented.

2. STATUS OF CONSULTANT: The parties intend that the Consultant, in pedorming the
services hereinafter specified, shall act as an independent contractor and shall have the control of the
work and the manner in which it is performed. The Consultant is not to be considered an agent or
employee of NMWD, and is not entitled to parlicipate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus or similar
benefits NMWD provides its employees.

3. INDEMNIFICATION: NMWD is relying on the professional ability and training of the
Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this agreement. The Consultant hereby warrants
that all its work will be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and

standards, as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being

understood that neither acceptance of the Consultant's work by NMWD nor Consultant's failure to
perform shall operate as a waiver or release.

a. With respect to design professional services provided under this agreement, Consultant
shall assume the defense of and defend NMWD, its directors, officers, agents, and
employees in any action at law or in equity to the extent that liability is claimed or alleged
to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to, either directly or indirectly, the intentional or willful

misconduct, recklessness, or negligent act, error, or omission of Consultant (or any
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person or organization for whom Consultant is legally liable) in the performance of the
activities necessary to perform the services for District and complete the task provided

for herein. ln addition, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, and release NMWD,
its directors, officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all actions,
claims, damages, disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs,

that may be asserted by any person or entity including the Consultant, to the extent
arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, the negligent acts, errors or omissions,
recklessness, or intentional or willful misconduct of the Consultant (or any consultant or
subcontractor of Consultant) in connection with the activities necessary to perform the
services and complete the task provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the
sole negligence or willful misconduct of NMWD.

With respect to all services other than design professional services provided under
this agreement, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend
NMWD, its agents and employees from and against any and all actions, claims,

damages, disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs that
may be asserted by any person or entity, including the Consultant, arising out of or in
connection with the activities necessary to perform those services and complete the
tasks provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of NMWD.

This indemnification is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of

damages or compensation payable by or for the NMWD or its agents under workers' compensation
acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

4. PROSEGUTION OF WORK: The execution of this agreement shall constitute the
Consultant's authority to proceed immediately with the performance of this contract. Th work will be

specified on a task by task basis. Performance of the services hereunder shall be completed by June

3,0,2023, provided, however, that if the performance is delayed by earthquake, flood, high water or

other Act of God or by strike, lockout or similar labor disturbance, the time for the Consultant's
performance of this contract shall be extended by a number of days equal to the number of days
the Consultant has been delaYed.

5. METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING
PAYMENTS: All notices, bills and payment shall be made in writing and may be given by personal

delivery or by mail. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail should be addressed as follows:

North lVlarin Water District
P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948
Attention: TonY Williams

Consultant:
EKI Environment & Water
2001 Junipero Serra Blvd.
Daly City, CA 94014
Attention: Anona Dutton, Vice President

and when so addressed, shall be deemed given upon deposit in the United States Mail, postage

prepaid. ln all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be deemed given at the time of actual

delivery. Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and

payments are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph.

b.
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6. MERGER: This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement
between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms of the agreement, pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856 and as a complete and exclusive statement of the
terms of the agreement. No modification of this agreement shall be effective unless and until such

modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties.

T. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this agreement is intended to be severable. lf
any term of any provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or
invalid for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this agreement and shall
not affect the validity of the remainder of the agreement.

8. TERMINATION: At any time and without cause the NMWD shall have the right in its
sole discretion, to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant. ln the event of

such termination, NMWD shall pay the Consultant for services rendered to such date.

9. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS/OWNERSHIP OF DATA: The Consultant assigns to
NMWD all rights throughout the work in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent,

and right to ideas, in and to all versions of any plans and specifications, repods and document now

or later prepared by the Consultant in connection with this contract.

The Consultant agrees to take such actions as are necessary to protect the rights

assigned to NMWD in this agreement, and to refrain from taking any action which would impair

those rights. The Consultant's responsibilities under this contract will include, but not be limited to,

placing proper notice of copyright on all versions of any plans and specifications, reports and

documents as NMWD may direct, and refraining from disclosing any versions of the reports and

documents to any third party without first obtaining written permission of NMWD. The Consultant
will not use, or permit another to use, any plans and specifications, reports and document in

connection with this or any other project without first obtaining written permission of NMWD.

All materials resulting from the efforts of NMWD and/or the Consultant in connection

with this project, including documents, reports, calculations, maps, photographs, computer programs,

computer piintouts, digital data, notes and any other pertinent data are the exclusive property of

NMWD. Re-use of these materials by the Consultant in any manner other than in conjunction with

activities authorized by NMWD is prohibited without written permission of NMWD.

Consultant shall deliver requested materials to NMWD in electronic format including

but not limited to engineering calculations, plans (AutoCad, current edition) and specifications (MS

Word, current edition).

10. GOST DTSCLOSURE: ln accordance with Government Code Section 7550, the

Consultant agrees to state in a separate portion of any report provided NMWD, the numbers and

amounts of all contracts and subcontractors relating to the preparation of the report.

11. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state

and local laws, rules and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race,

color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition or physical

handicap.

12. EXTRA (CHANGED) WORK: Extra work may be required. The Consultant shall not

proceed nor be entitled to reimbursement for extra work unless it has been authorized, in writing, in

advance, by NMWD. The Consultant shall inform the District as soon as it determines work beyond
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the scope of this agreement may be necessary and/or that the work under this agreement cannot be
completed for the amount specified in this agreement. Said review shall occur before consultant
incurs 75o/o of the total fee approved for any phase of the work. Failure to notify the District shall
constitute waiver of the Consultant's right to reimbursement.

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Consultant covenants that it presently has no
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the pedormance of its services hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that in
the performance of this contract no person having any such interest shall be employed.

14. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against

claims for injuries to persons or damages to propefty which may arise from or in connection with
the performance of the work hereunder by the consultant, his agents, representatives, employees
or subcontractors.

Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability coverage

2. Automobile Liability

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. Architects'
and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability.

Minimum Limits of lnsurance

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations.): $1,000,000
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and propefty damage. lf Commercial
General Liability lnsurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecVlocation or the general

aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation lnsurance: as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability, $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and amendatory endorsements

effecting coverage required by this clause. All cedificates and endorsements are to be received
and aooroved bv the District before work commences. The District reserves the right to require at
any time complete and certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish

seoarate certificates endorsements for each subcontractor to the District for review and
approval. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein
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Self-lnsu red Retentions

Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the
option of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall
provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District (such as a surety bond) guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

Other lnsurance Provisions

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by or on behalf of the Consultant.

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be canceled by either pady, except after thitly (30) days' prior written notice by
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.

Acceptability of I nsurers

lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll.

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Any dispute or claim in law or equity between District and

Consuttant arising out of this agreement, if not resolved by informal negotiation between the parties,

shall be mediated by referring it to the nearest office of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services,

lnc. (JAMS) for mediation. Mediation shall consist of an informal, non-binding conference or
conferences between the parties and the judge-mediator jointly, then in separate caucuses wherein

the judge will seek to guide the parties to a resolution of the case. lf the parties cannot agree to
mutually acceptable member from the JAMS panel of retired judges, a list and resumes of available

mediators numbering one more than there are parties will be sent to the parties, each of whom will

strike one name leaving the remaining as the mediator. lf more than one name remains, JAMS

arbitrations administrator will choose a mediator from the remaining names. The mediation process

shall continue until the case is resolved or until such time as the mediator makes a finding that there

is no possibility of resolution.

At the sole election of the District, any dispute or claim in law or equity between

District and Consultant arising out of this agreement which is not settled through mediation shall be

decided by neutral binding arbitration and not by court action, except as provided by California law

for judicial review of arbitration proceedings. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with

the rules of Judicial Arbitration Mediation Services, lnc. (JAMS). The parties to an arbitration may

agree in writing to use different rules and/or arbitrators.

16. BILL¡NG AND DOCUMENTATION: The Consultant shall invoice NMWD for work
performed on a monthly basis and shall include a summary of work for which payment is requested.

The invoice shall state the authorized contract limit, the amount of invoice and total amount billed to
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date. The summary shall include time and hourly rate of each individual, a narrative description of
work accomplished, and an estimate of work completed to date.

17. REASONABLE ASSURANCES: Each party to this agreement undertakes the
obligation that the other's expectation of receiving due performance will not be impaired. When
reasonable grounds for insecurity arise, with respect to performance of either party, the other may,

in writing, demand adequate assurance of due performance and until the requesting party receives

such assurance may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any pedormance for which the agreed

return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes not only the conduct of the party

with respect to performance under this agreement but also conduct with respect to other

agreements with parties to this agreement or others. After receipt of a justified demand, failure to
piovide within a reasonable time, not to exceed 30 days, such assurance of due peformance as is

adequate under the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this agreement.

Acceptance of any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved party's

right to demand adequate assurance of future pedormance.

18. PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS: Prevailing Wage Rates apply to all

Consultant personnel performing work under the Agreement for which wage determinations have

been made by the Director of lndustrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Sections

1770- 1782,. Consultant shall comply with all applicable prevailing wage labor code requirements.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
..NMWD''

Dated: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

EKI ENVIRONMENT & WATER
"CONSULTANT''

Dated
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GlienUAddress: North Marin Water Distrct
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, CA 94948

Proposal/Agreement Date: 22 October 2021

€kl Riå?åt."t

EKI Project # C1-167

&

Personnel Classification

Officer and Chief Engineer-Scientist

Principal Engineer-Scientist

Supervising l, Engineer-Scientist

Supervising I l, Engineer-Scientist

Senior l, Engineer-Scientist

Senior I l, Engineer-Sc¡entist

Associate l, Engineer-Scientist

Associate I l, Engineer-Scientist

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 1

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 2

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 3

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 4

Engineer-scientist, Grade 5

Engineer-Scientist, Grade 6

Technician LL2

Senior GIS AnalYst I44
CADD Operator / GIS AnalYst 128

Senior Administrative Assistant L4I
Administrative Assistant It1'

Secretary 92

Direct Expenses
Re'*b,rr**"ñifor d¡rect expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work will be at cost plus fifteen percent

(15%) for items such as:

a. Maps, photographs, reproductions, printing, equipment rental, and special supplies related to the work.

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, drillers, laboratories, and contractors.

c, Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistence.

d. Special fees, insurance, permits, and licenses applicable to the work'

e. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary programs purchased for the work'

A Communication charge for e-mail access, web conferencing, cellp.hone ca.lls,.messaging and data access, filesharing, local and

ioñC ãittãn." ielephonõ calls and conferences, facsimile transmittals, standard delivery U.S. postage, and incidental in-house
.opiing *¡li neìñãreé¿ at a rate of 4% of labor cf¡qrge9. Large volume copying of project documents, e.g', bound reports for
¿ldti¡Oütion or pro;eît-specific reference files, will be charged as a project expense as described above.

Reimbursement for company-owned automobiles, except trucks and four-wheel drive vehicles, used in connection with the

work will be at the rate of sixty cents (SO.OO¡ per mile. The rate for company-owned trucks and four-wheel drive vehicles will

be seventy-five cents (90.75) per mile, There will be an additional charge of thirty dollars (530.00) per day for vehicles used for

field work, Reimbursement for use of personal vehicles will be at the federally allowed rate plus fifteen percent (15%).

CADD Computer time will be charged at twenty dollars (520.00) per hour. ln-house material and equipment charges will be in

accordance with the current rate schedule or special quotation. Excise taxes, if any, will be added as a direct expense,

Rate for professional stafffor legal proceedings or as expert witnesses will be at a rate of one and one-half times the Hourly

Rates specified above.

The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the Agreement for the Services of EKI Environment & Water, lnc. and

may be updated annually.

Hourlv Rate

295

285

275

265

255

245

235

22r
206

194

178

159

139

123





Item #12

MEMORANDUM

To:

From

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Man
Morgan Biggerstaff, BPMNJ

November 12,2021

Subject Kastania Pump Station Rehabilitation Project, including the Draft 2021 Kastania
Pump Station Transfer Agreement and the Draft 2021 Amended and Restated
lnterconnection Agreement Between North Marin Water District and Marin Municipal
Water District
t:\gm\mmwd\2021\bod memo interconnect¡on agreement 1 1 1221 final.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time

Overview

ln connection with the 2021 drought, Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD or Marin

Water) is pursuing avenues to improve water supply reliability, including the rehabilitation and

recommissioning of the Kastania Pump Station (KPS) located al 4100 Kastania Road in

Petaluma, CA. MMWD proposes to reacquire KPS from Sonoma County Water Agency

(Sonoma Water), rehabilitate the pumps, and reconnect KPS to the North Marin Aqueduct,

which will enable MMWD operational flexibility to meet its water supply needs when they cannot

be met through gravity flow such as during dry years, anticipated dry years, drought, and

emergencies (Kastania Pump Station Rehabilitation Project).

The Kastania Pump Station Rehabilitation Project will require future Board approval of

two agreements: 1) the Draft 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer Agreement (a three-party

property transfer agreement between MMWD, Sonoma Water, and NMWD); and 2) the Draft

Amended, and Restated lnterconnection Agreement Between North Marin Water District and

Marin Municipal Water District. For the Board's information, the proposed project also includes

the Draft 2021 Memorandum of Understanding for the Operation of the Kastania Pump Station

and Operation of the Ely Booster Pump Station, which is a staff-level document to deal with

specific operational details.

Background

ln 1974 NMWD and MMWD entered into an intertie agreement that provided for the

delivery of Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA or Sonoma Water) Russian River water to



Kastania Pump Station Rehabilitation Project
November 12,2021
Page 2

MMWD subject to the availability of capacity in NMWD's North Marin aqueduct. ln 1975,

MMWD began importing water from SCWA through NMWD's North Marin Aqueduct to

MMWD's pipeline in Novato (near San Marin and Redwood Blvd).

ln 1g77, MMWD designed and built KPS to increase the flow and pressure in the

North Marin Aqueduct and offset the hydraulic impact of increased consumption of impoded

water by the City of Petaluma and NMWD. MMWD completed construction of the pump

station in September 1977.

ln 1993, NMWD and MMWD entered into a new lntertie Agreement (1993 lntertie

Agreement) with the basic objective to provide a mechanism whereby NMWD and MMWD

could utilize their respective water systems, surplus water and surplus system capacity in a

coordinated manner to the benefit of the customers of both Districts.

MMWD owned and operated KPS until 1999 when, NMWD, SCWA and MMWD

executed the "Agreement Among the Sonoma County Water Agency, the North Marin Water

District and the Marin Municipal Water District for Acquisition of a Portion of the North Marin

Aqueduct and the Kastania Pump Plant," dated April 13, 1999, and the following actions

occurred:

I. MMWD transferred ownership of the KPS to the Sonoma County Water Agency; and

Z. NMWD transferred ownership of the Kastania Pipeline, which was the portion of the

North Marin Aqueduct connecting Sonoma Water's Petaluma Aqueduct from the

intersection of McNear Avenue and Petaluma Blvd. with SCWA's Kastania Reservoir

and terminating at the 3O-inch wye at the connection of MMWD's 3O-inch Kastania

Pump Station discharge pipeline with the North Marin Aqueduct in Kastania Road.

Approximately five years later, the California Department of Transportation (CalTrans)

began planning its Marin-sonoma Narrows US 101 highway-widening project (CalTrans

MSN Project), which required relocation of portions of NMWD's North Marin Aqueduct and

ultimately led to the development of NMWD's Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project (AEEP).

The AEEP enabled transport of water by gravity flow through upsized portions of the

aqueduct, thereby eliminating the need for NMWD to utilize the pumps at KPS to meet

existing or projected future demand, The AEEP and planned decommissioning of KPS

necessitated modifications to the 1993 lntertie Agreement, which was accomplished via the
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2014 lnterconnection Agreement between NMWD and MMWD

The 20l4lnterconnection Agreement encompassed various modifications to the 1993

lnteftie Agreement including: (1) added language that KPS is being taken out of service; (2)

added new wheeling charges; (3) provided for MMWD payment for a portion of the AEEP

capital cost; and (4) enabled MMWD and NMWD to cooperate in a future agreement for a

potential MMWD pipeline from Redwood Landfill to Kastania. Upon completion of the AEEP

in August 2015, NMWD discontinued operation of the Kastania Pump Station. lt has since

been out of operation.

2021Kastania Pump Station Transfer Agreement

Attached for Board review is a draft of the 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer

Agreement (Attachment 1). The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for: 1)the transfer

of the Kastania Pump Station from Sonoma Water to MMWD, 2) the subsequent conveyance

of easements to NMWD to maintain access to those porlions of the Kastania Pipeline and

the North Marin Aqueduct located in and under the Kastania Pump Station property, and 3)

to provide access easements to Sonoma Water and NMWD to maintain their existing and

future telemetry equipment located at the Kastania Pump Station. The Transfer Agreement

further anticipates the future transfer of a portion of the Kastania Pipeline from Sonoma

Water to NMWD.

District counsel is currently working with MMWD General Counsel and Sonoma

Water's legal counsel to clarify and further refine the 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer

Agreement. However, staff and counsel anticipate no changes to the basic foundations of

the agreement.

2021 Amended and Restated Interconnection Agreement

Attached for Board review are proposed revisions to the MMWD-NMWD 2014

lnterconnection Agreement (Clean and strike-out versions in Attachment 2) to address MMWD's

action to acquire) from Sonoma County Water Agency and re-activate operation, District

counsel is currently working with MMWD General Counsel to finalize the Draft Amended and

Restated lnterconnection Agreement Between North Marin Water District and Marin Municipal

Water District.
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2021 Memorandum of Understanding for the Operation of the Kastania Pump Station
and Operation of the Ely Booster Pump Station

The Kastania Pump Station will be operated in accordance with the revised 2021

Memorandum of Understanding for the Operation of the Kastania Pump Station and Operation

of the Ely Booster Pump Station (see draft in Attachment 3). The Memorandum of

Understanding for Operation of the Kastania Pump Station and the Ely Booster Pump Station

(MOU) sets forth the operational parameters for KPS among the District, SCWA, NMWD, and

the City of Petaluma in coordination with the District's KPS Project. This MOU establishes

operating conditions of KPS based on water action levels in Kastania Tank - a water storage

tank owned and operated by SCWA. The MOU includes a provision for annual review and to

make necessary modifications pursuant to the MOU to avoid operational conditions that may

adversely affect any party. This MOU has been reviewed by staff and legal counsel and will

be executed once finalized by all parties.

Environmental Review

MMWD is lead agency for the Kastania Pump Station Rehabilitation Project and

previously filed a Notice of Exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act

(CEOA) assefting two exemptions. Staff intends to rely on MMWD's analysis and will

present a draft Notice of Exemption when the agreements are brought before the NMWD

Board for consideration and possible approval at a future meeting.

Path Forward

The governing boards of MMWD and Sonoma Water have already approved these

agreements. After receipt of comments, staff and legal counsel will negotiate final edits to both

the 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer Agreement and 2021 Amended and Restated

lnterconnection Agreement. Staff anticipates presenting both agreements to the Board for

possible approval at the December 7th Board meeting.
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2021 KASTANIA PUMP STATION TRANSFER AGREEMENT

This 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement") is

made and entered into by and between the Sonoma County Water Agency ("Sonoma Water"),

the Marin Municipal Water District ("MMWD" or "Marin Water") and the North Marin Water

District ("NMWD" or "North Marin")

Recitals

A. Pursuant to the terms of the "Agreement e a County Water Agency,

The North Marin Water District And The Marin palWater For Acquisition Of A

Portion Of The North Marin Aqueduct And nia Pumping Pla ted April 13, 1999

(the "lnitialTransfer Agreement"), MMWD tra d own ip of the nia Pump Station

to Sonoma Water, and NMWD t d owne n ofthe No arin Aqueduct

was designated e "KastaniaMarinto Sonoma Water. Said Portion of
Pipeline".

B. Upon completio

Project" in August

Kastania Pipeline to

discontinued pumping

"North

uded i

Aq ued uct Energy Efficiency

e connecting the existing

c. I

rel Mari educt, North Marin

ma s Kastania Pump Station .

emergency, Marin Water proposes

the Ka Pump Station ("KPS Rehabilitation Project")

transmission through the North Marin Aqueduct,
reha

to in
o

which has ring ht conditions. The parties agree that it is necessary

and appropri nership of the Kastania Pump Station from Sonoma Water to

Marin Water as bilitation Project.

D. ln conjunction Rehabilitation Project, Sonoma Water desires to transfer

ownership of the Kastania mp Sta tion to Marin Water and transfer ownership of the

connecting portion of the Kastania Pipeline, extending south from the Kastania Meter Station,

to NMWD. Marin Water desires to accept the transfer of ownership of Kastania Pump Station,

and NMWD desires to accept ownership of the designated portion of the Kastania Pipeline.

E. Marin Water desires to subsequently convey easements on the Kastania Pump Station

property in favor of NMWD as described in this Agreement.

1.

nAq

and

ational

e more ac

nsfer th

K
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises made

herein, the parties hereto hereby mutually covenant and agree as follows:

PART 1 - GENERAL

L.t lncorporation of Recitals

The recitals stated above are true and correct and are incorporated into this Agreement.

t.2 Definitions

When used herein, unless otherwise distinctly expressed or m stly incompatible with the

intent of this Agreement, the terms

a) "Kastania Pump Station" means the twin 400 umps and motors (1 Duty, 1-

Standby), pump house, piping connection Kasta eline and the North Marin

Aq ueduct, site improvements and app ces including al property, as shown

in Exhibit A hereto and described in t rm of Grant Deed at all in its "as-is"

condition as of the effective date of this me

b) "Kastania Pipeline" means

1,. The portion of the 30-i

tra nsfe

incl

2. 30-inc

MSN 82

rtar-li el aqueduct defined andn

seg

porti

n(drawin 1.11.e

noma W he ln nsfer Agreement; and

ation tions by State of Cal ifornia's ("CalTrans")

CalTra cord drawings for the Marin-Sonoma

No. 04-2640U4), dated 6-30'2017,

ugh 33 ) of 91-8, from Station "Wl-"1-0+03.64 to

and tng

er ons to the 30-inch aqueduct from Station

30

I"1.6+95.42, dated 11--1-5-18 and shown on sheet 1B3B (U-

Trans' MSN B2 Project; and including

-inch welded steel pipe (WSP) shown on the General Piping

) of MMWD's Kastania Pump Station as-installed drawings,

p

26)

4. All

Pla

dated 9/77,lhat are identified as "Kastania Pipeline" on Exhibit A

c) "Telemetry Equipment" means telemetry equipment installed at the Kastania Pump

Station property, including any power conduit, antennae or other ancillary facilities,

some of which is owned and operated by Sonoma Water, which is further described in

the Form of Grant Deed at Exhibit B, and some of which is owned and operated by

2

U TSU

e

s

ed uct

sheet

"w1" 42+

ct Chan

5+80.62

for t
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1.3

L.4 Purpose

The purpose of this Agreement is to

from Sonoma Water to Marin Wa

shown on Exhibit A hereto, thereby

Rehabilitation Project; 2) the subseque

NMWD maintains acce portio

Aqueduct located i

rovide for
scribed in

stani

ure Tel Equipme

the l(asta mp Station

2.1. of this Agree and as

NMWD, as more specifically described in the Form of Easement for Telemetry

Eq uip ment at Exhibit D

Exhibits

a) Exhibit A: Map of the Kastania Pump Station property and a portion of Kastania

Pipeline; and

b) Exhibit B: Form of Grant Deed forTransfer of Kastania Pump Station from Sonoma

water to Marin water; and

c) Exhibit C: Form of Easement Deed for Transfer of nia Pipeline and North Marin

Aqueduct from Marin Water to NMWD; and

d) Exhibit D: Form of Easement Deed to con ment from Marin Water in

favor of NMWD for Telemetry Equip

e) Exhibit E: Form of Quitclaim Deed for rofa n of Kastania Pipeline from

Sonoma Water to NMWD

maintains access to

structio operation of the KPS

of ea necessary to assure that

tpe d the North Marin

rty, and to assure that NMWD

located at the Kastania Pump

Station; and 3) the tran the ia Pipeline from Sonoma Water to NMWD

as descri 2.4 hown on Exhibit A hereto, thereby

ena bl na nte na n portion of the l(astania Pipeline located

betwe tati the Kastania Pump Station

L.4

This Agreement ive upon its execution by all of the parties hereto

PART2_TRANSFEROF IA PUMP STATION AND KASTANIA PIPELINE

2.1 Transfer of the Kastania Pump Station

Except for rights described in this Agreement to be reserved unto Sonoma Water, Sonoma

Water hereby agrees to transfer and convey to Marin Water all existing rights, title and interest

of Sonoma Water in and to the Kastania Pump Station and all associated piping and

appurtenances located upon the real property, shown on Exhibit A and further described in the

Form of Grant Deed set forth at Exhibit B, subject to the reservation of rights required by

Sonoma Waterto maintain, install, adjust, repair, remove, replace and operate electrical,

SCADA, Telemetry Equipment and other related equipment, together with and including

)
J

ting a

a

Kastania M

SO

ate of
me

D,
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reasonable ingress and egress over adjoining lands, provided that same shall not interfere with

the rights of the District to use the property as water transfer pump station, both attached

hereto and made part of this Agreement,

2.2 Kastania Pipeline Easement in Favor of North Marin
Marin Water hereby agrees to grant and convey an easement over, under, through and across

the Kastania Pump Station to NMWD for purposes of owning, operating, maintaining, repairing

or replacingthe Kastania Pipeline and the North Marin Aqueduct located on the Kastania Pump

Station property, in the location as generally depicted on the map at Exhibit A and more

specifically in the Form of Easement Deed for Transfer

Aqueduct as set forth at Exhibit C, both attached heret
("Kastania Pipeline and North Marin Aqueduct Easeme

2.3 Telemetry Equipment Easement

Marin Water hereby agrees to convey an ease

hereto a

a)

nia Pipeline and North Marin
part of this Agreement

of the
oa

favor of N over and across the

l(astania Pump Station property as necessa D to access, in, adjust, repair or

replace its electrical, Telemetry Equipment, a ereq utp nt withi n stania Pump

Station property as more specifically described a he Form etry

Equipment Easement at Exhibit D, hereto a part of this Agre ent.

2.4 Transfer of the Kastania Pipel tne

Sonoma Water hereb tra nsfe r ng rights, title and

interest of Sonoma po ipeline located between the

Kastania Meter Stati ump a nd all associated appurtenances, shown on

Exhibit A and further de of im Deed set forth at Exhibit E, attached

rh

d ation of nce Documents

ing I execution of this Agreement, Marin Water will

cord Grant Deed and Easement Deeds in the forms set

forth D of this Agreement and work to collect all signatures

necessa of said conveyance documents, including but not limited

to, any nota cates of acceptance. Sonoma Water and NMWD agree to

work cooperat and promptly with Marin Water to provide all necessary

signatures on said conveyance documents. Once all conveyance documents have

been fully executed, Marin Water will cause the conveyance documents to be

recorded in the Official Records of Sonoma County, together and in the following

priority:

1,. Grant Deed (Exhibit B) - Transfer of Kastania Pump Station from Sonoma Water

to Marin Water

e

2.5

p

4

ution, Del

in 10 days

the clean

con

tna

Kasta
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2. Easement Deed (Exhibit C) - Conveyance of Kastania Pipeline easement from

Marin Water to NMWD

3. Easement Deed (Exhibit D) - Conveyance of easement for Telemetry Equipment

from Marin Water to NMWD

Marin Water will obtain conformed copies of all recorded conveyance documents and

return a conformed copy of the Grant Deed and the conformed copy of the Kastania

Pipeline Easement Deed and NMWD Telemetry Equipment Easement Deed to NMWD
within five business days from the date of said recording,

b) Within 60 days following receipt of fully exec rded easement
conveyance documents received by Sonoma W CalTrans for the portion of the
Kastania Pipeline located between the Kastan ion and Kastania Pump

Station, Sonoma Water will prepare the re Quitclaim Deed in the
form set forth at Exhibit E of this Agree nd work to all signatu res necessary

for recordation of said conveyance d nts, including but ited to, any notaries
and certificates of acceptance. NMW stowo coo perat nd promptly with
Sonoma Water to provide all necessary s conveya n cuments
Once all conveyance docu ave been d, Sonoma W will cause the

d

conveyance documents to
Sonoma Water will obtain
return a conformed copy of the
from the date ing.

ecords of Sonoma County
of all ed conveyance documents and

N hin five business days

in the

5
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2.6 Operation and Maintenance

a) Upon recordation of the Grant Deed in favor of Marin Water, Marin Water shall have

full responsibility for the operation and maintenance of the Kastania Pump Station. The

preceding sentence notwithstanding, NMWD shall maintain operational control of

l(astania Pump Station and shall operate same in accordance with the 2021

Memorandum of Understanding for Operation of the Kastania Pump Station and

Operation of the Ely BoosterStation agreed to bySonoma Water, NMWD, Marin Water,

and City of Petaluma subsequent to execution of this Agreement, Upon recordation of

the Kastania Pipeline and North Marin Aqueduct E in favor of NMWD, NMWD

shall maintain full responsibility for the operation aintenance of that portion of

the Kastania Pipeline and North Marin Aqued n the l(astania Pump Station

property and any connection to that porti eNo rin Aqueduct, including but

not limited to any intertie or connecti

Project, which shall be pursuant to th

ry to facil e KPS Rehabilitation

Agreement between Marin Water and as ap SU to execution of

this Agreement.

b) Upon recordation of the Qui in favor WD, NMWD shall have full

responsibility for the operation of rtion of the Kastania Pipeline

located betwee

nded and Rest

n

nnection

p Station, including but

the KPS Rehabilitationnot limited

Project, whi

Agreement b

th

nia M e

con il

t.

nt to th ed and ted lnterconnection

r and D as approved subsequent to execution of

ent is rewith no longer in effect and is superseded by this

said lnitial Transfer Agreement remain in full force and

right to sell water to existing and new customers in the

rial area from existing turnouts connected to the Water

2.7

Part 3 of the I

Agreement. All

effect including NM

South Petaluma Bouleva

Agency's Kastania Pipeline

2.8 Costs

a) ln consideration of said transfer and conveyance described in this PART 2, Marin Water

shall pay to Sonoma Water the sum of one dollar within 60 days from the effective date

of this Agreement.

b) All costs related to the KPS Rehabilitation Project including: planning, permitting, design,

and construction (materials, equipment and labor including necessary piping intertie or
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connection to the Kastania Pipeline and North Marin Aqueduct), construction

management, inspection; and ongoing operations, maintenance and replacement costs,

shall be borne solely by Marin Water.

Part 3 - Miscellaneous

3.1 Enforcement

Each and all of the provisions of this Agreement shall be ble by action brought by any

party hereto for specific performance or any other a ction at law for damages or in

equity for other appropriate relief to the end that he all suffer from the default

of any other party.

3.2 Severability

lf any one or more sections, provisions, promises this Ag t are declared

void or voidable for any reason by udgment o a court of comp nt

jurisdiction, it is hereby declared to nof rty and agreed that each and all

of the other sections, provisions, pro ons o Agreement shall be and

remain in fullforce and

3.3 Waiver of
The waiver by any pa ch ofa or promise contained in this Agreement

rovision or any subsequent breach of theshall not be tob
same or rp con th ement

3.4

To the ful isions of this Agreement shall be construed and

given effect i s any lation of statute, ordinance, regulation, or law, The

parties covenant the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a

court of competent invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the

provisions hereof shall

or invalidated thereby

fullforce and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired,

3.5 Drafter

Marin Water, NMWD and Sonoma Water hereby acknowledge that they have each contributed

to the making of this Agreement and have an opportunity for their respective legal counsel to

review and contribute to this Agreement. ln the event of a dispute over the interpretation of

this Agreement, the parties hereto hereby agree that the language of the Agreement will not be

construed against one party in favor of the other.

term

7
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3.6 Third-Party Beneficiary

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and the parties do not intend

to create any rights in third parties.

3.7 Section Headings

The section headings in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference. They are not a

part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.

3.8 Merger

This writing is intended both as the final expression of the ent between the parties

hereto with respect to the included terms and as a compl exclusive statement of the

terms of the Agreement, pursuant to Code of Civil Pro on 1856. No modification of

this Agreement shall be effective unless and until d ifi is evidenced by a writing

signed by both parties

Pronoun Number and Gender

As required by the context of this Agree

mean and be construed to include

ne ute r.

3.9 California Environmenta! Quality A

Pursuant to the Cali

agency for any envi

Kastania Pump Station,

between Wa

Memo ndi ope

the El

ment, ea no pa renth rence shall

gular and the masculine, inine, and

nta I designated as the lead

entatio ayber red for restoration of the

the d and Restated lnterconnection Agreement

pal Water District, and the

s

n

CO

astania Pump Station and Operation of
ly the " nia Pump Station Restoration Project")

er of Page lntentionally Left Blank
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By

The Parties below have executed this Agreementeffective as of the last date setforth below

Sonoma County Water Agency APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

Grant Davis, General Manager

Date
a County Counsel's Office

Attest:

By

Clerk of the Board

North Marin Water District

ROVED AS TO FORM

arin Lega I Counsel

(Please p here

Date

Marin Muni

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By

Bennett Horenstei eneral Manager

Molly Maclean, General Counsel

Date

9
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Exhibit ATo 2O2L KPS Transfer Agreement

[lnsert map]
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Exhibit BTo 2O2L KPS Transfer Agreement

For Benefit of Grantee, standard Recording Fee

Value less than S100.00, Documentary Transfer Tax = 0

Signature of Agent Determining Tax

When recorded mail a copy to:
Stanley Graham

Marin Municipal Water District
220 Nellen Avenue
Corte Madera CA 94925

GRANT DEED

APN

THlsGRANTDEED,madeasof-,byandbetweentheSoNoMA
COUNTY WATER AGENCY a body corporate and politic organized under the laws of the State of
California, hereinafter called "sonoma Water" and MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a

public corporation, hereinafter caIled "District."

WITNESSETH:

That Sonoma Water, for a good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency

of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant unto District, their successors and

assigns, forever, all of the right, title and interests of Sonoma Water in the real property in the

County of Sonoma, State of California, more particularly described in EXHIBIT A, attached

hereto and incorporated herein.

Reserving therefrom a nonexclusive easement in gross for Sonoma Water to maintain,

install, adjust, repair, remove, replace and operate electrical, SCADA, telemetry equipment, and

other related equipment, including reasonable ingress and egress over adjoining lands,

provided that same shall not interfere with the rights of the District to use the property as a

water transfer pump station.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed these presents the day and year first
written above.

SEAL:

SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



Grant Davis, General Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Property
Notary Acknowledgement
Certificate of Acceptance

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT crvrL coDE 5 1189

A notary public or other officer cornpleting this certificate

verilies only tl-re identity of the individual who signed the

document to which this certificate is attached, and not the

trulhfi;lness, aocuracy, or validity ofthat docutnent.

State of California

County of

On before me,

_, Notary Public, personally appeared,

"", 
* 

" 
." ." * * * M:iåiÏÏ: ;:,ffi ilJlïÏ:;ia 

t i sf a c'Ïo rv

acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his

signature on the instrumentthe person, orthe entity upon behalf of which the person acted,

executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing

paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signatu re

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



CERTIFI CATE OFACCEPTANCE

THtS lS TO CERTIFY that the interest in the real property conveyed by the Easement

Agreement, dated ,202L from the SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY, a

public corporation, to MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, was hereby

accepted by the BOARD OF D¡RECTORS OF THE MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT on

,202L subject to the terms and conditions of said

Easement Agreement, and MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT consents to the recordation

thereof by its duly authorized Officer.

DATED BY:

2021TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



Exhibit CTo 2o2L KPS Transfer Agreement
Easement Deed For Kastania Pipeline and North Marin Aqueduct

Recording for the Benefit of MMWD, No Fee, Gov't. Code 27383

Value less than S100.00

Recording Requested By:

Tony Williams
Asst. GM/Chief Engineer

When recorded return to:
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato CA 94945

EASEMENT AGREEMENT

APN

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 

- 

day of

, by and between the MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER

DISTRICT, a public corporation, hereinafter called "District", and the NORTH MARIN WATER

DISTRICT, a public corporation, hereinafter called "Grantee",

WITNESSETH:

That for a good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acl<nowledged,

District does by these presents, grant, bargain, sell and convey to the Grantee, its successors

and assigns, the following non-exclusive easement subject to the following terms and

cond itions:

District hereby grant and convey an easement to Grantee over, under, through and

across the real property described in Exhibit A for purposes of owning, operating, maintaining,

repairing or replacing that portion of the water pipeline located on the property, in the location

as generally depicted on the map at Exhibit A ("Kastania Pipeline").

The easement granted herein shall be and is non-exclusive, and the right is hereby

reserved by District to use said easement for any and all purposes which will not interfere with

or jeopardize the use of the easement for said purposes of Grantee; provided however, that no

structures, fill, or other improvements shall be placed on or over such easement which will

interfere with or impede the free access of Grantee for use, repair, replacement or

maintenance of the installations therein.

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



Should there be any variations, errors or omissions in the description herein, it is the

intention of the District to convey to Grantee an easement over the Kastania Pipeline as laid

and located.

¡N WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed these presents the day and year first

above written.

MMWD SEAL:

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date By

Bennett Horenstein
General Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Exhibit A - Map of the Kastania PS Property
Nota ry Acknowledgement
Certificate of Acceptance

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT ctvlL coDE s LL89

A notary public or other oi'ficer completitrg this certificate

verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the

document to which this certificate is attached, and not the

truthfulness, accuracy, or validity ofthat docutnent.

State of California

County of Marin

On before me, Stanley P. Graham, Notary Public, personally

appeared, Bennett Horenstein, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be

the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that

he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument

the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing

paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signature

2021" TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the l(astania Pump Station



CERTI FICATE OFACCEPTANCE

THIS lS TO CERTIFY that the interest in the real property conveyed by the Easement

Agreement, dated ,202I from the MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a

public corporation, to NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, was hereby

accepted by the BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT on

,202L subject to the terms and conditions of said

Easement Agreement, and NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT consents to the recordation

thereof by its duly authorized Officer,

DATED: BY

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the l(astania Pump Station



Exhibit D To 2O2t KPS Transfer Agreement
EasEMCNt _ MMWD tO NMWD

Recording for the Benefit of MMWD, No Fee, Gov't. Code 27383.

Value less than $roo.oo

Recording Requested By:

Tony Williams
Asst. GM/Chief Engineer

When recorded return to:
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato CA 94945

EASEMENT AGREEMENT

APN _TBD

THlsDEED,madeandenteredintothis-dayof-,2021',by
and between MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, hereinafter called

"District", and the NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, hereinafter called

" G ra ntee",

WITNESSETH:

That for a good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, District

does by these presents, grant, bargain, sell and convey to the Grantee, its successors and

assigns, the following easement in gross.

The District is the owner of the property described in ExhibitA, attached hereto and made part

hereof. Said easement is granted and shall be held for and subject to the following terms and

conditions.

Grantee shall have, and is herebygranted the rightto install, maintain, repair, remove, replace

and operate SCADA and telemetry equipment as Grantee may elect to install, together with the

right to construct and maintain such equipment as may be necessary or convenient in

connection with the transmission and delivery of water, together with and including reasonable

ingress and egress over adjoining lands for the construction, repair and maintenance of such

equipment, provided that same shall not interfere with the rights of the Districtto use the
property as water transfer pump station.

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the l(astania Pump Station



The easementgranted herein shall be an easement in gross, and the right is hereby reserved by

District to use said easement for any and all purposes which will not interfere with or
jeopardize the use of the easement for the said purposes of Grantee.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed these presents the day and year first above

written

MMWD SEAL:

DISTRICT: MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Dated By:
Bennett Horenstein
General Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Exhibit A - Map of the l(astania PS Property
Notary Acknowledgement
Certificate of Acceptance

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the l(astania Pump Station



CALI FORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT crvrl coDE 5 11,89

A notary pr-rblic or other officer completing this certilicate

verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the

doculnent to which this certificate is attached, and nol the

trr.rthfulness, acclu'acy, or validity of that doctturent.

State of California

County of Marin

On before me, Stanley P. Graham, Notary Public, personally

appeared, Bennett Horenstein, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be

the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that

he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument

the person, orthe entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing

paragraph is true and correct,

WITNESS my hand and official seal

Signatu re

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



CERTI FI CATE OFACCEPTANCE

THIS lS TO CERTIFY that the interest in the real property conveyed by the Easement

Agreement, dated 2021.from the MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a

public corporation, to NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, was hereby

accepted by the BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT on

, 202L su bject to the terms a nd cond itions of said

Easement Agreement, and NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT consents to the recordation

thereof by its duly authorized Officer.

DATED: BY:

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



Exhibit ETo ZOZL KPS Transfer Agreement

RECORDED AT NO FEE PER

covERNMENT CODE 5 6103

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

Sonoma County Water Agency

404 Aviation Boulevard
Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Exempt from the fee per cC 27388.1 (a) (2);

Executed or recorded by a government agency

Deed to Public Agency

Tax $0 Exempt from TransferTax R&T 11922

QUITCLAIM DEED

APN

THIS QUITCLAIM, made as of by and between the SONOMA

COUNTY WATER AGENCY a body corporate and politic, organized and existing under and by

virtue of the laws of the State of California, hereinafter called "sonoma Water" and NORTH

MAR¡N WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, hereinafter called "District."

WITNESSETH:

That Sonoma Water, for a good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency

of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby remise, release, and forever quitclaim unto

District, their successors and assigns, forever, allof the right, title and interests of the Water
Agency in the real property in the County of Sonoma, State of California, more particularly
described in EXHIBITA, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed these presents the day and year first
written above.

SEAL:

SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY

By

Grant Davis, General Manager

ATTACHMENTS:

Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Property

2021" TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



Nota ry Acknowledgement
Certificate of Acceptance

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT crvtL coDE 5 1189

A notary pr-rblic or other officer completing this certificate

verifies orrly the identity of the individual who signed the

document to which this certificate is attacheci, and not the

truthfi;lness, accuracy, or validity ofthat docuneut.

State of California

County of

On before me,

Notary Public, personally appeared,

_, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory

evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and

acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his

signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted,

executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing

paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal,

Signature

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station



CERTI FI CATE OFACCEPTAN CE

THIS lS TO CERTIFY that the interest in the real property conveyed by the Quitclaim Deed,

dated ,2021, from the SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY, a body

corporate and politic, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
California, to NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public corporation, was hereby accepted by

the BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT on

,2021, subject to the terms and conditions of said

Quitclaim Deed, and NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT consents to the recordation thereof by

its duly authorized Officer.

DATED: BY:

2021 TRANSFER AGREEMENT for the Kastania Pump Station
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AMENDED AND RESTAÏED
INTERCONNEGTION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this - day of December,202'lby and between NORTH
MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public body (herein called "North Marin") and MARIN
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a public body (herein called "Marin Municipal")(North
Marin and Marin Municipal shall be collectively referred to as "Pafiies").

REGITALS

From time to time there exists surplus capacity in the North Marin water
system.

From time to time there exists surplus capacity in the Marin Municipal water
system.

Pursuant to the Fourth Amended Offpeak Water Supply Agreement and the
Second Amended Agreement for'lhe Sale of Water, (as these agreements are

defined in Section 1(s) of this Agreement), Sonoma County Water Agency
("Sonoma Water") delivers Marin Municipal's Russian River water to the North

Marin Aqueduct at the Kastania meter station, North Marinrs metered turnout
as depicted on Exhibit'4, lt is expectéd,thât pursuant to any amendment to

said agreement deliveries will continue to:the same location.

Pursuant to the RestruCtÚ,red Agr:eement for Water Supply (as this term is
defined in 'section 1(r) of ,this Agree,ment), Sonoma Water delivers North

Marin's Rússiáñ River water,to the Norlh:Maryn Aqueduct. lt is expected that
pursuant,to any amendment to said agreement deliveries will continue to the
same location.

A.

B

C

D

F. North Marin owns certain pipeline and construction easements which contain
the North Marin Aqueduct and which were planned to accommodate a second
aqued,uct.

G. Marin Municipal,désires to utilize finished water reservoir storage available in

North Marin"s wáter system, including the Atherton, Lynwood, Palmer Drive

and AmaroliTanks, to balance pump operations upstream and downstream of
Reach 3. North Marin desires to augment deliveries to finished water storage
reservoirs in the south end of its water system from Reach 1,2, and 3.

H. Marin Municipal has the capability of releasing water from its reservoirs into

Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek for the benefit of North Marin which extracts water
from stream side wells located downstream.

Caltrans undertook a projectto widen US Highway 101 between Novato and

Petaluma, the Marin-Sonoma Narrows Project, that required relocation of the
North Marin Aqueduct adjacent to the highway.

J



North Marin constructed the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project (AEEP) to
upsize the North Marin Aqueduct from Kastania Pump Station to Redwood
Landfill Road, including the North Marin Aqueduct sections requiring relocation
due to the Caltrans US Highway '101 Marin-Sonoma Narrows Project. The
upsized aqueduct enabled transport of water by gravity flow, thereby
eliminating the need for North Marin to utilize the pumps at Kastania Pump

Station to meet existing or projected future demand. Once the upsized

aqueduct was operational as parl of the AEEP, North Marin decommissioned
and disconnected the Kastania Pump Station from the North Marin Aqueduct.

K. Decommissioning and disconnecting the Kastania Pump Station from the

North Marin Aqueduct reduced GHG emissions by at least 300 tons per year

by curtailing the energy use associated with thé former pumping operations at

the Kastania Pump Station.

On April 21, 2021, the Governor of California issued a proclamation directing
state agencies to take immediate action to bolstel drought resilience and

prepare for impacts on cornmunities, businesses, and ecosystems, and

proclaiming a State of Emergency to exist in Mendocino and Sonoma counties
due to severe drought conditions in the Russian River Watershed, which was

extended to Marin County on July 8,2027.'

M. ln connection with the 2021 drought, Marin Municipal proposes the

rehabilitation and recommissioning òf the Kastân,ia Pump Station, which will

enable Marin Wàter the operational flexibility to meet its water supply needs
when they cannot b'é.rnet throug,h,gravity flow'on the Nofth Marin Aqueduct, in

particular to address temporary fâcility disruption or outages and anticipated
water shortages due to dry years, drought and emergencies.

Norlh Márin'operates its Stafford Lãke Water Treatment facility during summer

months to utilize local water supply and partially offset North Marin's Russian

River water deliveries, ther,eby increasing surplus capacity in the North Marin

Aqueduct.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the mutual promises
made herein, North Marin and Marin Municipal agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

As used herein, the terms

(a) "AnnUally" "per annum" Or "fiSCal year" means a twelVe-month periOd

commencing July 1 and ending June 30.

(b) "lntertie Facilities" means all the interconnecting facilities of Marin
Municipal and North Marin through which water can flow for the benefit of
one or the other party including all attached and appurtenant facilities such

as valves, meters, blow-offs, control cables and devices, cathodic

4
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protection equipment, and electrical services and comprised of the
following principal components shown on the schematic diagram attached
hereto and marked "Exhibit A":

5



(1) Reach 1, consisting of approximately 4,300 feet of 18-inch and 16-inch
pipeline extending from Big Rock Ridge north to the Main Gate Road;

Reach 2, consisting of approximately 11,100 feet of 3O-inch pipeline
extending north from Main Gate Road to a point nearthe Highway 101

and Highway 37 interchange where said 3O-inch pipeline connects with a
24-inch and 36-inch pipeline at a connection called the Wye;

(2)

(3) Reach 3 contains two parallel pipeline systems; one owned by North

Marin called the North Marin lntertie consisting of approximately 4,980
feet of 24-inch pipeline extending from the westerly end of Branch 2 nodh
to Redwood Blvd and Sunset Parkway and approximately '14,300 feet of
28.5-inch pipeline north of said intersection to a point of connection with
the 28.5-inch North Marin Aqueduct at the San Marin Control Station; and

the other owned by Marin Municipal càlled the Novato Bypass consisting
of approximately 20,100 feet of 36-inch piþeline extending from the Wye
north to a point of connection with the 28.5-inch North Marin Aqueduct
immediately north of the San MarinControl Station;

(4) Reach 4, also called the' North Marin Aqueduct, consisting of
approximately 17,000 feet of 28.5-inch pipeline extending from the
northern termin,Us of Reach 3 to Redwood Landfill Road (Reach 4a) and

approximately 24,000 feet of 42-inch pipeline extending from Redwood
Landfill Road to thê Sonorna Water Kastania Pipeline near Kastania
Pump Station (ReaCh 4b);

(5) "Hamilton Bypass" means the 36-inch
extending from Big Rock Rid$e north to

pipeline that parallels Reach 1

the Main Gate Road;

(6) "Pacheio Tanks'l, :means thé two tanks on Big Rock Ridge at the
'terminus of the Hamilton bypass;

(7) "Branóh',1," consisting of approximately 3,'190 feet of 1B-inch, 12-inch

, and B-inch. pipeline connecting to Reach 1 at Bolling Drive and
. , extendinglsé,uth and then easterly to Air Base Tank;

(S) "Branch 2," cônsisting of 1,492 feet of 24-inch pipeline extending from
thê'Wye nsrth then westerly across Highway 101 to a connection with a
24-inch,pipeline(also referred to as the "North Marin lntedie");

(9) Lynwood, Amaroli and Palmer Tanks including pipelines connecting
same to Branch 2 and Reach 2;

(10) Atherton Tank including pipelines connecting same to Reach3;
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(11) "Kastania," including Kastania Pipeline (Kastania Pipeline is that
portion of the 3O-inch cement mortar-lined steel aqueduct defined
and transferred to Sonoma Water pursuant to the Agreement Among
the Sonoma County Water Agency, The North Marin Water District
And The Marin Municipal Water District For Acquisition Of A Portion
Of The North Marin Aqueduct And The Kastania Pumping Plant"
dated April 13, 1999), Kastania Tank and Kastania Pump Station;

(12) Pacheco Valle Interconnection (Reach 1);

(13) Hamilton Main Gate Road lnterconnection (where Reach 1 meets
Reach 2);

(14) Bel Marin Keys lnterconnection (Reach 2);

.. :... ..::

(15) Wye lnterconnection (on Branch 2 whe,re Reach 2 meets Reach 3);

(16) San Marin lnterconnection (where Reach 3 meets Reach4).

(c) "Other interconnections" means other interconnect¡ons or facilities in
place or from tirne to time constructed and added tô either the Marin
Municipal or North Marin water system which the parties hereto mutually
agree are needed to èffectively carry outthe provisions of this agreement.

:.
(d) "North Marin Aquedurct" meáns lnterlie Facility (b) (4) or Reach 4, North

Marlni,s ':þ,ipeline extending south,frém the Sonoma Water pipeline near
KaStània Púmp Station to the Sán Mar,in Gontrol Station in Novato.

..:
"t"r'n',''tunicipal's Russian River water" means water furnished and
delivered,,by,,Sonoma,Water tó Marin Municipal at Kastania.

"Marin Municiþál Water System" means all the reservoirs, both raw water
and finished watêr, pumps, aqueducts, pipelines, treatment plants, and
other appuftenant facilities owned and operated by Marin Municipal for
the purpose'of providing water service to its customers.

...
"mgd" means millions of gallons per day, a rate of flow.

l' ,

"North Marin's Russian River water" means water furnished and delivered
by Sonoma Water to North Marin at Kastania.

(e)

(g)

(h)

(i) "North Marin Water System" means all the reservoirs, both raw water and
finished water, pumps, aqueducts, pipelines, treatment plants, and other
appurtenant facilities owned and operated by North Marin for the purpose
of providing water service to its customers.

ú) "Novato Bypass" means Marin Municipal's 36-inch pipeline extending
from the Wye north to a point just north of North Marin's San Marin
Control Station.

(k) "Operational Control" means defining and transmitting realtime level and
7



pressure set point ranges from within the North Marin water distribution
system to determine whether or not the Kastania Pumps can be operated
by Marin Municipal. Also refer to Section 5.4.1 of this Agreement.

(l) "Point(s) of delivery" means any point or points from time to time mutually
agreed to by the parties which are located within, are part of, or are
connected to, the lntertie Facilities or other point or points of delivery
mutually agreed to by the parties. As of the date of this agreement, the
following points of delivery exist.
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(1) "Pacheco Valle. the point of interconnection between the most
southerly 1B-inch segment of Marin Municipal's Reach 1 pipeline
and North Marin's 18 inch and 14-inch Pacheco Valle pipeline, near
Pacheco Valle.

(2) Main Gate Road: two points of interconnection: one being south,
between Hamilton Bypass and the most northerly 1B-inch segment
of the Nodh Marin poftion of the Reach 1 pipeline located near the
Hamilton School and the second being to the north, between Marin
Municipal's 3O-inch Reach 2 pipeline and the Lanham Village
distribution system.

t of, ,interconnection between Marin
p,lnetine and North Marin's 16-inch Bel

(3) Bel Marin Keys: the poin
Municipal's 30-inch Reach 2

,,:t ,. tl I

''(l)

Marin Keys pipeline

(4) San Marin Control Statión: the point of interconnection between
Reach 4 facilities and Reach 3 facilities.

(5) Nicasio Creek. the downstream end of the pipe located at the base
of Seeger Dam (Nicasio Lake) used to release water to Nicasio
Creek.

(6) Lagunitas Creêk: the downstream end of the pipe located at the
base of Peters Dam (Kent Lake) used to release water to Lagunitas
Creek.

,:.'

(7) :,,The Wye;,the point of intòrconnection between Reach 2 and Reach
3 facilities.

" ''"R'éJease" m.éãns, the release of water to North Marin's West Marin
Serúice,Area,,at either the Lagunitas Creek or Nicasio Creek points of
delivery from Kent or Nicasio Lakes.

(m) "Replacemênt cost" means the cost associated with, or the act of,
acquisition ,of, material and installation of same for the correction of
irreparable we€r or other deterioration of parts or elements of a given
structure or facility.

(n) "Sonoma Water" means Sonoma County Water Agency, a public body

(o) "Summer months" means May, June, July, August and September

(p) "Surplus capacity" means the capacity of any facility of the watersystem
of one of the parties hereto which said party solely and conclusively
determines is in excess of the needs of itscustomers.

(q) "Caltrans" mean the State of California Department ofTransportation
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(r) "Restructured Agreement for Water Supply" means the agreement
between North Marin and Forestville County Water District, Valley of the
Moon Water District and the Cities of Cotati, Petaluma, Rohnert Park,

Santa Rosa, Sonoma and Windsor and the Sonoma Water that became
effective on June 23,2006.

(s) "Fourth Amended Off-peak Water Supply Agreement" and the "Second

Amended Agreement for the Sale of Water" means the agreements
between Marin Municipal and Sonoma Water that became effective on
July 1 ,2015.

(0 "lnterconnection Agreement" means the agreement between Marin

Municipal and Norlh Marin dated February 5,2014.

2. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this agreement is to pr"oVide the basis for, and mechanism whereby
Marin Municipal and North Marin can êach, as a first priority, continue to meet the
needs of their respective customers,'and simultaneously, to the extent feasible,
utilize their respective water systems and surplus system capacity in a coordinated
manner for the benefit of the customers of both Districts.

3. WATËR DELIVERY PROVISIONS

A North Marin's Delivery of 'Marin Múnicipal's Russian RiverWater

1 North'Marin shall deliver,Marin MuniCiþal's Russian River water through
thó,¡e6¡ Marin Water System at such point or points of delivery, at such
times,and at such rates of flow as determined by Marin Municipal, subject,
however,'':to the,availability of surplus capacity and provided such
del,iveries may be mâdê' in a manner that will not prevent North Marin
froml,:tneeting its contractual obligations to Sonoma Water and will

normally,,,not lower the water level in North Marin's Atherton, Palmer
Drive, LynWood or Arnaroli Tanks below operating levels determined by
North Marin.

North Marin will endeavor in good faith to produce 1,300 AF of treated
potáble water at its Stafford Lake water treatment facility during the
period'of,May 15 through September 15 each calendar year.

North Marin will maintain Operational Control over the Kastania Pump

Station, which will be operated consistent with this Agreement and the
Kastania Pump Station Operations MOU. Marin Municipalwill operate the
Kastania Pump Station to address its operational maintenance needs,
including system outages, planned maintenance and system upgrades
that may disrupt normal operations; and anticipated water shortfalls due

to dry years; drought; and other emergencies.

B. Marin Municipal's Delivery of North Marin's Russian River Water

2

3
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Marin Municipal shall deliver North Marin's Russian River water through the Marin Municipal
Water System at such point or points of delivery, at such time and at such rates of flow as
determined by North Marin, subject to the availability of surplus capacity and provìded such
deliveries may be made in a manner that will not prevent Marin Municipal from meeting
ob+arfiìrlg its contractual alletment from obligations to Sonoma Water.

C. Marin Municipal's Delivery to Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek

On North Marin's request, when flow in Lagunitas Creek is determined by North Marin to be
low or when the dry year condition described in State Water Resources Control Board Order
95-17 occurs, Marin Municipal shall release to Nicasio Creek or Lagunitas Creek for North
Marin's benefit up to 250 acre-feet per year. Said water shall,be used by North Marin within
its lnverness-Point Reyes Annexation Territory as same is.,re,corded in Volume 2118 of the
official Records of Marin County at Page 304 through 314 Additional amounts of water may
be released by Marin Municipal upon North Marin's request subject to the availability of
surplus water, as determined solely by Marin Municipal. Whether releases of requested water
are made from Seeger Dam / Nicasio Lake or Peters Dam / Keht, Lake shall be determined
by Marin Municipal. All deliveries made by Marin Municipal pursuant to this section shall be
over and above those releases that Marin Municipal must make to meet instream flow and
water rights requirements as ordered by the State Water Resources Control Board.

ln addition, if in any year that Nort_h'Marin requestS water under this Section and Marin
Municipal has requested voluntary or mandatory water use reductions of its customers in

eastern Marin County, North Marin shall reQ'ùìre its customers in its lnverness-Point Reyes
Annexation Territory to reduce use to an êqual of :gieater percèntage using the methodology
included in North Marinrs:llWater Shortage ,Contingêniy, Flan for West Marin Service Area"
dated August 23,2002,,,or any subsequent rP,lan.,, '

D. Marin Municipal De-liveries to Norlh Marin at the Pacheco Valle, Main Gate
,Road.and Bel M.arin Keys lnterconnections

At North,M:aiin's request and subject to availability of supply and capacity in Marin Municipal's
Water Systern, Marin Municipal shall deliver to North Marin such quantities of water as North
Marin require's,to augment súþply to the south end of its water system at its Pacheco Valle,
Main Gate Road and Bel Mar,in, Keys interconnections. Prior to said deliveries of water to
North Marin, North Marin, at its expense, shall install metering facilities acceptable to Marin
Municipal.

E. Risk of LosS,

Risk of loss and responsibility for the handling and control of all water delivered hereunder
shall pass from the pafty making the delivery to the party receiving the delivery at the point
of delivery or release thereof. The parties agree to exercise due diligence in inspecting their
various pipelines and appurtenances and to take steps to guard against unreasonable loss of
water.
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F. Water Quality

The quality of water delivered by North Marin to Marin Municipal shall be equivalent to the
quality of water served by North Marin in its potable Novato area water system. The quality
of water delivered by Marin Municipal to North Marin, with the exception of water delivered
pursuant to Section 3.C. hereof, which shall be untreated water, and water from Sonoma
Water delivered through the Marin Municipal Water System upstream of the lgnacio pump
station, shall be equivalent to the quality of water leaving Marin Municipal's lgnacio Pump
Station, including any fluoridation and corrosion control treatment conducted by Marin
Municipal.

G. Meters for Deliveries to Marin Municipal 
. :

Meters used to measure deliveries made to Marin Munlldiþál shall be tested for accuracy at
least once annually by Marin Municipal at Marin Municipálrs,,expense. North Marin shall be
provided with a report of said test. North Marin shall have the right to make additional tests
at any time at its expense. A meter shall be recalibrated if it is found to be inaccurate by

more than two percent and in such event delivery data and cofresponding payments or
exchanges of water will be adjusted by the amoúnt above or below said,two percent accuracy
standard as appropriate from the last date that the meter was known to bê:operating properly
or, if such date cannot be determined, from a daté:rnidway between the date the meter was
last tested and the date correct, readings again commenced. However, under no

circumstances shall the adjustment period exceed oneryear. North Marin shall read such
meters and make an accounting to Sonoma Water and Marin Municipal.

H. Meters for Deliveries

Meters used to measure deliveries made to North Marin, excluding deliveries at Kastania,
Nicasio Creek or Lagunitas Creek,l shall be tested for accuracy at least once annually by
North Marin at ltrlo,rth Marin's experìsê;:,MarinMuniÔipal shall be provided with a report of said

test. Marin Muñióipâlshall haverth.e right to make additional tests at any time at its expense.
A meter shãll be recalib'iâted if it is:found to be inaccurate by more than two percent and in
such event,delivery data ahd,corresponding payments or exchanges of water will be adjusted
by the amount above or below said two percent accuracy standard as appropriate from the
last date that the meter was',known to be operating properly or, if such date cannot be

determined, from a date midway between the date the meter was last tested and the date
correct readings again commended. However, under no circumstances shall the adjustment
period exceed orìe !eâr. North Marin shall read such meters and make an accounting to
Sonoma Water and Marin Municipal.

4. OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES

Marin Municipal owns the portion of Reach 1 south of the Pacheco Valle
lnterconnection, including the valve that connects the Norlh Marin and Marin
Municipal Water Systems at that point, the Hamilton Bypass Pipeline,

to North Marin
..:

A
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Reach 2, including the valves that connect it to the Main Gate Road
lnterconnection and the Novato Bypass pipeline in Reach 3, Pacheco Tanks
and the lgnacio Pump Station; and will own the Kastania Pump Station in
Reach 4 pursuant to the 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer Agreement.

North Marin owns Branches 1 and 2, the porlion of Reach 1 north of the
Pacheco Valle lnterconnection, all other pipelines in Reach 3 and Reach 4, Air
Base Tank, the Lynwood, Atherton, Palmer Drive and Amaroli Tanks and the
San Marin Control Station.

C Sonoma Water owns, operates and maintains Kastania Tank and billing meter
vault.

5. OPERATION ANDMAINTENANGE

A. Operation of Facilities

2

1. Marin Municipal 'shall be responsible for the operation,
maintenance, repair and replacement of the facilities it owns. Control of
flow in Reach 3 and Reach 4 shall be'dictated by the Kastania Pump
Station Operations MOU and Atherton, Lynwood and Palmer Drive Tank
levels such that the hydraulic grade line in Reach 4 at the point of
connection with fts¿çþ 3:,does not fall below operation levels of these
tanks as determined by North Marin. North Marin shall inform Marin
Municipal prior to modifying the minimum operation levels of the tanks
that dictate tne control of flow in Reach 3 and Reach 4.

North,Marin Shall be reSþônSiblê for oþeiation, maintenance, repair and
replacement of the facilities it owns and Operational Control of the
Kastania Pump Station.

North Mariñ,',Shall have the right to meet the needs of its customers
including backfeeding watêi from the North Marin Aqueduct to Stafford
Lake. Before bâCkfeeding any water North Marin shall consult with Marin
Municipaland Sonoma Water and will make every reasonable attempt to

. develop a plan of operation that will minimize disruption of deliveries of
',Marin Municipal's Russian River water.

1¡6 ,re.hab,ilitáted and recommissioned Kastania Pump Station is

constrúCtéd to solely benefit Marin Municipal and Marin Municipal shall
have the right to use the capacity of the Kastania Pump Station to the
extent that surplus capacity exists in North Marin's system to transfer
water to Marin Municipal.

B

1

4
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B. Standards of Maintenance

The party assigned responsibility for operation, maintenance, repair and
replacement of the lntertie Facilities shall at all times keep said facility in good
repair and working order throughout the term of this Agreement.

6. PAYMENT AND EXCHANGE PROVISIONS

A. Payment for Delivery of Marin Municipal's Russian River Water

1 Marin Municipal shall pay North Marin a wheeling charge for all Marin
Municipal's Russian River water delivered pursuant to Section 3. On the
effective date of this agreement the whêeling charge shall be $15.39 per
acre-foot as the base charge, plus an additional $5.14 per acre-foot set
aside charge. Together the total',wheeling charge shall be $20.53 per
acre-foot, $5.14 per acre-foot of which shall be allocated and credited to
Marin Municipal's share of ,,thê future replacement costs of the North
Marin Aqueduct, including the escalation as described below. The
wheeling charge and set aside charge shall be increased on July '1 of
each subsequent year, begihning July ,1 2022, to reflect the change in

the Engineering News
Francisco Bay aréa'for
escalator on the wheelin
4o/o per year and n

Record 
'ConStr'úction 

Cost lndex for the San
the precedi,n$ 12 months (the "escalator"). The
g and set aside charges shall be no greater than

2 . ln recognition of North'M:arin's investment in the AEEP, Marin Municipal
has,made principal payments to North Marin in the amount of $1,692,645
and''shall make annual payments to North Marin in the amount of
$205,320.each July 1, from 2022 through 2032 as fair compensation for

,,,,.,the AEEP capital côst,,The parlies agree that the AEEP project's actual
"CoSts, exclusive of those costs paid by Caltrans total $7,103.691 and

such:that Mariñ,Municipal'S,'share of the final actual costs of the AEEP
are equá'l.,to 51 percent and North Marin's share of the final actual costs
of the AEEP are equal to 49 percent.

B. Payment for Delivery of North Marin's Russian River Water

North Marin'shâll pay Marin Municipal a wheeling charge for all Notlh Marin's
water delivered pursuant to Section 3. On the effective date of this agreement
the wheeling charge shall be $3.84 per acre-foot. The wheeling charge shall
be increased on July 1 of each subsequent year, beginning July 1 ,2022,
to reflect the change in the Engineering News Record Construction Cost
lndex for the San Francisco Bay area for the preceding '12 months (the
"escalator"). The escalator on the wheeling charge shall be no greater than
4o/o per year and no less than 2% per year.

Payment for water delivered to North Marin pursuant to Section 3.0.,
Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road, and Bel Marin Keys lnterconnections, will
be by exchange, as provided in Section 6.0., below.
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ln addition, for each acre-foot of water delivered to North Marin pursuant
to Section 3.0., Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road and Bel Marin Keys
lnterconnections, North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal the wheeling
charge.

For all such water delivered to North Marin downstream of lgnacio Pump
Station, North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal a charge per acre-foot equal
to the total annual out-of-pocket cost of energy consumed and treatment
chemicals provided by Marin Municipal at the lgnacio Pump Station divided
by the total volume of water pumped during,the same period.

Compensation for Nicasio or Lagunitas'Ç¡6ek Deliveries and Other Water
Delivered by Marin Municipal ' ,' 

,., . .

For each acre-foot of water delivered by Marin Municipal to North Marin
pursuant to Section 3.C., Lagunitas or Nicasio Creek, North Marin shall pay
Marin Municipal $243.68 / acre-foot. This charge shall be increased on July 1

of each subsequent year, beginning July 1,2022, to reflectthe change in the
Engineering Cost lndex for the San Francisco Bay

iescalator). The escalator shall be no
an 2o/n per year.

area for the
greater than

D. Exchange Deliveries by North a

E

On the terms and conditions set forth in this sub paragraph 6. D. North Marin
shall deliver to Marin Municipal water referred to as "exchange water" equal to
the quantity of water delivered to North Marin pursuant to Sections 3.0. At the

,,.,énO:.of êach fisCá! year North Marin shall subtract from its reporting to Sonoma
Water of Márin Municipal use ôf Russian River water for the month of June of
said fiscal yéàr'an amount of water equal to the total amount of water delivered
to North Marin under the terms of said Section.

Payment of North M,arin's Expenses for Operating lntertie Facilities

Annual expenses incurred by North Marin in operating, maintaining, repairing
and replacin$ {¡s lnterlie Facilities it owns shall be, unless expressly provided
for in this agreement, the responsibility of and paid by North Marin.

F. Payment of Marin Municipal's Expenses for Operating lntertie Facilities

Annual expenses incurred by Marin Municipal in operating, maintaining,
repairing, and replacing the lntertie Facilities it owns shall be, unless expressly
provided for in this agreement, the responsibility of and paid by Marin
Municipal. Costs related to rehabilitating and recommissioning Kastania Pump
Station including. planning, permitting, design, construction (materials,
equipment and labor including the necessary piping tie-ins to the Kastania
Pipeline and North Marin Aqueduct) and ongoing operations, maintenance and
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replacement costs shall be borne solely by Marin Municipal

G. Billing and Payment

The party delivering water pursuant to this agreement for which a unit charge
in dollars per acre-foot is assessed shall bill not more frequently than monthly
for same and the receiving pady shall pay the amount of such billing within 30
days of receipt of same. For all other charges due under this agreement, the
billing pady shall prepare a bill which the receiving party shall pay within 30
days of receipt of same. Notwithstanding any dispute between the parties
hereto, the receiving pafty shall pay all bills when due and shall not withhold
all or any part of any payment pending the final resolution of such dispute. ln
the event of a dispute, the receiving party may pay its bills under protest and if
the resolution of the dispute results in a refund, said refund shall be paid within
30 days.

7. COOPERATION PROVISIONS

A. General

Upon request, the parties will support and assist the efforts of each other to
maintain and enhance the reliability of their water supplies from Sonoma
Water, provided said support and assistance, as determined by said party, will
not have an adverse impact on its customers nor be in conflict with law,
regulation or the established policies of said party.

B. Corrosion,Protection

North Marin malnta,¡ns á,n.'extensive cathodic protection system for the North
,: ,,ffi¿¡i¡:':Aq:ueduct. Marin Municipal shall consult North Marin in designing the

',,,,," cathodic'þrotection system for its existing or any future lntertie Facilities and
,. agrees to deSign and install a system at its sole cost that will be fully compatible

with North MaÍin's system and not contribute to the deterioration of the North
Marin Aqueduct.

C. Stafford Lake Treatment Plant Operations

1. North Márin will endeavor in good faith to produce 2,000 acre-feet of
treated potable water at its Stafford Lake water treatment facility each
year through the term of this agreement.

Notwithstanding the cooperative pledge of Section 3.A.2 and Section
7.C.1, the parties acknowledge and agree that there may be periods
when insufficient inflow to Stafford Lake or other operational constraints
may prevent Nofth Marin from meeting the Stafford Lake Water

2
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treatment facility potable water production goals stated in Section 3.A.2
and Section 7.C.1.

ln such periods when insufficient inflow to Stafford Lake prevents North
Marin from meeting the Stafford Lake water treatment facility goals
pursuant to Section 3.A.2 or Section 7.C.1 of this agreement, Marin
Municipal may request North Marin to backfeed Marin Municipal's
Russian River water into Stafford Lake pursuant to a Stafford Lake
Agreement in form similar to that executed on February 20,2009 and
updated with then current and pertinent Diversion, Delivery and Payment
provisions. Before backfeeding any water, North Marin shall consultwith
Marin Municipal and Sonoma Water and will make every reasonable
attempt to develop a plan of operation that will minimize disruption of
deliveries of Marin Municipal's Russia'h,River water.

D. Joint Projects and/or Programs for Future lntegrated Water Supply Operations

3

North Marin and Marin Municipal will evaluate and consider joint project(s)
and/or program(s) for future integrated water supply operations. The parlies
will jointly determine which party will be the lead agency for purposes of
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Act ("CEQA").
For each proposed joint project or program, the parties will shàre costs of the
project and environmental Íeview in proþortion to each district's respective
share of the water supply capacity,or yield fiom the proposed project and/or
program, regar:dless of which party is the lead agency.

E. Future Replacement of the North Marin Aqueduct

Norlh Marin',Úill replace the North Marin Aqueduct, including Reach 4a, when

,,flec€ssâry due to condition or other factors, at a time yet to be determined.
. ',, , Sâid'rép,lacement may be solely a North Marin project or combined projects of

,' .,,',, *onn Máiin,':and Marin Municipal, as jointly determined by the parties. Marin
; lvlLr¡icipal's share of the costs for future replacement of the North Marin

Aqueduct shall bê the subject of a future agreement between the parlies, taking

F

into'account the future replacement payment already made by Marin Municipal
for sùCh. purpose pursuant to section 6(AX1).

Option foi'Marin.,lVunicipal to Make Use of North Marin's Existing Easements
and for Futu'r"é:Mârin Municipal Pipeline.

1 North Marin has pipeline easements for the Nofth Marin Aqueduct. These
easements were originally acquired by North Marin with the plan that a
second Norlh Marin aqueduct would eventually be constructed. lf Marin
Municipal elects and North Marin consents to locate facilities in right-of-
ways in which North Marin has existing easements, North Marin will
cooperate in efforts by Marin Municipalto obtain property interests Marin
Municipal deems necessary for installation and operation of said facilities.
To the extent any existing easement held by North Marin is utilized by
Marin Municipal, said utilization shall be the subject of a future agreement
between the parties.
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2. lf Marin Municipal develops a pipeline project that would be parallel to
Reach 4A and that would include an interconnection to the North Marin
Aqueduct at or above Reach 4A, upon execution and implementation of
the agreement between the parties identified in this Section 7.F.2 and
subject to compliance with CEQA, North Marin will suppott the proposed
project and the interconnection will be completed upon Marin Municipal's
determination to interconnect. The terms of that agreement will address
the following: the location of the proposed project and the appropriate
time of the interconnection to accommodate the shutdown of the North
Marin Aqueduct, environmental review, engineering, construction,
operation, maintenance and replacement of the facilities, and
indemnification. Subject to compliance with CEQA, approval of said
agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld. The project will be subject
to CEQA documentation for which Mârin Municipal will be the lead
agency. North Marin will be a responsible agency under CEQA, but
nothing in this section shall affect North 'Marin's legal responsibilities
under CEQA.

8. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. California Environmental Quality Act

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, Marin Municipal is

designated as the lead agency for any environmental documentation that may
be required for this Agreernent North Marin was the lead agency for the AEEP,
for which the Final EIR was certified and the project approved on July 19,2011,
Marin Munlciþal,.,,is designated as,the tead agency for any environmental
documeniátión that may be required for restoration of the Kastania Pump
Station,'this Agreement, the 2021 Kastania Pump Station TransferAgreement,
and the Mérnorandum of Understanding for Operation of the Kastania Pump
Station and Operatión,'of the El5r Soorter Pump Station (collectively the
"Kastania Pump Station Restoration Project").

lndemnification

Marin Municipal shall indemnify and defend North Marin, and its Board
members, officerS, agents and employees (each an "lndemnified Party" and
collectively "lndemnified Parties")from and against any and all claims, demands,
causes of ,action,: damages, costs, expenses (including legal, expert witness,
and consulting'feés and costs, any judgment or other award of attorneys' fees
or costs and any costs of record preparation), losses, or liabilities, in law or
equity, or alleged by any third parties arising directly out of, or resulting directly
from, any and all litigation, lawsuits, claims, or causes of action challenging any
approval of the Kastania Pump Station Restoration Project and its associated
agreements. ln the event any action or proceeding is brought against an
lndemnified Party by reason of a claim arising out of any loss for which Marin
Municipal has indemnified the lndemnified Party, and upon written notice from
such lndemnified Pafiy, Marin Municipal shall at its sole expense answer and
otherwise defend such action or proceeding. The lndemnified Party shall have
the right, exercised in its sole discretion, but without being required to do so, to
defend, adjust, settle or compromise any claim, obligation, debt, demand, suit,
or judgment against the lndemnified Party. The indemnity shall include, without
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limitation, Marin Municipal's obligation to pay reasonable attorney's fees and
costs, reasonable fees of consultants and experts, and related costs.

Termination of Existing Agreements

The "lnterconnection Agreement" dated February 2014 is hereby superseded
by this agreement and is no longer in effect.

Method and Place of Giving Notice and Making Payments

All notices shall be in writing and notices and payments may be given by
personal delivery or by mail. Notices and payments sent by mail shall be
addressed as follows: ,

North Marin: North Marin Water District
Attn: General Manager
P.O. Box'146
Novato, CA 94948-0146

Marin Municipal Marin Municipal Water District
Attn: General Manager
220 Nellen Avenue
Code Madera, CA 94925

Changes may, be made in ihe addresses of the persons to whom notices and
payments are to be given by giving nótice pursuant to this section.
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D. Third Party Beneficiaries

No third-party beneficiaries are intended or established by this agreement

E. Representation by Counsel

North Marin and Marin Municipal each were represented by independent
counsel in the negotiation and execution of this agreement. For the
purposes of interpretation of this agreement, neither pafty shall be deemed
to have been the drafter of this agreement.

F. Mediation

Any dispute occurring under this Agreemênt shall first be reviewed by the
parties, who shall meet and attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute
through negotiation. ln the event that the parties cannot resolve any such
dispute between them, then, upon 3O-days' notice, the parlies shall submit
such dispute to mediation by a mutually acceptable neutral mediator. lf any
such dispute is not resolved thiough mediation, unleSé the parties agree in
writing upon an alternative form of and forum for dispute resolution, each
party shall have the.rightto pursue any remedies it may have in law or in
equity. Any such litigation concerning claims and disputes related to this
Agreementshall be filed in the Superior Court in and for Marin County, and
each Party hereby waives its right to move to change venue.

Severability ,,,

lf any oneror rnorê,"l,""rtions, þr:ov1s1ons, promises or conditions of this
agreement is declaréd ,nul,l and void or voidable for any reason by a final
'judgment 

or ordér of a court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby declared to
be the intention of both parlies and agreed that each and all of the other

, sections, prov'ision, promises and conditions of this agreement shall be and
remain in full force and effect.

G.

':l

H Term of Agreemeñt

The term of thisrãgreement shall extend from the date of execution hereof
until June 30, 2040 or the expiration of the Restructured Agreement for
Water Supply, together with any renewals thereof or of a successor
agreement to the Restructured Agreement for Water Supply, whichever
shall occur later.
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lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on
the date first above written.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST

District Secretary

MARIN M U N IC IPAL WATE.R, D ISTR ICT

,F.residént, Board of Directors

District Secretary

ATTEST

t:\qm\mmwd\agreernents\interconnection compare and conÍasl 11.12.2021 clean.docx
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this 5 day of @December. 2021by
and between NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public body;Jherein ledcAlleçl
"North Marin#) and MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a public body;Jherein
called "Marin Municipa l+")lNorth Marin a nd Marin [Vlunicinal shall be col refnrred
to as "Parties").

RECITALS

A. From time to time there exists surplus capacity in the North Marin water
system.

B. From time to time there exists surplus capacity in the Marin Municipal water
system.

C. Pursuant to the

e
agreements are defined in Section 1(s) of this Agreement), Sonoma County
Water Agency ("Sonoma Water") delivers Marin Municipal's Russian River
water to the North Marin Aqueduct at the Kastania meter station, North Marin's
metered turnout, as depicted on Exh¡ lt is expected that pursuant to any
amendment to said agreement deliveries will contínue to the same location.

D. Pursuant to the
WaterW

this term is defined in Section 1(r) of

delivers Notlh Marin's Russian River
water to the North Marin Aqueduct. lt is expected that pursuant to any
amendment to said agreement deliveries will continue to the same location.

During certain times of the year it is anticipated there will be surplus capacity
in the North Marin Aqueduct.

North Marin owns certain pipeline and construction easements which contain
the North Marin Aqueduct and which were planned to accommodate a second
aqueduct.

G. Marin Municipal desires to utilize finished water reservoir storage available in

North Marin's water system, including the Atherlon, Lynwood, Palmer Drive
and AmaroliTanks, to balance pump operations upstream and downstream of
Reach 3. North Marin desires to augment deliveries to finished water storage
reservoirs in the south end of its water system from Reach 1,2,and 3.

Marin Municipal has the capability of releasing water from its reservoirs into
Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek for the benefit of North Marin which extracts water

+
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from stream side wells located downstream

Caltrans US Highway 101 between
Novato and Petaluma, the Marin-Sonoma Narrows Project, that
feqL+lfes re uired relocation of the North Marin Aqueduct adjacent to the
highway

at



Senema Âgeney, Âs ef the effeetive date ef this agreement average daily

(19,9 mgd fer Nerth Marin and 12,8 mgd fer MarinMunieipal),

K, Under eurrent eenditiens the eleetrie rneter driven pumps at the Kastania
Pump Statien must remainin serviee at alltimes during the summer menths if
Nerth Marin and Marin Munieipal arete meetthe needs ef their eustemers'

Ae0+ensfer-yeah

Wing
Ì*J. North Marin const the ctE ject (AEEP) to

a Pumpupsize the North M
Landfill Road, includ
due to the Caltrans

ueduct
orth Ma

101
uct sections requ

n to Redwood
iring relocation

oma Narrows Project. The
of water by

existing or proiected

nAq

proclaiming a State of Emergency to exist in Mendocino and Sonoma counties
due to severe drought conditions in the Russian River Watershed. which was
extended to Marin County on July 8. 2021.

M. In connection with the 2021 drought. Marin Municipal proposes the
rehabilitation and recommissioning of the Kastania Pump Station. which will
enable Marin Water the operational flexibility to meet its water supply needs
when they cannot be met through gravity flow on the North Marin Aqueduct. in
particular to address temoorary facility disruption or outages and anticipated

3



rs dro â

O,N[._North Marin operates its Stafford Lake Water Treatment facility during summer
monthstoutilizelocalwatersupplyandpartialIyoffsetNorthlM
Russian River water deliveries, thereby increasing surplus capacity in the North

Marin Aqueduct.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the mutual promises
made herein, North Marin and Marin Municipal agree as follows:

å*.-1 . DEFINITIONS

As used herein, the terms

(a) n"Annually+ïper annum.ï or r_fiscal yea{ means a twelve-month period
commencing July 1 and ending June 30.

(b) tt_lntertie Facilitiesr_ means all the interconnecting facilities of Marin
Municipal and Norlh Marin through which water can flow for the benefit of
one or the other party including all:attached and appurtenant facilities such
as valves, meters, blow-offs, control cables and deVices, cathodic
protection equipment, âhd electrical services and comprised of the
following principal components shown on the schematic diagram attached
hereto and marked rjEihjbit A* .

4



(€)

(1) Reach 1, consisting of approximately 4,3t+038Q feet of '18-inch and 16-

inch pipeline extending from Big Rock Ridge north to the Main Gate
Road;

(2) Reach 2, consisting of approximately 1'1,100 feet of 3O-inch pipeline
extending north from Main Gate Road to a point nearthe Highway 101

and Highway 37 interchange where said 3O-inch pipeline connects with a
24-inch and 36-inch pipeline at a connection called the Wye;

(3) Reach 3 contains two parallel pipeline systems; one owned by North
Marin called the North Marin lntertie consisting of approximately 4,980
feet of 24-inch pipeline extending from the westerly end of Branch 2 north
to Redwood Blvd and Sunset Parkway and approximately 14,300 feet of
28.5-inch pipeline north of said intersection to a point of connection with
the 28.5-inch North Marin Aqueduct at the San Marin Control Station; and
the other owned by Marin Municipal called the Novato Bypass consisting
of approximately 20,100 feet of 36-inch pipeline extending from the Wye
north to a point of connection with the 28.5-inch North Marin Aqueduct
immediately north of the San MarinControl Station;

(4) Reach 4, also called the North Marin Aqueduct, consisting of
approximately 17,000 feet of 28.5-inch pipeline extending from the
northern terminus of Reach 3 to Redwood Landfill Road (Reach 4a) and
approximately 24,000 feet of ?8$4!-inch pipeline extending from
Redwood Landfill Road to the Sonoma
Pipeline near Kastania Pump Station (Reach ab);M
upsized te a-42,-ineh pipeline as part ef the AEEP; enabling eliminatien

(5) -jHamilton Bypass::l means the 36-inch pipeline that parallels Reach 1

extending from Big Rock Ridge north to the Main Gate Road;

(6) :r:Pacheco Tanksrj means the two tanks on Big Rock Ridge at the
terminus of the Hamilton bypass;

(7) lBranch 1* consisting of approximately 3,190 feet of 1B-inch, 12-inch
and B-inch pipeline connecting to Reach 1 al Bolling Drive and
extending south and then easterly to Air Base Tank;

(B) "Branch 2; consisting of 1,492 feet of 24-inch pipeline extending from
the Wye norlh then westerly across Highway 101 to a connection with a
24-inch pipeline;(also referred to as the lNotth Marin lntertiq)

(9) Lynwood, Amaroli and PalmerTanks including pipelines connecting
same to Branch 2 and Reach 2;

(10) Atherlon Tank including pipelines connecting same to Reach 3;

5



(c)

(1 1) Kastania; ineluding Kastania Tank and Kastania Pump Statien;

(11) "Kastania," including Kastania Pipeline (Kastania Pipeline is that
portion of the 3O-inch cement mortar-lined steel aqueduct defined
and transferred to Sonoma Water pursuant to the Agreement Among
the Sonoma County Water Agency, The North Marin Water District
And The Marin Municipal Water District For Acquisition Of A Portion
Of The North M A nn Aor¡educt And The Kastan Pumnino P lânt"

dated April 13, 1999), Kastania Tank and Kastania Pump Station:

(12) Pacheco Valle lnterconnection (Reach 1);

(13) Hamilton Main Gate Road lnterconnection (where Reach 1 meets
Reach 2);

(14) Bel Marin Keys lnterconnection (Reach2);

(15) Wye lnterconnection (on Branch 2 where Reach 2 meets Reach 3);

(16) San Marin lnterconnection (where Reach 3 meets Reach4)

lrjother interconnections-l means other interconnections or facilities in
place or from time to time constructed and added to either the Marin
Municipal or North Marin water system which the parties hereto mutually
agree are needed to effectively carry out the provisions of this agreement.

(d) ll:North Marin Aqueduct::l means lntedie Facility (b) (4) or Reach 4, North
+garinsMal¡S pipeline extending south from the Sonoma Ageneywalgl
pipeline near Kastania Pump Station to the San Marin Control Station in
Novato.

(e) 1!:Marin @ Russian River water-l means water
furnished and delivered by Sonoma AgefieyllAle¡ to Marin Municipal at
Kastania.

(f) lrjMarin MunicipalWater System:ti means allthe reservoirs, both rawwater
and finished water, pumps, aqueducts, pipelines, treatment plants, and
other appurtenant facilities owned and operated by Marin Municipal for
the purpose of providing water service to its customers.

(g) :tlmgd:tl means millions of gallons per day, a rate of flow.

(h) ttjNorth n¡arins,Mafrnþ Russian River wate{ means water furnished and
delivered by Sonoma AgeneY\&atel to North Marin at Kastania.

(i) r:North Marin Water Systemrl means all the reservoirs, both raw water
and finished water, pumps, aqueducts, pipelines, treatment plants, and
other appuftenant facilities owned and operated by Notlh Marin for the
purpose of providing water service to its customers.

Uf([]NovatoBypass!1]meansMarin@36-inchpipeline
6



extending -from the Wye north to a point just north of North *qarinblt¡ar¡n's
San Marin Control Station.

ß)_! OperationalContr
pressure set point ranges from within the North Marin water distribution
system to determine whether or not the Kastania Pumps can be operated
by Marin Municipal. Also refer to Section 5.4.1 of this Agreement.

(k[[]Point(s) of delivery:t' means any point or points from time to time
mutually agreed to by the parties which are located within, are part of, or
are connected to, the lntertie Facilities or other point or points of delivery
mutually agreed to by the parties. As e date of this agreement, the
following points of delivery exist

7



(1) iPacheco Valle: the point of
between the most southerly 1B-inch segment of Marin

@ Reach 1 pipeline and North n¡arinslt¡adnþ
1B inch and 14-inch Pacheco Valle pipeline, near Pacheco Valle.

(2) Main Gate Road: two points of interconnection: one being south,
between Hamilton Bypass and the most northerly 1B-inch segment
of the North Marin porlion of the Reach 1 pipeline located near the
Hamilton School and the second being to the north, between Marin

@ 3O-inch Reach 2 pipeline and the Lanham
Village distribution system.

(3) Bel Marin -Keys: the point of interconnection between Marin

@ 30-inch Reach 2 pipeline and Notlh
l+a+i++lt¡afl¡þ 16-inch Bel Marin Keys pipeline.

(4) San Marin Control Station: the point of interconnection between
Reach 4 facilities and Reach 3 facilities.

(5) Nicasio Creek: the downstream end of the pipe located at the base
of Seeger Dam (Nicasio Lake) used to release water to Nicasio
Creek.

(6) Lagunitas Creek: the downstream end of the pipe located at the
base of Peters Dam (Kent Lake) used to release water to Lagunitas
Creek.

(7) The Wye: the point of interconnection between Reach 2 and Reach
3 facilities.

(l) r_lReleaserl means, the release of water to North l¿arinçMaÍnþ West
Marin Service Area, at either the Lagunitas Creek or Nicasio Creek points
of delivery from Kent or Nicasio Lakes.

(m) !::Replacement cost{ means the cost associated with, or the act of,
acquisition of material and installation of same for the correction of
irreparable,wear or other deterioration of parts or elements of a given
structure or facility.

(n) ljsonoma ngeftelFwate( means Sonoma County Water Agency, a public
body.

(o) :::Summer monthsll means May, June, July, August and September

(p) ttlSurplus capacityrl means the capacity of any facility of the watersystem
of one of the parties hereto which said party solely and conclusively
determines is in excess of the needs of itscustomers.

(q) :r:Caltransrl mean the State of California Department ofTransportation

I



(r) ttjRestructured Agreement for Water Supply-_ means the agreement
between North Marin and
Valley of
Cotati, Petaluma. Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sonoma eeuntyand
Windsor and the Sonoma ngefieywale¡ that became effective on June
23,2006.

(s) Water Supply Agreementttj
and the "Second Amended Agreement for the Sale of Water" means the

@ between Marin Municipal and the-Sonoma

2015.

Agreementr: means the agreement between/+\ trlnfn'*inrr
\ r,l

Marin Municipal and North Marin dated ¡*arcn+Ç+ge+

(uXt)
+

Base; Nevate; Galifernia" between Marin Munieipal and Nerth Marin
WFebruary5,2014.

+.2. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this agreement is to provide the basis for and mechanism whereby
Marin Municipal and North Marin can each, as a first priority, continue to meet the
needs of their respective customers, and simultaneously, to the extent feasible,
utilize their respective water systems and surplus system capacity in a coordinated
manner for the benefit of the customers of both Districts.

+.LWATER DELTVERY PROVTSTONS

A. North n¡ar¡+slt¡attnþ Delivery of Marin W Russian River
Water

North Marin shall deliver Marin @ Russian River
water through the North Marin Water System at such point or points of
delivery, at such times and at such rates of flow as determined by Marin
Municipal, subject, however, to the availability of surplus capacity and
provided such deliveries may be made in a manner that will not prevent
North Marin from meeting its contractual obligations to Sonoma
AgeneyWatg and will normally not lower the water level in North
løa+insMelnS Atherton, Palmer Drive, Lynwood or Amaroli Tanks below
operating levels determined by North Marin.

2. North Marin will endeavor in good faith to produce 1,300 AF of treated
potable water at its Stafford Lake water treatment facility during the
period of May 15 through September 15 each calendaryear.

3. North Marin will maintain Operational Control over the Kastania Pump
Station. which will be operated consistent with this Agreement and the
Kastania Pump Station Operations MOU. Marin Municipalwill operate the

I



Kastania Pump Station to address its operational maintenance needs.
including system outages. planned maintenance and system upgrades
that may disrupt normal operations: and anticipated water shortfalls due
to dry years: drought: and other emergencies.

B. Marin Municipal's Delivery of North Marin's Russian River Water

Marin Municipal shall deliver North Marin's Russian River water through the Marin Municipal
Water System at such point or points of delivery, at such time and at such rates of flow as
determined by North Marin, subject to the availability of surplus capacity and provided such
deliveries may be made in a manner that will not prevent Marin Municipal from meeting

10



C. Marin Municipal's Delivery to Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek

On North Marin's request, when flow in Lagunitas Creek is determined by North Marin to be
low or when the dry year condition described in State Water Resources Control Board Order
95-17 occurs, Marin Municipal shall release to Nicasio Creek or Lagunitas Creek for North
Marin's benefit up to 250 acre-feet per year. Said water shall be used by North Marin within
its lnverness-Point Reyes Annexation Territory as same is recorded in Volume 2118 of the
official Records of Marin County at Page 304 through 314. Additional amounts of water may
be released by Marin Municipal upon North Marin's request subject to the availability of
surplus water, as determined solely by Marin Municipal. Whether releases of requested water
are made from Seeger Dam / Nicasio Lake or Peters Dam / Kent Lake shall be determined
by Marin Municipal. All deliveries made by Marin Municipal pursuant to this section shall be
over and above those releases that Marin Municipal must make to meet instream flow and
water rights requirements as ordered by the State Water Resources Control Board.

ln addition, if in any year that North Marin requests water under this Section and Marin
Municipal has requested voluntary or mandatory water use reductions of its customers in
eastern Marin County, North Marin shall require its customers in its lnverness-Point Reyes
Annexation Territory to reduce water-use byþ an equal or greater percentage; using the
methodology included in North Marin's "Water Shortage Contingency Plan for West Marin
Service Area", dated August 23, 2002, or any subsequent Plan.

D. Marin Municipal Deliveries to North Marin at the Pacheco Valle, Main Gate
Road and Bel Marin Keys lnterconnections

At North Marin's request and subject to availability of supply and capacity in Marin Municipal's
Water System, Marin Municipal shall deliver to North Marin such quantities of water as North
Marin requires to augment supply to the south end of its water system at its Pacheco Valle,
Main Gate Road and Bel Marin Keys interconnections. Prior to said deliveries of water to
North Marin, North Marin, at its expense, shall install metering facilities acceptable to Marin
Municipal.

E. Risk of Loss

Risk of loss and responsibility for the handling and control of all water delivered hereunder
shall pass from the party making the delivery to the party receiving the delivery at the point
of delivery or release thereof. The parties agree to exercise due diligence in inspecting their
various pipelines and appurtenances and to take steps to guard against unreasonable loss of
water.

11



F. Water Quality

The quality of water delivered by North Marin to Marin Municipal shall be equivalent to the
quality of water served by North Marin in its potable Novato area water system. The quality

of water delivered by Marin Municipal- to North Marin, with the exception of water delivered
pursuant to Section 3.C. hereof, which shall be untreated water, and water from Sonoma
AgefieyyyAtef delivered through the Marin Municipal Water System upstream of the lgnacio
pump station, shall be equivalent to the quality of water leaving Marin Municipal's lgnacio
Pump Station, including any fluoridation and corrosion control treatment conducted by Marin
Municipal.

G. Meters for Deliveries to Marin Municipal

Meters used to measure deliveries made to Marin Municipal shall be tested for accuracy at
least once annually by Marin Municipal at Marin Municipal's expense. North Marin shall be
provided with a report of said test. North Marin shall have the right to make additional tests
at any time at its expense. A meter shall be recalibrated if it is found to be inaccurate by
more than two percent and in such event delivery data and corresponding payments or
exchanges of waterwill be adjusted bythe amount above or below said two percent accuracy
standard as appropriate from the last date that the meter was known to be operating properly
or, if such date cannot be determined, from a date midway between the date the meter was
last tested and the date correct readings again commenced. However, under no

circumstances shall the adjustment period exceed one year. Norlh Marin shall read such
meters and make an accounting to Sonoma *geneywatq and Marin Municipal.

H. Meters for Deliveries to North Marin

Meters used to measure deliveries made to North Marin, excluding deliveries at Kastania,
Nicasio Creek or Lagunitas Creek, shall be tested for accuracy at least once annually by
North Marin at North Marin's expense. MarinMunicipal shall be provided with a report of said
test. Marin Municipal shall have the right to make additional tests at any time at its expense.
A meter shall be recalibrated if it is found to be inaccurate by more than two percent and in
such event delivery data and corresponding payments or exchanges of waterwill be adjusted
by the amount above or below said two percent accuracy standard as appropriate from the
last date that the meter was known to be operating properly or, if such date cannot be

determined, from a date midway between the date the meter was last tested and the date
correct readings again commenced. However, under no circumstances shallthe adjustment
period exceed one year. North Marin shall read such meters and make an accounting to
Sonoma Agefieyyvqtgl and Marin Municipal.

+.4. OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES

Marin Municipal owns the portion of Reach 1 south of the Pacheco Valle
lnterconnection, including the valve that connects the North Marin and Marin
Municipal Water Systems at that point, the Hamilton Bypass Pipeline,

A
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B

C

Reach 2, including the valves that connect it to the Main Gate Road
lnterconnection and the Novato Bypass pipeline in Reach 3, Pacheco Tanks
and the lgnacio Pump Station: and will own the Kastania Pump Station in
Reach 4 pursuant to the 2021 Kastania Pump Station Transfer Agreement.

North Marin owns Branches 1 and 2, the portion of Reach 1 north of the
Pacheco Valle lnterconnection, all other pipelines in Reach 3 and Reach 4, Air
Base Tank, the Lynwood, Atherton, Palmer Drive and Amaroli Tanks and the
San Marin Control Station.

Sonoma Ageneywale¡ owns, operates and maintains Kastania Tank and the

ê5. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

A. Operation of Facilities

1 1. _Marin Municipal shall be responsible for the operation,
maintenance, repair and replacement of the facilities it owns. Control of
flow-in Reach 3 and Reach 4 shall be dictated bythe,Kastania Pump
Station Operations MOU and Atherton, Lynwood and Palmer Drive Tank
levels such that the hydraulic grade line in Reach 4 at the point of
connection with Reach 3 does not fall below operation levels of these
tanks as determined by North Marin. North Marin shall inform Marin
Municipal prior to modifying the rninimum operation levels of the tanks
that dictate the control of flow in Reach 3= and Reach 4.

2 North Marin shall be responsible for operation, maintenance, repair and
replacement of the facilities it owns and ffi

of the Kastania Pump Statiory-st*bieel4e
Seetien 5,4,3 belew.

ien

The Kastania Pump Statien; eenstrueted te benefit beth-Marin

(alQ-North Marin shall have the right{e+se{hepumpstatien to meet the needs
of its customers including backfeeding water from the North Marin
Aqueduct to Stafford Lake. Before backfeeding any water North Marin
shall consult with Marin Municipal and Sonoma A€eneylVatg and will
make every reasonable attempt to develop a plan of operation that will
minimize disruption of deliveries of Marin Municipal's Russian River
water.

constructed to solely benefit Marin Municipal and Marin Municipal shall
have the right to use the capacity of the Kastania Pump Station to the
extent that surplus capacity exists in North Marin's system to transfer
water to Marin Municipal.

13



(e) enee Reaeh 4b i+upsized te a 4lineh pipeline as part ef the AEEP and the AEEP is

@
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B. Standards of Maintenance

The party assigned responsibility for operation, maintenance, repair and
replacement of the lntertie Facilities shall at all times keep said facility in good
repair and working order throughout the term of this Agreement.

+6. PAYMENT AND EXCHANGE PROVISIONS

A. Payment for Delivery of Marin Municipal's Russian River Water

1 Marin Municipal shall pay North Marin a wheeling charge for all Marin
Municipal's Russian River water delivered pursuant to Section 3. On the
effective date of this agreement the wheeling charge shall be $4+eerc 39
per acre-foot as the base charge, plus an additional $4S95.1¿[ per acre-
foot set aside charge. Together the total wheeling charge shall be

$1æ020;53 per acre-foot, $4Q$5.14 per acre-foot of which shall be
allocated and credited to Marin Municipal's share of the future
replacement costs of the North Marin Aqueduct, including the escalation
as described below. The wheeling charge and set aside charge shall be
increased on July 1 of each subsequent year, beginning July 1,

2gaaM, to reflect the change in the -Engineering -News -Record
Construction *Cost *lndex -for- the San Francisco Bay area for the
preceding '12 months (the "escalator"). The escalator on the wheeling and
set aside charges shall be no greater lhan 4o/o per year and no less than
2o/o peryear.

z
B.

2. ln recognition of North Marin's investment in the AEEP, Marin Municipal
toNorthMarinW

eays+remin the
of $'1.692.645 and shall make annual payments to North Marin in the
amount of $2a+,e0e2Q5-32Q each July 1, from 2414l/J¿z^- through 2032
as fair compensation for the AEEP capital cost. The parties agree that
the AEEP project's actual costs, exclusive of those costs paid by
Caltra total $7.103.691
and such that Marin Municipal's share of the final actual costs of the
AEEP are equal to 51 percent and North Marin's share of the final actual
costs of the AEEP are equal to 49 percent. After these final aet
eests are verified by the parties; the adjustment te Marin Munieipal's
annual Baynrent en a geing ferward basis will be ieintly reviewed and
eensidered during the 6 menth peried immediately fellewing sueh ieint
verifieatien and Marin Munieipal's future annual payrnents ef $245;000
will be adjusted te refleet aetual eests ineurred by Nerth Marin fer the

parties; and the parties will be-beund by sueh letter witheut the need te

Payment for Delivery of North Marin's Russian River Water

15



North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal a wheeling charge for all North Marin's
water delivered pursuant to Section 3. On the effective date of this agreement
the wheeling charge shall be $3.g0g4 per acre-foot. The wheeling charge shall
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C

-be increased on July '1 of each subsequent year, beginning July 1,

æ44M, to reflect the change in the Engineering News Record
Construction Cost lndex for the San Francisco Bay area for the preceding
'12 months (the "escalator"). The escalator on the wheeling charge shall be
no greater than 4o/o per year and no less than 2o/o per year.

Payment for water delivered to North Marin pursuant to Section 3.0.,
Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road, and Bel Marin Keys lnterconnections, will
be by exchange, as provided in Section 6.0., below.

ln addition, for each acre-foot of water delivered to North Marin pursuant
to Section 3.0., Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road and Bel Marin Keys
lnterconnections, North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal the wheeling
charge.

For all such water delivered to North Marin downstream of lgnacio Pump
Station, North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal a charge per acre-foot equal
to the total annual out-of-pocket cost of energy consumed and treatment
chemicals provided by Marin Municipal at the lgnacio Pump Station divided
by the total volume of water pumped during the same period.

Compensation for Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek Deliveries and Other Water
Delivered by Marin Municipal

For each acre-foot of water delivered by Marin Municipal to North Marin
pursuant to Section 3.C., Lagunitas or Nicasio Creek, Notth Marin shall pay

Marin Municipal $1€9243-68 / acre-foot. This charge shall be increased on July
1 of each subsequent year, beginning July 1 ,2'844M, to reflect the change
in the Engineering News Record Construction Cost lndex for the San

Francisco Bay area for the preceding 12 months (the escalator). The escalator
shall be no greater than 4o/o per year and no less than 2o/o per year.

D. Exchange Deliveries by North Marin

On the terms and conditions set forth in this sub paragraph 6. D. North Marin

shall deliver to Marín Municipal water referred to as "exchange water" equal to
the quantity of water delivered to North Marin pursuant to Sections 3.0. At the
end of each fiscal year North Marin shall subtract from its repofting to Sonoma
Age+eylyatel of Marin Municipal use of Russian River -water -for -the month

of June of said fiscal year an amount of water equal to the total amount of
water delivered to North Marin under the terms of said Section.

Payment of North Marin's Expenses for Operating lntertie Facilities

Annual expenses incurred by North Marin in operating, maintaining, repairing
and replacing the lntertie Facilities it owns shall be, unless expressly provided
for in this agreement, the responsibility of and paid by North Marin.

E
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F. Payment of ManlqMeru Municipal's Expenses for Operating lntertie Facilities

Annual expenses incurred by Marin Municipal in operating, maintaining,
repairing, and replacing the lntertie Facilities it owns shall be, unless expressly
provided for in this agreement, the responsibility of and paid by Marin
Municipal. Costs related to rehabilitating and recommissioning Kastania Pump
Station including: planning, permitting, design, construction (materials,
equipment and labor including the necessary piping tie-ins to the Kastania
Pipeline and Norlh Marin Aqueduct) and ongoing operations, maintenance and
replacement costs shall be borne solely by Marin Municipal.

G. Billing and Payment

The party delivering water pursuant to this agreement for which a- unit charge
in dollars per acre-foot is assessed shall bill not more frequently than monthly
for same and the receiving party shall pay the amount of such billing within 30
days of receipt of same. For all other charges due under this agreement, the
billing pafty shall prepare a bill which the receiving party -shall pay within 30
days of receipt of same. Notwithstanding any dispute between the parties
hereto, the receiving pafty shall pay all bills when due and shall not withhold
all or any part of any payment pending the final resolution of such dispute. ln
the event of a dispute, the receiving party may pay its bills under protest and if
the resolution of the dispute results in a refund, said refund shall be paid within
30 days.

8.7. COOPERATION PROVISIONS

A. General

Upon request, the parties will support and assist the efforts of each other to
maintain and enhance the reliability of their water supplies from Sonoma
AgeneywAle¡, provided said support and assistance, as determined by said
party, will not have an adverse impact on its custemers nor be in conflict with
law, regulation or the established policies of said party.

B. Corrosion Protection

Notth Marin maintains an extensive cathodic protection system for the North
Marin Aqueduct. Marin Municipal shall consult North Marin in designing the
cathodic protection system for its existing or any future lntertie Facilities and
agrees to design and install a system at its sole cost that will be fully compatible
with North Marin's system and not contribute to the deterioration of the North
Marin Aqueduct.

C. Stafford Lake Treatment Plant Operations

I Norlh Marin will endeavor in good faith to produce 2,000 acre-feet of
treated potable water at its Stafford Lake water treatment facility each
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2

year through the term of this agreement

Notwithstanding the cooperative pledge of Section 3.4.2 and Section
7.C.1, the parties acknowledge and agree that there may be periods
when insufficient inflow to Stafford Lake or other operational constraints
may prevent Norlh Marin from meeting the Stafford Lake Water
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treatment facility potable water production goals stated in Section 3.A.2
and SectionT.C.1.

ln such periods when insufficient inflow to Stafford Lake prevents North
Marin from meeting the Stafford Lake water treatment facility goals
pursuant to Section 3.4.2 or Section 7.C.1 of this agreement, Marin
Municipal may request North Marin to backfeed Marin Municipal's
Russian River water into Stafford Lake pursuant to a Stafford Lake
Agreement in form similar to that executed on February 20,2009 and
updated with then current and pertinent Diversion, Delivery and Payment
provisions. Before backfeeding any water, North Marin shall consultwith
Marin Municipal and Sonoma AgeneywAte¡ and will make every
reasonable attempt to develop a plan of operation that will minimize
disruption of deliveries of Marin Municipal's Russian River water.

D. Joint Projects and/or Programs for Future lntegrated Water Supply Operations

Notlh Marin and Marin Municipal will evaluate and consider joint project(s)
and/or program(s) for future integrated water supply operations. The parties
will jointly determine which party will be the lead agency for purposes of
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Act ("CEQA").
For each proposed joint project or program, the parties will share costs of the
project and environmental review in proportion to each district's respective
share of the water supply capacity or yield from the proposed project and/or
program, regardless of which party is the lead agency.

E. Future Replacement of the North Marin Aqueduct

North Marin will replace the North Marin Aqueduct, including Reach 4a, when
necessary due to condition or other factors, at a time yet to be determined.
Said replacement may be solely a North Marin project or combined projects of
North Marin, and Ma,rin Municipal, as jointly determined by the parties. Marin
Municipal's share of the costs for future replacement of the North Marin
Aqueduct shall be the subject of a future agreement between the partiesl
taki:ng into account the future replacement payment already made by Marin
Municipal for such purpose pursuant to section 6(AX1).

3

F Option for Marin Municipal to Make Use of North Marin's Existing Easements
and for Future Marin Municipal Pipeline.

I North Marin has pipeline easements for the North Marin Aqueduct. These
easements were originally acquired by North Marin with the plan that a
second North Marin aqueduct would eventually be constructed. lf Marin
Municipal elects and Norlh Marin consents to locate facilities in right-of-
ways in which North Marin has existing easements, North Marin will
cooperate in efforts by Marin Municipal to obtain property interests Marin
Municipal deems necessary for installation and operation of said facilities.
To the extent any existing easement held by North Marin is utilized by
Marin Municipal, said utilization shall be the subject of a future agreement
between the parties.
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lf Marin Municipal develops a pipeline project that would be parallel to
Reach 4A and that would include an interconnection to the North Marin
Aqueduct at or above Reach 44, upon execution -and- implementation of
the agreement between the parties identified in this pa+agraphseg!¡gn
7.F.2 and subject to compliance with CEQA, North Marin will support the
proposed project and the interconnection will be completed upon Marin
Municipal's determination to interconnect. The terms of that agreement
will address the following: the location of the proposed project and the
appropriate time of the interconnection to accommodate the shutdown of
the North Marin Aqueduct, environmental review, engineering,
construction, operation, maintenance and replacement of the facilities
and indemnification
of said agreement shall not be un withheld. The project will be
subject to CEQA documentation for arin Municipalwill be the lead
agency. North Marin will be a le agency under CEQA, but
nothing in this section shall No arin's legal responsibilities
under CEQA._

$.8. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. California Environm lQuality

Pursuant to the Cal me ity Act, Ne*hMarin Municipal is
designated as the lead env tal documentation that may

2

be req
AEEP,
19, 2

uired for this Ag
e Final

Mari the lead agency for the
project approved on Julyan

tl

or costs and any costs of record preparation). losses, or liabilities. in law or
equity. or alleged by any third parties arising directly out of, or resulting directly
from. any and all litigation. lawsuits. claims. or causes of action challenging any
approval of the Kastania Pump Station Restoration Project and its associated
agreements. ln the event any action or proceeding is brought against an
lndemnified Party by reason of a claim arising out of any loss for which Marin
Municipal has indemnified the Indemnified Party. and upon written notice from
such lndemnified Party. Marin Municipal shall at its sole expense answer and
otherwise defend such action or proceeding. The Indemnified Party shall have
the right. exercised in its sole discretion. but without being required to do so. to
defend. adjust. settle or compromise any claim. obligation. debt. demand. suit,
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or judgment against the lndemnified Party. The indemnity shall include. without
limitation. Marin Municipal's obligation to pay reasonable attorney's fees and
costs. reasonable fees of consultants and experts. and related costs.

B.C. Termination of Existing Agreements

The "@ Agreement"
aredated February 2014 ¡s hereby
and is no longer in effect.

&.D. Method and Place of Giving Notice and Making Payments

All notices shall be in writing and not
personal delivery or by mail. Notices

payments may be given by
yments sent by mail shall be

addressed as follows

North Marin North r Distri
Attn Manager
P.€0. 46
Novato,

Marin Municipal: uni District
M

nue
c

to whom notices andtnChan
paym bvg notice pursuant to this sectionto be

be
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D. Third Pafty BeneficiarÌes

No third-party beneficiaries are intended or established by this agreement.

E. Representation by Counsel

North Marin and Marin Municipal each were represented by independent
counsel in the negotiation and execution of this agreement. For the
purposes of interpretation of this agreement, neither party shall be deemed
to have been the drafter of this agreement.

F. Mediation

Any dispute occurring under this Agreernent shall first be reviewed by the
parties, who shall meet and attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute
through negotiation. ln the event,that the parties cannot resolve any such
dispute between them, then, upon 3O-days' notiCe, the parties shall submit
such dispute to mediation by,a mutually acceptable neutral mediator. lf any
such dispute is not resolved through mediation, unless the parties agree in
writing upon an alternative form of and fóium for dispute r"ro'r,'on, each
party shall have the right to pursue any remedies it may have in law or in
equity. Any such litigation concerning claims and disputes related to this
Agreementshall be filed in the Superior Court in and for Marin County, and
each Party hereby waives its right to move to change venue.

lf any orìê,.e¡ morê'sections, provlslons, promises or conditions of this
agreement is,,declared null and void or voidable for any reason by a final
judgment or ordêr of a court of competent jurisdiction, -it is hereby declared to
be the intention óf:,,,,both parties',and agreed that each and all of the other
sections, prôvision, promises and conditions of this agreement shall be and
remain in full force and effect.

Term,of Agreement

lhe term:,of this àgreement shall extend from the date of execution hereof
until June iiO;,''2oÃO or the expiration of the Restructured Agreement for
Water Supply, together with any renewals thereof or of a successor
agreement to the Restructured Agreement for Water Supply, whichever
shall occur later.

G eveS

H
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lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on
the date first above written.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

resident, of Directors

ATTEST

MARIN MU

DK

Bp

ISTRICT

President. Board of Directors
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ATTEST

District Secretary

t:\gm\mmwd\agreemenls\interconnection compare and conltasl 11.12.2021.docx
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2021 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

FOR

OPERATION OF THE KASTANIA PUMP STATION

AND

OPERATION OF THE ELY BOOSTER PUMP STATION

This Memorandum of Understanding for Operation of the l(astania Pump Station and the Ely

Booster Pump Station (hereinafter "MOU") is made and entered into by and between the
Sonoma County Water Agency ("Sonoma Water"), the Marin Municipal Water District ("Marin
Water"), the North Marin Water District ("NMWD"), and the City of Petaluma (Petaluma) as of

_,2O2L

Background

A. Pursuant to the terms of the "2021,l(astania Pipeline and Pump Station Transfer

Agreement" dated _,2O21- ("Transfer Agreement"), Sonoma Water, NMWD

and Marin Water have agreed, among other provisions, to transfer ownership of a portion of
l(astania Pipeline from Sonoma Water to NMWD and to convey certain easements to NMWD,

and to transfer ownership of Kastania Pump Station from Sonoma Water to Marin Water,
subject to reservation of certain easement rights . ln accordance with the Transfer Agreement,
Marin Water, effective as of the date that Marin Water receives a recorded deed for the
l(astania Pump Station, has full responsibility for operation and maintenance of the l(astania

Pump Station. The preced¡ng sentence notwithstanding, NMWD shall maintain operational
control of the Kastania Pump Station by defining and transmitting realtime set points from
within the North Marin water distribution system to determine whether or not the l(astania

Pumps can be operated by Marin Municipal and shall operate same in accordance with this
MOU.

B. Sonoma Water's Ely Pump Station pumps water into the southern portion of the
Petaluma Aqueduct, which serves Petaluma, NMWD, and Marin Water and delivers waterto
Sonoma Water's l(astania Tank, the North Marin Aqueduct, and Marin Water's l(astania Pump

Station. Marin Water's Kastania Pump Station delivers waterto Marin Water via the North

Marin Aqueduct. Sonoma Water has full responsibility for operation and maintenance of the
Ely Booster Pump Station and shall operate same in accordance with this MOU. lt is recognized

by the parties to this MOU that at times the Ely Pump Station may not have sufficient capacity

to meet all of the water demands of the Petaluma Aqueduct customers. At those times,
Kastania Tanl< may reach levels that will reduce the reliability of water service provided by the
facìlity.

1.

kastanìa mou draft 3_clean mmwd comments 1,0-22-21--nmwd 1,1,-9-27
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PART 1. - ACTION LEVELS

L.L Kastania Tank Water Level at 34-feet

Anytime the water level in Kastania Tanl< reaches 34-feet, Sonoma Water shall operate or

continue operating all pumps atthe Ely Pump Station untilthe water level at Kastania Tank

reaches at least 38-feet.

L.2 Kastania Tank Water Level at 2O-feet

Anytime the water level in Kastania Tanl< reaches 2O-feet, Marin Water will turn off all pumps at

the l(astania Pump Station until the water level exceeds 25-feet, at which time Marin Water

may resume operation of the pumps at l(astania Pump Station. ..

Part 2 -Modifications
2.1 General and Water Quality
The parties to this MOU recognize and understand that events such as non-drought

emergencies, maintenance activities, construction, or similar circumstances, may require

operation of the l(astania Pump Station and Ely Pump Station to temporarily deviate from this

MOU. During such occurrences, the parties to this MOU shall communicate and worl<

cooperatively with each other to address the particular circumstance. During low demand

periods or when a party to this MOU requests, the SCWA may draw down the l(astania tanl<

levelto 1-5-feet to preserve water quality upon notification to, and in coordination with, the
parties to this MOU.

2.2 Annual Review

On or about April 1 of each year the signatories herewith shall review this MOU and make

necessary modificationsto avoid operational conditions which may adversely affect any party

The signatories agree to consider amendments to this MOU to address modifications to non-

temporary operating procedures to provide the maximum benefits while minimizing adverse

effects on each party.

Part 3 - Term

The term of this MOU shall be the same as the term of the Restructured Agreement for Water

Supply or any renewals, amendments or replacement agreements to the Restructured

Agreement for Water Supply.

The Parties below have executed this MOU effective as of the last date set forth below

2
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Sonoma County Water Agency

Grant Davis, General Manager

Pamela Jeane, Assistant General Manager - Water
and Wastewater Operations

Date

North Marin Water District

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Robert Clarl<, Operations Superintendent

Brad Stompe, Distribution and Treatment Plant
Supervisor

Date

Marin Municipal Water District

Ben Horenstein, General Manager

Paul Sellier, Director of Operations

Erik Westerman, Superintendent of Operations

3
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Date

City of Petaluma

Christopher J. Bolt, Director of Public Worl<s and

Utilities

Mike lelmorini, Operations Supervisor

4
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Item #13

MEMORANDUM

November 12,2021

I:, ï::'J:J::ij:, conservation coordin ^to, fztz
Subject: FY21-22 First Quarter Progress Report - Water Conservation (July-September)

V:\Memos to Board\Quarterly Reports\Water Conservation FY 202 1-2022 QTRl Summary Report v2.doc

RECOMMENDEDACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT None

Water Conservation:

This memo provides an update on water conservation and public outreach activities imple-

mented during the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2021122 (FY 22). Water Conservation participation

numbers for the first quarter of the current and previous two fiscal years are summarized in Table 1

below.

Table 1: Water Gonservation Program Participation (July through September: FY 2020 -20221

Water conservation participation has increased significantly in the first quarter of this fis-

cal year mainly due to customer drought response and the increase in rebate levels approved by

the Board in May 2021. The notable increases in participation are the Cash for Grass, High Effi-

ciency Toilet, High Efficiency Washing Machine Rebate and Swimming Pool Cover Rebate Pro-

grams. The Retrofit on Resale Program remained fairly consistent along with the Water Smaft

Landscape Rebate Program. The Weather Based lrrigation Controller Rebate Program, which

jumped dramatically in the first quarter of FY 21 has seen a slight drop this quarter but staff ex-

pects the participation in this program to remain consistent or even higher than previous years

by the end of this fiscal year. The Water Smart Home Survey (WSHS) Program, which was es-

sentially put on hold (for in-person home visits) due to COVID-19, is expected to resume this fis-

cal year. Staff does continue to offer water use consultations by phone and site visits for brief

Program FY 20 FY 2'I FY 22

Water Smart Home Surveys (WSHS) 24 0 0

Water Smart Commercial Surveys 2 0 0

High Efficiency Toilet Rebates (Residential) 34 22 40

High Efficiency Toilet Rebates (Commercial) 1 1 0

Retrofit on Resale (Dwellings Certified) 5B 63 54

High Efficiency Washing Machine Rebates 1 5 I
Cash for Grass Rebates 5 3 28

Water Smart Landscape Rebates 6 4 B

Weather Based lrrigation Controller Rebates 3 15 5

Pool Cover Rebates 2 1 31

Hot Water Recirculation Rebates 0 0 5
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leak or irrigation related issues. lncreased soc¡al media posts and presence along with other

communications actions, in combination with the higher rebate levels, should cont¡nue to gener-

ate higher participation in all programs.

Public Outreach and Conservation Marketing

ln the first quarter of FY22, the District continued working with Kiosk to implement the public

communications plan (or public outreach plan) in response to a goal from the Strategic Plan, and

continued the enhanced social media campaign with twice weekly posts in Facebook, Twitter and

lnstagram. These posts include everything from Board Meeting advertisements, to historically signif-

icant events, to conservation programs and many others planned over the next year. Additionally,

specific posts on water use prohibitions and water conservation tips were created in response to the

drought situation. The District continues to monitor and review the new website and make changes

and updates as needed to keep it fresh and easily navigable. This includes the customized drought

page created for each service area. Most notably the website news stories are being updated regu-

larly and the rotating news flash on the front page is adjusted for the most pertinent news stories for

the given time period. Water supply messaging was created to inform customers of the projects the

District is currently working on to examine and develop new water supplies in the region and locally.

All social media, website actions and other significant public outreach actions are presented to the

Board with a monthly report from Kiosk and is included in the miscellaneous section of the Board

packet.

The WaterSmart AMI dashboard and customer portal was used as a public outreach toolto

help inform customers on water use patterns and leaks and has also used the group messenger

function to deploy group emails to customers. The portal has been a usefultoolto alert customers to

turning off their irrigation during and after rainfall events and also to communicate with customers

who may be irrigating on the wrong day of the week.

ln August, a summer mailer was sent out to customers in both the Novato and West Marin

Service Areas reminding customers of the drought and water use prohibitions in effect, along with

providing some water savings tips appropriate for the summer time. A Fall Waterline newsletter was

developed for both Novato and West Marin Service Areas and mailed in October.

Budqet and Staffino

Table 2 summarizes the first quarler expenditures between the three fiscal years for (July-

September). FY22 expenditures are much higher than FY21 and FY20 due to the increase in pro-

gram parlicipation and increase in rebate levels and other drought related public outreach expenses.
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Table 2: Water Conservation and Outreach Expenditures (July through September: FY 2020 - 20221

Water Conservation continues to be staffed by one full time Water Conservation Coordinator

and one part time Water Conservation Technician. The District also has a parlnership with Sonoma

County WaterAgency (SCWA) through the Sonoma-Marin Saving Water Partnership to implement

and staff some of the District Water Conservation Programs including the WSHS program (estimat-

ed at 250 hours per quarter), however SCWA staff has had very limited involvementwith the District

programs during the COVID-19 period. SCWA has hired a new technician to perform the WSHS

and is in the process of training that new staff member.

FY 20 FY 21 FY 22

Total FY Budget $390,000 $390,000 $377,000

July-September Expenditures $76,310 $73,674 $117,821





Item #14

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Subject

Board of Directors Date: November 12,2021

Tony Williams, Assistant General Manager/Chief Engineer ,ë/
FY2019 through FY202l Stafford Dam Activities Report
r:\non job no issues\stafforo dam\bod memos\nov 2021\Íy19-21 stafford dam report bod memo.doc

Overview

Stafford Dam is owned and operated by NMWD. The dam is 71 feet high and has a

crest length of 650 feet with an ogee weir spillway. The primary function of Stafford Dam is

impoundment of run-off water for distribution to NMWD customers. lt collects runoff from

approximately 8.3-square miles of Novato Creek's upper tributary watershed to create Stafford

Lake Reservoir. Stafford Lake supplies surface water to the 6 MGD Stafford Water Treatment

Plant, just below the dam, that annually provides approximately 750 MG (or -ZQo/o) of Novato's

potable water supply.

The original dam's construction was completed in 1951. ln 1984, the original dam toe

sub-drain was replaced. ln 1985, the crest embankmentwas enlarged and raised a total of 8-

feet to its present height (average elevation 213.2 feet, NGVD29) and the spillway was

reconfigured, The purpose of the alterations was to improve the spillway hydraulics to pass a

probable maximum flood (PMF) and to improve the flood control of Novato Creek downstream

of the dam by reducing and delaying the peak discharge flow rate through the spillway.

The Dam is under the jurisdiction of the California Department of Water Resources

Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD), as are 12 other dams in Marin County. The dam is listed as

the Novato Creek Dam under the DSOD inventory as well as the National lnventory of Dams

(DSOD Dam No. 88-0; National lD No. C400321). DSOD has classified Stafford Dam as an

Extremely High Hazard Dam based on its size and the potential for loss of life and property

should the dam fail. Although not required by DSOD at the time, the Board had the foresight to

approve an agreement with Michael Baker lnternational (MBl) in 2015 to prepare an Emergency

Action Plan (EAP) for Stafford Dam and a new flood inundation map. Historically, the District's

emergency operating procedures for dam failure had been addressed as part of the District's

Emergency Operations Plan. Completion of the 2015 EAP and a subsequent2020 EAP Update

ultimately enhanced the District's emergency preparedness level as it relates to Stafford Dam'

An overview prepared by CaIOES of what an EAP is and why it is required, as well as an

explanation of dam hazard classifications is provided as Attachment 1. The following

summarizes current Stafford Dam activities over the last three fiscal years.
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lnspections and Monitoring

The District conducts daily visual observations (including use of 24-hour surveillance

cameras), monthly water level gauging, semi-annual vegetation and rodent control, yearly

engineering inspections of the dam apron and spillway, and a yearly water level monitoring and

analysis report that is sent to DSOD. ln addition, DSOD pedorms annual inspections of the dam

and three inspections were conducted during this period on the following dates:

. August 9,2018 (considered 2019 report)

o June 2,2020 (2020 report)

o April 7,2021 (2021 repoft)

Copies of the reports are provided as Attachment 2. The DSOD report is very complementary

and reflects positively on the good work undeÍaken by staff. There is only one minor action

item listed in the 2021 DSOD report that staff is following up on.

Recent DSOD Regulations

As stated earlier, NMWD prepared an EAP including dam failure inundation mapping in

2015. The documents were submitted both to DSOD and CaIOES at the time and no comments

were received. As a result of the Oroville Dam spillway failure in February 2017, the State

Legislature passed Senate Bill (SB) 92 in June 2017 thal required all dam owners (except low

hazard dams) to prepare EAPs and inundation maps. This new legislation also required owners

with "extremely high hazard" dams to submit EAPs by January 1,2018. ln December2018 and

January 2019, NMWD received letters from CaIOES requiring new inundation mapping for a

spillway failure (deemed a "critical appurtenant structure") in addition to the dam failure. This

required the development of new inundation mapping as well as a revised EAP. This work

included coordination with many local and regional stakeholders including the impacted

jurisdictions, City of Novato and the County of Marin. After an initial submittal of the updated

EAP in January 2021 and subsequent response to comments from CaIOES reviewers, final

approval of the EAP was received on October 22, 2021 from CalOES. A copy of the approval

letter is provided at Attachment 3,

These new regulations do have a fiscal impact to NMWD. ln addition to the approximate

$27,000 expended in 2020 and 2021for the updated EAP and inundation maps, annual Stafford

Dam DSOD Permit fees have increased steadily since FY2018 from an amount of $9,854 to

$18,498 inFY2021. Furthermore, the new regulations require annual training exercises with a

local public safety agency. The long-term CIP budget planning through FY 2027 includes $1.3

million for as-needed repairs to the Dam's concrete apron at the upstream face (through

FY2025) as well as the need for a new overlay of the entire apron by FY2027 .
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million for as-needed repairs to the Dam's concrete apron at the upstream face (through

FY2025) as well as the need for a new overlay of the entire apron by FY2027 .

Other lmprovements and Activities

ln FY2019 through FY2021 the District constructed:

. Localized Concrete Apron Repairs (Upstream Face) $54,756
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Dom Emergency Action Plonning
Division

Senote 8il192 creoted the Colifornio Governor's Office of Emergency Services
(Col OES) Dom Sofety Plonning Division. The division is responsible for reviewing
ond opproving dom owners' Emergency Action Plons (EAP). This process

includes division oulreoch ond technicol ossistonce to dom owners ond locol
emergency monogement personnel. The Col OES Dom Sofety Plonning Division

moy olso provide guidonce to locol public scfety ogencies with regord to
incorporoting EAPs inlo their existing oll-hozords key response ond mitigotion
plons.

Whot is on EAP ond why is il imporlont?
An EAP is o written document thot identifies potentiol emergency conditions ot
o dom ond specifies preplonned oclions to help minimize property domoge
ond loss of life should those conditions occur.

EAPs contoin procedures ond informotion thot instruct dom owners to issue eorly
worning ond notificction messoges to downstreom emergency monogemenl
outhorities. The document must olso contoin inundotion mop(s) demonstroting
criticol oreos for evocuotion-reloied octions. Additionolly, EAPs:

Provide ossistonce ond guidcnce to loccljurisdictions on their
emergency plonning for dom foilure evenls; cnd
Aid locol, stote, ond federol ogencies with octivities to ensure effeciive
dom incident emergency response procedures ond plonning.

More informotion obout EAPs con be found on the Col OES Dom Sofety
Plonning Division webpoge ot: http://www.coloes.co.qov/doms

Who is required lo hove on EAP?

Sections ólóO ond ólól of the Cclifornio Woter Code ond Government Code
Section 8589.5 require owners of stote reguloted doms to submit EAPs 1o Col OES

ond the Depcrlment of Woter Resources (DWR) Division of Sofety of Dcms

{DSOD), unless lhe dom hos been clossified os low hozord by DSOD.

Whql qre dom hozqrd clossificqtions?
The downstreom hozord clossificolions ore bosed solely on potentiol
downstreom impocts to life ond property should the dom fcil when operoting

a

Darn Safety Planning Division
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with o full reservoir. These clossificotions ore not reloted to the condition of the
dom or ils oppurtenont structures. The definitions for downstreom hozord
clossificotions cre bosed on FEMA's FederalGuidelines f or lnundation Mapping
of Flood Risks Associofed with Dam /ncidenfs and Failures (FEMA P-946, July
2013). FEMA cotegorizes the downstreom hozord poteniicl into three cotegories
in increosing severity: Low, Significont, cnd High. DSOD odds o fourth cotegory
of "Extremely High" io identify doms thot moy impoct highly populoted oreos or
criticol infrostructure, or hove short evocuotion worning times.

Whot ore lhe requirements if my dom is co-reguloled by FERC?

An owner of o dom thot is jointly reguloted by the stcie ond the Federol Energy
Regulotory Commission (FERC) sholl prepore on EAP in occordonce wilh FERC

guidelines.

How often is o dqm owner required lo moinfoin, updole, qnd revise on EAP?

Dom owners sholl updote their EAP, including inundotion mop(s), of leost every
ten (10) yeors. Updotes ore olso required when ihere is:

. o significcnt modificotion to the dom or o crilicol oppurtenont structure,
os deiermined by DSOD;

. o significont chonge to downstreom development thot involves people
ond property.

Are lhere ony olher slotutory requiremenls for jurisdictionol dom owners?
Yes. At leost once cnnuolly, the dom owner sholl conduct on EAP notificotion or
tcbletop exercise with locol public sofety ogencies.

Pleose see the DSOD webpoge for stotulory requirements reloted to inundotion
mo pping.

When is my EAP due?

Dom Sofety Plonning Division
lnformotion Sheet 2

Downstreqm Hozqrd
Clossificolion

Loss of Humqn Life
Economlc, Envlronmentql,

ond Lifeline losses

Low None expected Low ond generolly limifed
to owner's property

Significonl None expected Yes

High
Proboble (one or more
expected)

Yes, bul not necessory for
this clossificotion

Exlremely Hígh Consideroble
Yes, mojor impocts to
criticol infrostructure or
property

Revision Dofe: July l,20lB



Deodlines for dom EAP submissions ore:
. On or before Jonuory 1,2018, if the hozord clossificotion is extremely high.
. On or before Jonuory 1 ,2019, if lhe hozord clossificotion is high.
. On or before Jonuory 1 ,2021, if the hozord clossificotion is significont.

Where should I submil my EAP?

Per legislotion, the development of cn EAP should be bosed on ond include on
inundotion mop opproved by DSOD. After development, dom owners must
submii the EAP io both Col OES ond DSOD. Pleose submit the Col OES copy of
the EAP to the Dom Sofety Plonning Division, to:

At this time, Col OES requests thot dom owners submit one poper copy of the
EAP cnd one digitol copy (emoil, cd, or thumb drive).

How should I develop my EAP?

Colifornio stctule requires thot EAPs be developed in occordonce with FEMA's
for Dom So ion Plonn for

Government Code Section 8589.5 olso requires thot lhe EAP must include ol c
minimum:

. Nolificotion flowchorts ond contoct informolion

. The response process

. The roles ond responsibilities of fhe dom owner ond impocted jurisdictions

following cn incident involving the dom
o Preporedness octivities ond exercise schedules
. lnundotion mops opproved by DWR
. Any odditionol informolion ihot moy impoct life or property

As needed, Col OES will develop odditionol tools ond informotion to oid in the
EAP process.

Colifornio low olso requires thot EAPs be developed in consultolion with ony
locol public sofety ogency thot moy be impocted by on incident involving fhe
dCIm, to the extent o locol CIgency wishes to consult. This process/ouireach
needs to be documented within the EAP.

Dom Sofely Plonning Division
lnformotion Sheet .1

Hord Copy orlond Digilol Copy:

Joonne Brondoni, Chief
Dom Sofety Plonning Division
3ó50 Schriever Avenue
Mother, CA 95ó55

o @coloes.co

Revision Dote: July 1,2018



When does the ó0 doy review period begin?
The óO doy review period begins when lhe Col OES Dom Sofety Plonning Division
receives the EAP with the opproved inundotion mop included. lf on EAP is

submitted to Col OES without on opproved inundotion mop, the review period
will begin when the Dom Sofety Plonning Division receives ihe letter from DSOD

thot the opplicoble inundction mop hos been opproved.

I currenlly hove qn EAP. Con thol be re-submilled for opprovql under lhe new
requirements?
lf o dom owner hos on existing EAP os of Morch 1,2017,|he owner con submit
the inundotion mop within thot plon to DSOD for opprovol. DSOD will review ond
moy opprove the inundotion mop if il is deemed sufficient. lf DSOD opproves
the mop, the dom owner moy submit the EAP to Col OES for review.

Dom Sofety Plonning Division
lnformotion Sheet 4 Revision Dote: July l, 20lB



Addilionol I nformolion
For cny other informotion on dom EAPs, pleose emoil the Col OES Dom Sofety
Plonning Division of eop@coloes.co.oov.

More informotion regording EAPs ond the legol responsibilities of dom owners is

ovoiloble of the following website: es.co Additionolly, the
full text of the new low (SB 92, Committee on Budget ond Fiscol Review, Stotutes
of 2017) con be found here: http://leginfo.legisloture.co.gov/.

For informotion on dom inundotion mopping, pleose refer to the DSOD
r¡¡al-rnrrna htt rr'/ /r¡.rr,rrr,rr r,r¡rriar r-n rlart /domcnfolr¡ /

Authorities ond References
Col OES Dom Sofety Plcnning Division website:

.ccloes

Deportment of Woter Resources, Division of Sofety of Doms websile:
woter sofet

FEMA's website on Dom Sofety:
www.femc

Dom Sofety Plonning Division
lnformolion Sheet

fe

5 Revision Dote: July l, 20lB
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES
DIVISION OF SAFETY OF DAMS

Noúh [Vi¿rrinlfl{å?ÆE]ign{pF 
DAM AND RESERVoIR lN cERrlFlED srArus

Novato Creek Dam No 88 County

AUIì I 7 ?filll

\Å\ilf:
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Fvt-
Marin ('ÉruÒ

Name of Dam

Type of Dam

Water is

ERTH
-18 feet below the

Type of SpillwaY

spillway crest and

Ooee weir and concrete lined chute

-36 feet below the dam crest.

Clear and mild

Reason for lnspection Periodic Evaluation

tmportant observat¡ons. Recommendations or AGtions Taken

The 3O-inch downstream control butterfly valve was not cycled during this inspection because of the sensitive

environmental nature of the stream below the dam, and to prevent disrupting the ongoing fish water release' 
À4qC

The downstream 
"oÁt¡gt 

*"" iully cycled in my presence on 25 November 2O14, and by the owner.on.l

March 2017, I asked that DSOD be contacteá lut"r in the winter months when it ís safe to fully cycle the Ry'
downstream control so that a DSOD engineer can witness the valve operation,

Wealher Conditions
Vooler. Robert Clark . and Brad Stomoe. and durinqthei

Contacts Made Ro

Goncl stons

Dam

has been the case for some time now, vegetation control is excellent. The embankment is

covered with recentlY mowed ankle tallgrass and other low ground cover that provide protection

erosion without hindering insPection and monitoring for seepage and other defects

Rodent control is also excellent, and almost no indication of burrowing activity was observed

Spillway he spillway approach, control section, and exit channel Were open and clear

The concrete ogee weir, chute, and cross beams were in satisfactory condition, and are free of large

cracks, spalls or other defects i ndicative of excessive stress or deterioration. As repoiled in the B

rch 2018 inspection rePort, Podions of the concrete invert have been replaced as part of the

owner's annual maintenance Prog ram, As with the uPstream face concrete armor work the rep alrs

appear to be well made, and shou ld prove effective Protection for the spillway from damage during

large spills

The current design storm, prepared in 1985, is for a PMF Producing 12,311 cfs (*1424 cfs / sq mi)

peak inflow and 4277 cfs Peak discha rge from the 8.64 square mile drainage area, The sPillwaY

is -7497 cfs, total freeboard is 1B feet, and residual freeboard for the design storm is 4.8

et. Freeboard is satisfactorY

slide gates at
hydraulically
Þownst

J. Lowe

From the known information and visual inspection, the dam, reservoir, and the appurtenances are judged safe

for continued use.

Obs ervations and Comments

The visible porlions of the concrete armored upstream face, the crest, downstream face, and the

abutment contacts are in satisfactory condition with no indication of significant surficial distress or

instability. The upstream concrete armor is repaired as necessary to correct significant cracks, spalls'

and other flaws, as the owner explores a long-term solution to the accelerating wear and tear'

Outlet

Photos

cc for

Upstream control at the outlet tower is provided by hydraulically operated 18-inch

el'evations 174.0teetand 158.0 feet. Additionalupstream control is provided by a

;p;t"t;J 3O-inch slide gate at the outlet tunnel entrance at elevation 145.0 feet'

taken? Yes X No-
Owner/Book

lnspected by

Date of lnspection

Date of Report

I 1B

10 ust 2018

Sheet 1 of 5
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Name of Dam

INSPEGTIOh¡ OF ÞAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIËD STATUS

Novato Creek Dam No. B8

Date of lnspection 9 Ausust 201 I

Observations and Comments
control is provided þy a 3O-inch butterfly valve. The fully concrete encased outlet is normally
pressurized.

of the upstream outlet controls were fully cycled and were found to be in good operating condition
3O-inch downstream control butterfly valve was not cycled during this inspection because of the

environmental nature of the stream below the dam, and to prevent disrupting the ongoing
h water release. The downstream controlwas fully cycled in my presence on 25 November 2014,

and by the owner on 10 March 2017 . I asked that DSOD be contacted later in the winter months
n it ¡s safe to fully cycle the downstream control so that a DSOD engineer can witness the valve

operation,

The downstream face, groins, and abutments were dry and free of any indications seepage.

Flow from the 6" chimney drain was <112 gpm, flow from lhe 12" toe drain was -112 gpm, and the
right abutment drain outfall was dry, Flow from the 6" and 12" drains was clear, flow rates are within
historical values, and I have no concerns regarding the observed flows.

lnstr. lnstrumentation consists of the following:

o One (1) accelerometer located in a vault near the center of the crest and designed to
measure the ground motion response of the dam during seismic events.

. Sixteen (16) piezometers installed to confirm the continued satisfactory operation of the toe
drain and right abutment blanket drain (under-drain system), and arranged in four transverse
lines originating at the crest and extending across the downstream face and toe berm,
Piezometers are monitored monthly.

. Two (2) seepage monitor¡ng locations within the Novato Creek just upstream of the outlet
outfall, and one (1) seepage monitoring location near the lower right downstream toe. The
seepage monitoring locations provide for the measurement of seepage collected from within
the toe drain, the blanket drain, and the right abutment, and are monitored monthly,

; Eight (B) survey monuments designed to measure embankment settlement following
construction, and settlement and lateral displacement following seismic events. Survey
monuments are located along the crest axis, with six distributed along the crest and the
remaining two located one each on the right and left abutments. The survey monuments are
measured every five years.

latest instrumentation data reporl, received from the owner on 31 July 2017 , was reviewed for
e B March 2018 inspection, An updated instrumentation repoñ is being prepared bythe owner, but
s not available for this inspection. The conclusion from the previous report was, "lnstrumentation

data reporting and presentation is excellent, as is the owner's engineer's summary, Based on the
data submitted the dam appears to be performing satisfactorily, and no additional instrumentation is

believed necessary at this time.

Seepaqe

Sheet 2 o'f 5DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)
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Novato Creek Danr No. BB

Date of lnspection I August 201 u

The upstream face as viewed from the right abutment, above, and from the left abutment, krelow The upstream
concrete armor is repaired as necessary to correct significant cracks, spalls, and other flaws, as the owner
explores a long-terrn solution to the accelerating wear and tear.

Na¡rre of Danr

{ìheet 3 ot 5DWIì 1261 (rev. 10/09)
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lrtanre of Darn Nc¡vato Creel< Dam No oo

Date of lnspectiort I AL¡eiust 2018

. ,,.i'l::.: : '-

The downstream face as viewed from the right abutment, äbove, and from the lower left abutment, below

Vegetation control and rodent control are both conslstently excellent.

Sheet 4 of 5llWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)
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Novato Creel< Dam No. BB

Date of lns¡rection.__ _ _9" Augqg!_z01 8

As reported in the B March 2018 inspection repod, podions of the concrete invert have been replaced as pad

of the owner's annual maintenance progrãm. An older repair is visible in the foreground before the flow
divider, while newer repairs appear as lighter colored patches beyond the divider.

frlow from the 6" chimney drain was <112 gpnt, flow frotr the 12" toe draìn was -112 gpnr, attd the tight

abutment cirain outfall was dry. Fl<lw from the 6" ând 12" drains wâs clear, flow rates are within historical
values, and I have no concerns legãrdlng tlre observed flows'

Slreet 5 of 5DWll 1261 (Iev. 10/09)



DocuSign Envelope lD: 41 38BA2D-8480-471 0-87C6-8D67050661 BB

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES
DIVISION OF SAFETY OF DAMS

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Novato Creek 88Name of Dam

Type of Dam

Water is

Earth
Dam No. County Marin

Ogee weir and concrete lined chute
21 feet below the dam crest.

Type of Spillway

spillway crest and

Sunnv and warmWeather Conditions

Contacts Made Robert Clark and Brad Stomoe (North Marin Water District)
Reason for lnspection Annual lnspection

lmportant Observations. Recommendations or Actions Taken

Vegetation growing in the cracks of the concrete lined upstream face needs to be removed to prevent potential

damage to the concrete (photo 2).

Vegetation growing in the joints and behind the spillway walls needs to be removed to prevent any potential

damage to the concrete (photos 3 & 4).

Gonclusions

From the known information and visual inspection, the dam, reservoir, and the appurtenances are judged safe

for continued use.

Observations and Comments

Dam The visible portions of the concrete-armored upstream face, the crest, downstream face, and the
abutment contacts are in satisfactory condition with no indication of significant surficial distress or

instability. The concrete lined upstream face appeared satisfactory and all major cracks, spalls, and

other flaws have been patched and appear to be performing satisfactorily. Vegetation growing in the

cracks needs to be removed to prevent potential damage to the concrete (photo 2).

egetation control is satisfactory. The embankment is covered in knee tall grass and other low
rou nd cover that provide protection against erosion without hindering inspection and monitoring for

Spillwav

seepage and other defects (photo 1). Mr. Stompe informed me that they plan to mow the grass in the

next few weeks.

Rodent control is satisfactory, and only minor burrowing activity was observed near the left abutment

and spillway.

The spillway approach, control section, and exit channelwere open and clear.

The concrete ogee weir, chute, and cross beams were in satisfactory condition, and are free of large
cracks, spalls or other defects indicative of excessive stress or deterioration. Patched concrete on

the spi llway slab appear to be performing satisfactorily but should continue to be monitored after rain

or when the reservoir is spilling. Vegetation growing in the joints and behind the spillway walls

needs to be removed to prevent any potential damage to the concrete (photos 3 & 4)

Outlet None of the outlets were cycled during this inspection. The two 1B-inch upstream controls at

elevations 174.0 feet and 158.0 feet were fully cycled during the August 9, 2018 inspection. The 30-

inch upstream hydraulic slide gate and 3O-inch downstream butterfly valve were fully cycled during

the January 24,2019 inspection. All outlets are cycled annually by the owner.

Seepaqe The downstream face, groins, and toe were dry and free of any indications of seepage
frtlrluotstzozo

Michelle Lockhart lc 6/9/2020
Photos taken? Yes X No_
cc for Owner/Book

lnspected by

Date of lnspection

Date of Report

June 2 2020 vè

June B 2020

Sheet 1 of 5DWR 1261 (Rev. 10/09)



DocuSign Envelope I D: 41 3BBA2D-8480-471 0-87C6-8D67050661 B8

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No.

Date of lnspection June 2 2020

Observations and Comments

88

The 6" chimney drain was flowing approximately 1 gpm,

imately 2 gpm (photo 5). All flows were clear and within
The right abutment drain outfallwas dry,
and the 12" loe drain was flowing approx

lnstr.

historical values.

lnstrumentation consists of the following:

. One (1) accelerometer located in a vault near the center of the crest and designed to
measure the ground motion response of the dam during seismic events.

. Sixteen (16) piezometers installed to confirm the continued satisfactory operation of the toe

drain and right abutment blanket drain (under-drain system) and arranged in four transverse
lines originating at the crest and extending across the downstream face and toe berm.

Piezometers are monitored monthly.

. Two (2) seepage monitoring locations within the Novato Creek just upstream of the outlet
outfall, and one (1) seepage monitoring location near the lower right downstream toe. The

seepage monitoring locations provide for the measurement of seepage collected from within

the toe drain, the blanket drain, and the right abutment, and are monitored monthly.

. Eight (8) survey monuments designed to measure embankment settlement following

construction, and settlement and lateral displacement following seismic events. Survey

monuments are located along the crest axis, with six distributed along the crest and the
remaining two located one each on the right and left abutments. The survey monuments are

measured every five Years.

The latest instrumentation data report was received from the owner on August 30, 2019 and covers

the monitoring period through calendar year 2018. The owner contracted Genterra Consultants, lnc

to present conclusions regarding the performance of Novato Creek Dam.

Piezometer data includes long-term plots (3O-year) for each piezometer. Piezometers P-13, P-14, P-

15, and P-16, located in a line between the right abutment and the blanket drain, have reported an

tncrease in the phreatic line. To investigate this issue, NMWD performed daily water level readings

r a 3-month period from October 1,2018 through December 28,2018 and contracted Genterra to

evaluate the data.

. Piezometer P-13, located on the crest, recorded water levels that have risen continuously
since 1994/1995, and are higherthan the reservoir level in recent months. As recommended
by Genterra, NMWD bailed P-13, and the issue of higher than reservoir water level no longer

exists in data taken since. However, there is about 12 feet of sediment at the bottom of the
piezometer.

. Piezometer P-14, located just above the access road, appears to be affected by rainfall,

entering through infiltration, and increasing above the threshold elevation 160. P-14 could not

be bailéd due to a blockage about 30 feet below the top. A new piezometer may be required if
the water cannot be bailed to reduce the level below the threshold.

. There are no concerns with piezometer P-15, located below the access road.

. Piezometer P-16, located at the toe, has water levels higher than the allowed threshold
Elevation 155, but do not appearto be affected by reservoir level or rainfall. P-16 was also
bailed, but recovered within a day, indicating that there is a direct hydraulic connectivity

Sheet 2 ot 5DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)



DocuSign Envelope lD: 41 3BBA2D-8480-471 0-87C6-8D67050661 B8

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No. BB

Date of lnspection June 2, 2020

Observations and Comments
between the water in the blanket drain and the piezometer tip.

Overall, the indicated higher phreatic surface appeared to be a result of instrumentation that needed
maintenance. The owner will continue to monitor this area closely.

The high readings in Piezometer 1 were reportedly due to staff reading error. Piezometer P-11

tinues to record higher water levels during wet weather periods and is likely influenced by road
rface drainage. All other piezometers readings are below the maximum safe phreatic levels

No adverse trends were shown in either seepage monitoring pipes

latest survey was performed in 2015 and was reviewed in the April 2016 inspection report. The
next scheduled survey will be this year

conclusion from Genterra Consultants was "Based on our review of available data that is
presented in the 2018 Phreatic Level Monitoring Report dated August 30,2019, the dam appears to
be performing satisfactorily." Based on the data submitted, I agree that the dam appears to be
performing satisfactorily, and no additional instrumentation is judged necessary at this time.

Photo 1: View of the downstream face and crest as seen from the left abutment.

Sheet 3 of 5DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)
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INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No. BB

Date of lnspection June 2, 2020

Photo 2: View of the upstream face as seen from the left abutment. Vegetation growing in the cracks needs to

be removed.

Photo 3: View of the spillway channel looking upstream. Vegetation growing behind the concrete wall (circled)

needs to be removed.

Sheet 4 of 5DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)



DocuSign Envelope lD: 41 38BA2D-8480-471 0-87C6-ED67050661 B8

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No

Date of lnspection June 2 2020

Photo 4: View of the spillway weir looking upstream. The circled vegetation needs to be removed

Photo 5: View of the chimney and toe drain, at the outfallto the creek.

BB

Sheet 5 of 5DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA
CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES
DIVISION OF SAFETY OF DAMS

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Novato Creek 8BName of Dam

Type of Dam

Water is

ERTH

Clear and mild

Dam No County Marin
Ogee weir and concrete lined chute
-29 feet below the dam crest.

Type of Spillway

spillway crest and

Weather Conditions

Contacts Made ToniWilliams and Brad Stompe durinq the inspection
Reason for lnspection Annual lnspection

lmportant Observations. Recommendations or Actions Taken

Overall, vegetation control on the dam remains excellent. A few overhanging bushes along the spillway
channel walls need to be removed as a paft of annual maintenance of the dam.

I asked that DSOD be contacted later in the winter months when it is possible to fully cycle the downstream
control, so that a DSOD engineer can witness the valve operation.

Conclusions

From the known information and visual inspection, the dam, reservoir, and the appurtenances are judged safe
for continued use.

Observations and Comments

Dam he visible portions of the concrete armored upstream face, the crest, downstream face, and the
abutment contacts are in satisfactory condition with no indication of significant surficial distress or
instability.

has been the case for some time now, vegetation control is excellent. The upstream facing lining

remain intact with no evidence of fresh cracks. Minor vegetation growth in the lining joints needs to
be removed as a part of annual maintenance of the dam. The downstream face of the embankment
is covered with recently mowed ankle tall grass and other low ground cover that provides protection

against erosion without hindering inspection and monitoring for seepage and other defects.

Rodent control is also excellent, and almost no indication of burrowing activity was observed.

Spillwav The spillway approach, control section, and exit channel were open and clear.

The concrete ogee weir, chute, and cross beams were in satisfactory condition, and are free of large
cks, spalls or other defects indicative of excessive stress or deterioration. A few bushes

overhanging along the channel walls need to be removed as a part of annual maintenance of the
dam.

Outlet None of the controls were cycled during this inspection. All the upstream and downstream controls
fully cycled during the 112412019 inspection and were found to be in operable condition. Per

Seepaqe

email from the owner, all controls were fully cycled by the owner 211812020 as a part of their annual
maintenance program.

The downstream face, groins, and abutments were dry and free of any indications of seepage.

Flow from the 6" chimney drain was 0.30 gpm, flow from the 12" toe drain was -1 .1 '1 gpm, and the
right abutment drain outfallwas dry. Both flows were clear and within historic values.

L. Singh
{,,5 4/L6/zozL

Photos taken? Yes X No_
cc for Owner/Book

lnspected by

Date of lnspection

Date of Report

4t7t2021
4t9t2021

4Sheet 1 ofDWR 1261 (Rev. 10/09) w 4/16/2027



DocuSign Envelope lD: 38888698-4798-4284-AEEB-050934524941

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No BB

Date of lnspection 4t7 t2021

Observations and Comments

lnstr. lnstrumentation consists of the following:

. One (1) accelerometer located in a vault near the center of the crest and designed to
measure the ground motion response of the dam during seismic events'

. Sixteen (16) piezometers installed to confirm the continued satisfactory operation of the toe
drain and right abutment blanket drain (under-drain system), and arranged in four transverse
lines originating at the crest and extending across the downstream face and toe berm.
Piezometers are monitored monthly.

. Two (2) seepage monitoring locations within the Novato Creek just upstream of the outlet
outfall, and one (1) seepage monitoring location near the lower right downstream toe. The
seepage monitoring locations provide for the measurement of seepage collected from within
the toe drain, the blanket drain, and the right abutment, and are monitored monthly.

. Eight (B) survey monuments designed to measure embankment settlement following
construction, and settlement and lateral displacement following seismic events. Survey
monuments are located along the crest axis, with six distributed along the crest and the
remaining two located one each on the right and left abutments. The survey monuments are
measured every five years.

latest instrumentation data report was received on November 30, 2020 and it covers the
calendar year period of 2019. At this time, access to the DSOD files is very limited as most of the
DSOD staff is working remotely due to Covid-2O19 pandemic. Therefore, I only cursorily reviewed

e electronic version of the report and agree with the owner's evaluation that based on the
submitted data/plots, the dam appears to be performing satisfactorily. No additional instrumentation
is judged necessary at this time.

Sheet 2 of 4DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)



DocuSign Envelope lD: 3BBBB69B-4798-4284-AEEB-050934524941

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No. BB

Date of lnspection 4t7t2021

1. The upstream face as viewed from the left abutment. Vegetation growth in the constructions joints

needs to be removed as a part annual maintenance of the dam.

2. Spillway channel looking downstream, as seen from the dam crest. All circled vegetation along the
spillway channelwalls needs to be removed.

Sheet 3 of 4DWR'1261 (rev. 10/09)



DocuSign Envelope lD: 38888698-A798-4284-AEEB-050934524941

INSPECTION OF DAM AND RESERVOIR IN CERTIFIED STATUS

Name of Dam Novato Creek Dam No. BB

Date of lnspection 41712021

3. An interior view, spillway channel concrete appears structurally sound with no evidence of excessive
deterioration or any other sign distress.

4. A partial view of the downstream face as seen towards the left abutment. As seen, vegetation
control on the dam remains excellent.

Sheet 4 of 4DWR 1261 (rev. 10/09)
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October 22,2021

North Mqrin County Woter District
Attention: Mr. Drew Mclntyre
Generol Monoger
Posi Office Box ì4ó
Novoto, Colifornio I 49 48

Subjeci: Emergency Aclion Plqn - Approvol
Novoio Creek Dom, No.88.000, Morin County

Deor Mr. Mclntyre

The Colifornio Governor's Office of Emergency Services, Dom Sofefy Plonning
Division, hos reviewed the Emergency Action Plon for the subject dom listed
obove. Pursuont to Colifornio Woter Code Section 6161 , subdivision (b) (1 ), we
hove determined thot the Emergency Action Plon meets the requirements of
Government Code Section 8589.5 ond is consistent with the Federql Emergency
Monogement Agency's FederolGuidelines for Dom Sofefy: Emergency Acfton
Ptonning for Doms. The Emergency Action Plon for Novoio Creek Dom is

therefore opproved.

Pleose ensure thot the opproved plon, os well os o copy of this opprovol letter, is

disseminoted to the oppropriote public sofety ond emergency monogement
ogencies os required by Woter Code Section 6161 , subdivision (b) (3). As the
dom owner, you ore required to submit on updoted plon bosed on qn

opproved inundotion mop by April 
.l5, 

2030, or sooner if there is 1) o significont
modificqtion to the dom or c criticol oppurtenont struclure os determined by
the Deportment of Woter Resources, Division of Sofety of Dqms, or 2) o
significont chonge lo downstreqm developmeni thot involves people or
property os outlined in Woter Code Section 6161, subdivision (e).

3ó50 ScunrrvrR AvENUE, M¡r¡-lrn, CA 95ó55

{91 ó) 845-850ó T¡repuoN¡ (9ì ó) 845-851 I Fnx

www.CqlOES.co.qov

ATTACHMENT 3



Emergency Action Plqn - Approvol
October 22,2021
Poge 2

Pleose submit the finolized hord copy ond digitol copy of your Emergency
ActÌon Plon to:

Dom Sofety Plonning Division
Colifornio Governor's Office of Emergency Services
3ó50 Schriever Avenue
Mother, CA 95ó55

a

a eop@coloes.co.gov

Additionolly, of leost once onnuolly, dom owners musl conduct notificotion
exercise(s) for the Emergency Action Plon. These exercises qre necessory to
ensure thot emergency communicotions plons ond processes ore current ond
implemented effectively. For ossistonce coordinoting exercise porticipotion or
ony other Emergency Aclion Plon needs, pleose contoct Leonelo Vollecillo-
Curiel, of (9,ló) S45-8,l93 or Leonelo.Vollecillo-Curiel@coloes.co.oov or Cosey
Meredith of (91ó) 845-8l óO or Cosev.Meredith@coloes.co.qov, with o copy to
eop@coloes.co.qov.

Thonk you for your continued efforts ond commitment enhoncing sofety in your
community ond throughout Colifornio.

Sincerely,

/u¿ /"ã1'^e

LORI NEZHURA
Deputy Director

Enclosure (Finol EAP Review Report)

Shoron Topio, Chief, Division of Sofety of Doms
Deportment of Woter Resources

Chris Reilly, Emergency Services Monoger,
Morin Couniy Sheriff 's Office

Edword Westfoll, Regionol Administrqtor,
Col OES Cooslql Region

cc





Item #15

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Robert Clark Operations / Maintenance Superintendent W
Subj: Cyber Security Evaluation and Plan Update

bod cyber security memo 11 -11.2021

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time

November 12,2021

Background

America's Water lnfrastructure Act of 2018 (AWIA) was designed to improve drinking water

and water quality, deepen infrastructure investments, enhance public health and quality of life,

increase jobs, and bolster the economy according to an U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

(EPA) report released in 2O18. The AWIA provisions are the most far-reaching changes to the

Safe Drinking Water Act since the 1996 Amendments, with over 30 mandated programs. One of

these programs required each community water system serving more than 3,300 persons to

submit to the EPA Administrator a certification that the system has conducted a risk and

resilience assessment in accordance with the Act prior to December 31,2020.

Work Products

This risk and resilience assessment of North Marin Water District was performed on

December 17, 2020 using the EPA's Vulnerability SelËAssessment Tool (VSAT) Web Version

2.0. While this tool can be used to assess all of the Districts vulnerabilities, staff concentrated on

the cyber security portion of the tool. Our current Emergency Operations Plan (aka ERP) had

been updated in November 2019 and the EPA certification only required us to add the cyber

security chapter by the above due date.

As part of the AWIA formatting of the ERP's have been changed to help align all agency

plans. To help staff comply with the development of the ERP and begin to transition the existing

ERP to the new format, the consulting firm of Water Works Engineers was hired. Their staff

used our assessment results along with a couple of short interviews with our staff and

developed a cyber security resilience strategies section for our ERP. With this new section

NMWD has now completed the necessary compliance certification requirements.



Cyber Security Evaluation and Update
November 12,2021
Page 2

Path Forward

We plan to create a summary review to train staff annually on key aspects for these

strategies to ensure all staff prevent any cyber risks to the District. A copy of the cyber security

resilience strategies has been integrated into the Districts existing ERP. The EPA designed

Version 2.0 of VSAT Web to assist community water systems with meeting the requirements for

risk and resilience. VSAT Web 2.0 can help water sector owners and operators with identifying

the threats that present the highest risks to their facilities and with evaluating the costs and

benefits of countermeasures to reduce those risks. Staff is planning to begin the full transition to

this new ERP format utilizlng a third-party consultant, as the time requirement for the VAST

review will be too much for our staff alone. The current ERP has 15 sections with B appendices

and is over 150 pages in all and may take a year to complete. Consulting services will be

included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Capilal lmprovement Budget projects studies and special

projects.





Item #16

North Iìay Water lìeuse Authority
Board of Directors Meeting

September 27,2021
ÏwqAF'F'

1. Call to Ordcr
Chair Rabbitt called the meeting to order at933 a.m. on Monday, September 27,202I. Due to
Shelter in Place Olders, this meeting was aZoom only meeting. Meeting participants and the public
participaled via the following link: https://usO2web.zooni/j/84458034981.

2. Roll Call
PRBSBNT:

ABSENT: None

OTHERS
PRESENT:

David Rabbitt, Chair'
Relia Ramos, Vice Chair
Jack llaker
Brian Barnacle
Rabi Elias
Jack Gibson
Susan Gorin
Sandeep Karkal
I)ennis Rodoni
Scott Sedgley
Pierre Washirigton

Sonoma Water
Napa County
North Marin Water District
City of Petaluma
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Marin Municipal Water District
Sonoma Valley County Sanitation District
Novato Sanitary District
Marin County
Napa Sanitation District
City of American Canycln

Weir Technical Servtces
Sonoma Water
Marin County
Sonoma Water
City of Petaluma
North Marin Water District
Ilrown & Caldwell
Sonoma Water
Novato Sanitary District
North Marin Water District
Data Instincts
Sonoma Water
ESA
Marin Municipal Water District
Data Instincts
Marin Municipal Water District
Sonoma'Water
Sonoma Water
Kenrredy Jenks Consultants
North Marin Water District

Chuck'Weir, Program Manager
Kevin Booker
L<>renzo Cordova
Grant Davis
Jason Ììarnswofih
.Iim Grossi
Rene Guillen
Pam Jeane

Sandeep Karkal
Drew Mclntyre
Mark Millan
Carmen Morales
Jim O'Toole
Larcy Russell
Mike Savage
Paul Sellier
Brad Sherwood
Jake Spaulding
Dawn Taffler
T'ony Williarns

I



3. Public Comments
l-here were no members of the public

4. Introductions
Introductions were not made,

5. Board Meeting Minutes of July 26,2021.
It was noted that Chair Rabbitt should be shown as abserf in the minutes. On a motion by Vice
Clrair Ramos, seconded by Director Baker, the minutes of the July 26,202I, meeting were
unanimously approved by tlie Board by a roll call vote.

6. Report from the Chair

6.a Subgroup meeting of August 19, August 25, and September 17,2021
Tlre Board reviewed the August 19, August 25, and September 17 meetings of the subgroup.
In keeping with past direction by the Board, a subgroup also known as the technical team

has been meeting to track the progress of Phase 1 and Phase 2 projects, funding options, and

developing potential wolkplans for addressing future issues of intelest to NBWRA. 'fhe

future issues ale based on the results of the three county meetings that were held in June.
'Ihe Subgr<lup met on August 19, August 25, and September 17 ,2027 .

7. Declaration of a State of Emergency pursuant to A.8361 due to COVil)-lg to continue
remote meetings until the State of Emergency is rescinded or until January 1, 2024,
whichever comes first

Tlie Board discussed the rationale for the declaration and noted that their won agencies have been

doing the same. On a motion by Vice Chair Ramos, seconded by Director Gorin, the Declaration of
a State of Emergency pursuant to 48361 due to COVID-l9 to continue remote meetings until the

State of Emergency is rescinded or until January 2,2024, whichever comes first was unanimously
approved by a ro11 call vote.

8. Consultant Progress Reports
'fhe Boald reviewed the consultant progress repolts for the period Jr.rly - August 2021

9. Financial Reports fbr Fiscal Years Encling June 30,2021 and June 30, 2021.
The Board reviewed the financial reports for the periods ending June 30, 202I and June 30,2022
A1l expenses are tracking normally.

10. Future Direction and Next Steps for NBWRA
Members of the technical team cliscussed issues outlined in the presentation focusiug on resilience
areas that could become part of NB'WRA's program of work. These areas include: continuing
recyclecl water projects, potable reuse assessments, cooldinated drought contingency planning, and

sea level rise adaptation. The discussion also included a request that the technical team meet with
the TAC to lirther refine the proposed projects/concepts and associated funding opportunities and

strategy. Based on input fi'om the :l'AC, the technical team would theu come back to the Board with:
o Updated potential projects/concepts for the Board to review
. Better describe tasks to consider, potential costs, and budget
o Refined project profiles that would link projects/concepts with funding opportunities
o Potenlial MOtl modifications, other member agencies, ol organizational changes

2



'fhe lloard and TAC members discussed potential projects and expressed interest in fulther
exploring both projects and ftrnding oppor:tunities. Expanding recycled water projects, exploring
direct and indilect potable rellse, drought contingency issues, and sea level rise concerns were all
discr-lssed. Director Barnacle encouraged the group to be aspirational in terms of developing
projects.

Following fulther discussion, the Board agreed with having the TAC rneet with the technical team

as described.

11. Phase 1: Status of Reconciliation and Closeout Activities
Jake Spaulding gave an update on the reconciliation and close out activities for Phase 1. I-Ie noted
that there is approximately $800,000 rernaining that oould be used for projects. -I'he final steps for
closeout of Phase 1 are underwav.

12. Status of Phase 2
Rene Guillen plovided an update on the statlls of the Phase 2. Projects for SVCSD and Petaluma
have been incorporated into the Phase 2 program and agreed to by Reclamation. A forrnal
acceptance letter is in development and should be received within a few weeks.

13. Items for the Next Agenda
Items for the next Agenda include regular reports, Phase 1 and Phase 2 Status Reports, Water Ilond
Status, and a report from the TAC meeting.

14. Comments from the Chair,Iloard, and Member Agencies.
There were no commenls from the Chair, Boalcl, and Member Agencies. The Board discussed

options for the next meeting and agreed on November 29,202I, at the regular tirne of 9:30 a.rn

Board members supported continualion of virtual meetings in order to rninimize driving arrd

associated impacts. It was acknowledged that thele may be conflict with November 29.

15. Adjournment
Chair Rabbitt adjourrned the meetin g at 10:34 a.m. I he next meeting will be Monday, November 29,

2027,a|9:30 a.m. via Zoottt.

Minutes approved by the Board

Charles V. Weir
Program Manager

C:\LJse rs\chucl<\I)oounre nts\Wcir 'l'eohnical Services\NBWRA\Agcndas\2021\202 1 -09\2021 -09-27_NBWRA_lloarrl_Mintrtcs.docx

a
-)





Item #17

North Bay Watershed Association

Board Meeting - Agenda
November 5, z}Ztl 9:30 - 11:30 a.m.

PENDIN6 PASSAGE OF RESOLUTION ITEM B ON fHE AGÊNDA, THIS MEETING WILL BË

HEtD VIRTUALTY VIA REMOTÊ CONFËRËNCING SERVICË- NO PHYSICAL MEËÏING LOCAÏION
. Zoom Webinar:

https://us02web.¿oom.us/i/81908052488?pwd=eGtocHlnU FN ld2FvslcrbkNnSoxVUT09

Webinar lD: 819 0805 2488 Password: 844545

Agenda and materials will be available the day of the meeting at
www. n bwatershed. org

AGENDA

Time Agenda Item Proposed Action

9:30 Welcome and Call to Order - Roll Call and Introductions

Jack Gibson, Chair

N/A

9:35 General Public Comments

This time is reserved for the public to address the Committee about matters

NOT on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Committee.

N/A

9:40 Agenda and Past Meeting Minutes Review

Jack Gibson, Chair

Approve

9:45 Treasure's Report

Jack Gibson, Chøir

Accept

9:50 Guest Presentation-Applied One Water Policy: Orange
Memorial Park Regional Stormwater Capture Project

Robert Dusenbury, Lotus Water

Robert will provide an overview of the Bay Area's first regional
stormwater capture project. The project captures stormwater runoff
from six different municipalities to remove trash and contaminants,
treat and use water for park irrigation, recharge the underlying
groundwater basin, and reduce local flood risk.

Presentation



10:20 Gu est Presentafion-$6¡¡ 6¡¡ a Water' s \&''afe¡' and Emengy

Education Freigram, .t.Call to Åction

Ryan Pedrotti, Water and Energy Program Manager
Trisha Meisler Water and Energy Educator

Ryan and Trisha will provide an'overview of this effective regional
education program, and its evolution to engage children through
experiential and hands on education.

Presentatiott

l0:50 Execufive Ðirector Reponf and ,Agenda ffems fc¡r Future
Meetings

Andy Rodgers, Executive Director

Andy will provide an update on active projects, recent meetings,
communications, committees, activities, and developing initiatives
since the September 10 Board meeting. Andy will outline ideas for
next and future Board meeting topics and solicit feedback.

Questions/input

1 1:00 Board Inf'ormation [trxchange ancl Drought I"Jpdates

Members

Members will highlight issues and share items of interest.

N/A

1 1:30 Ännor¡nccm en ts/Aelj ourn
Next Board Meeting: December 3,2021

N/A

North Bay Watershed Associat¡on
Board Meeting

November 5, 2021
Page 2
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Item #18
DISBURSEMENTS - DATED NOVEMBER 4, 2021

Date Prepared 1112121

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

90427*

90428"

90429*

90430.

EFT* US Bank

*810275

.E10276

2

Employees

lnternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

CalPERs

Net Payroll PPE 10115121

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 10115121

State Taxes & SDI PPE 10115121

Pension Contribution PPE 10115121

November lnsurance Premium (Employer

$53,138, Retirees $1 1 ,847 & Employee
Contribution $11,143)

September Bank Analysis Charge (Lockbox

$912 & Other $354 Less lnterest $55)

Deferred Compensation 1 0/1 5121 PPE

Deferred Compensation 10/1 5121 PPE

October AFLAC-Employee Paid Benefit

Membership Renewals (Mclntyre, Stompe,
Clark, Ramudo, Williams & Pearlman) (111122 -
12131122)

Novato "Cash For Grass" Rebate Program

September & October Dental Admin Fee

October lnternet Service

Leased Lines

Novato "Washer" Rebate Program

Lincoln Life

Nationwide Retirement

American Family Life lns

American Water Works Assoc

Anderson, Mona M.

Arrow Benefits Group

AT&T

AT&T

Barry, Ryan

$157,924.09

66,136.63

15,719.70

40,934.43

76,128.27

1 ,210.66

9,751.55

1,020.00

3,085.53

4,523.00

800.00

559.35

90.25

66 68

100 00

316.11

404.00

3

4

5

6

7

I

I

Bay Area Barricade Service White Spray Chalk (3) ($158), White & Blue
Marking Paint (2) ($98) & White Striping Paint

Bay Area Air Quality Mgmt Dist Annual Permit Renewal Fee (To Operate Fuel
Pumps)

*Prepaid Page 1 of4 Disbursements - Dated November 4,2021



Seo Pavable To For Amount

10 Bergstrom, Kyle

11 Bold & Polisner

12 Butler Auto Glass

13 Clyde, Karen

Core & Main14

15 Cummings Trucking

16 Diesel Direct West

17 Draeger lnc

18 EBMUD

19 Eddings, Jhana & David

GHD lnc.

Grainger

Hach Co.

28 Harland, Cynthia Ë

Exp Reimb: Safety Boots

September Legal Fees-Potter Valley FERC-
NMWD Portion ($1,598) & General ($5,940)

Replace Rear Window ('12 Ford F250)

Exp Reimb: 6 Safety Bravo Gift Cards

Coupling, Elbows (7) ($240), Vaults (2) ($1,823)
& Meter Stops (86) ($5,393)

Delivery of Rock (72 yds) ($7eS¡ & Sand (47

vds) ($7oo)

Diesel (357 gals) ($1,2t+¡ & Gasoline (753 gals)
($3,308)

Fit Testing for SCBA Mask (STP)

6" Pipe Restraints for Old Ranch Road Tank No

2 Project (20)

Novato "Washer" Rebate Program

Repair for Oceana Marin Generator (Balance
Remaining on Contract $6,681)

Prog Pymt #4: Provide Environmental Testing
Services on Fill Materials (Old Ranch Rd)
(Balance Remaining on Contract $15)

Prog Pymt #17: Kastania Pump Station Project
(Balance Remaining on Contract $29,293)

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Chlorine Reagent Powder Pillows (3) (STP &

PRPT) ($2aZ¡ & Annual Service Contract for
Hach Analytical Equipment @ STP ($19,261) &
PRTP ($3,StS¡

Novato "Washer" Rebate Program

20 Energy Systems

21 Environmental Resource Assoc Performance Testing (Lab)

200.00

7,537.50

384.00

331.52

7,484.39

1,435.00

5,021.71

1,275.00

1,432.92

100.00

2,168.12

1,452.15

290.00

300.00

302.99

1,342.00

826.07

23,067.55

100.00

22 ETS

23 Eurofins Eaton Analytical, lnc Lab Services for UCMR4 Monitoring

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC Service on Lab Deionization Systems24

25

26

27

.Prepaid Page 2 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 4,2021



Seq able To For Amount

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

Home Depot

ldexx Laboratories

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan

Kelly Services, lnc

KP Promotions

Kuchem, Dorothy

Londa, Manachem

Maher, Laura

McGee, Barbara

McMaster-Carr Supply Co

Miller Pacific Engineering

Oak Knolls Cooperative

Pace Supply

Paquette, Jonah

PG&E

Point Reyes Light

PumpMan Norcal

Ramsey, Russell

Red Wing Shoe Store

Ross, Alan

Vision Reimbursement

Shades for Front Office Counter

Colilerl Media for Recycled Water Testing (Lab)

DMV/DOT Physical Exams (Castellucci & Reed)

Organic Chemist Temp Services (Lab) (76 hrs)

Semi-Annual Uniform Order

Novato "Cash for Grass" Rebate Program

Novato "Water Smart Landscape Efficiency"
Rebate Program-Residential

Novato "Washer" Rebate Program

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Bushing ($163) & Bolts (22)

Prog Pymt#19: Old Ranch Road Tank (Balance

Remaining on Contract $68,682)

Return Payment-Not Our Customer

Flange Adapter (2) ($1 ,176), Spool ($3oz¡,

Brass Nipples (3), Gaskets (30) ($239), Primer
(40 qts) (92,467) & 4' Probe Pipeline (2) (Less

Credit of $90 for Returned Coupling)

Novato "Toilet" Rebate Program

Pumping Charges from 4121-9/21 (End of
Com modoreAffebster Drive)

Legal Notices on 101Q7, 10114 & 10121121 -

Salinity lntrusion lnto Pt Reyes Well Supply

Labor to Pull Pump From Gallagher NP-5 Well

Novato "Smart lrrigation Controller" Program

Safety Boots (Kane & Reed)

Novato "Cash For Grass" Rebate Program

54.02

388.75

2,638.18

230.00

4,651.47

1,733.39

800.00

89.39

100.00

55.1 6

269.10

4,733.50

6,520.53

4,244.95

125.00

8,613.51

585.00

825.00

149.00

356.87

248.50

43

44

45

46

47

4B

49

*Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 4,2421



Seo Pavable To For Amount

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

Suelzle, Kelly

Syar lndustries lnc

Tamagno Green Products

Thomas Scientific

Univar

USA BlueBook

US Postal Service

VWR lnternational LLC

Williamson, Matthew

Winzer Corporation

Yee, Everett

West Yost Associates

Michael Yost

YSI lnc

Vision Reimbursement

Novato "Water Smart Landscape Efficiency"
Rebate Program-Residential

EZ Street Asphalt (6 tons)

Sludge Removalfrom STP (75 yds)

Endo Broth (Lab)

Sodium Hypochlorite (PRTP) (200 gal)

Ultra Sludge Judge (STP) & 33' Stripe Wands
(2) ($111)

Meter Postage

Prospore Ampoule (20) (Lab)

Exp Reimb: Safety Boots

Misc Hardware for Auto Shop

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

Prog Pymt#1: Provide Local Water
Enhancement Study (Balance Remaining on

Contract $203,216)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Temp Sensor for Stafford Dam
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

184.00

1 18.13

918.99

2,625.00

98.88

153.82

221.91

1,000.00

105.98

167.73

216.02

75.00

21,384.25

7.02

467.97
$498,977.19

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $498,977.19 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

-Controller Date

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - Dated November 4, 2021



DISBURSË'I/'ËAJTS - DATED NOVEMER 1'I, 2021

Date Prepared 1119121

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance

with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a paÉ of the California Water District Law:

Seo Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

90432*

90433*

90434"

90431.

Employees

I nternal Revenue Service

State of California

CaIPERS

US Bank Card

1 Alpha Analytical

2 AT&T

Building Supply Center

CDW-Government, lnc.

Charles Custom Welding

W. Christensen

Core & Main

DataTree

Direct Line lnc

10 E&M

Net Payroll PPE 10131121

Federal & FICA Taxes PPE 10131121

State Taxes & SDI PPE 10131121

Pension Contribution PPE 10131121

cFOA Membership Renewal (Blue) ($160),
Bathroom Fan ($368) (STP), Water Bottles
(Const/Maint) (17) ($9ZZ¡, Landscaping Cost
Book ($320), Standing Desk (Front Counter)
($+tS¡, Zoom for Board Meetings ($42¡,
Microsoft 365 Migration Project ($469) & Misc.

Supplies ($290)

Lab Testing

Telephone ($02¡, Fax ($88), Leased Lines
($1+z¡ & Data ($2ao¡

Parts for W.M. Tanks

Battery Backups (10) ($742), & Trend Micro
Apex One License ($1 ,197)

Welding Services

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

Gate Valves (2) ($3,997) & Rice Straw (20)

($5ae¡

October Subscription to Parcel Data lnfo

November Telephone Answering Service

Wondenruare 1 Year Support & Maintenance
Agreement

166,867.09

70,622.63

16,756.73

40,574.16

2,988.60

2,594.00

583.71

3.66

1,939.03

990.00

67,92

3,879.96

100.00

191 .50

240.00

3

4

5

6

7

I

I

*'Prepaid Page I of 5 Disbursements - Dated November 11,2021



Seq Pavable To For Amount

11 Enterprise FM Trust Monthly Leases for Chevy Colorado, Ford
Ranger, F250's (2), Nissan Rogues (3), Nissan
Frontiers (2) & F150's (4)

12 Environmental Express Syringe Filters (200) (Lab)

13 Eurofins Eaton Analytical, lnc Algal Toxins Monitoring for Harmful Algae
Bloom ln Stafford Lake ($300) & lnhibitory
Residue Test for Lab Certification ($250)

14 Fiserv/Bastogne lnc Unable to Locate Account-Returned Payments
(2)

15 Fisher Scientific Pipets (2a) (Lab)

16 Foge, Matthew Refund of DepositiNew DevelopmentAffC
Restriction-Novato

17 Freyer & Laureta, lnc. Prog Pymt#1: Provide Engineering & Design

Services for NMWD Hydropneumatic Pressure
Stations (Balance Remaining on Contract

$93,570)

18 Friedman's Home lmprovement Sump Pump ($3ZS¡, PVC Conduit ($449), Parts
PRE 4C ($4zt ), Parts for Office HVAC ($233) &

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies
(ffie¡

19 Ghilotti Bros lnc Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less

Final Bill

20 Goodpaster, Stacie Exp Reimb: Lab Sample Shipping ($139) &

Registration Fee-CA-NV AWWA AFC21 Virtual

Event (1 0/1 8-1 0t21) ($325)

21 Grainger 16' Manhole Ladder ($3Ze¡, Construction Film

($30+¡, Replacement Sand Pump Motors for
STP Filter#1 ($t ,547), Cordless Reciprocating
Saw ($381) & Miscellaneous Maintenance
Tools & Supplies ($1 ,184)

6,594.43

243.53

550.00

303.92

206.29

1,000.00

5,030.00

1,559.12

337.63

463.80

3,793.71

522.31

2,678.19

125.00

75.00

22

23

24

25

Harrington lndustrial Plastics

HERC Rentals lnc.

l-liner, füarge

JenninEs, Margaret LYnne

2" BallValve

Generator Rental (1 month)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

"Prepaid Page 2 of 5 Disbursements - Dated November 11,2021



Seq Pavable ïo For Amount

¿o

27

28

Jensen lnstrument Company

Kelly Services, lnc.

Kiosk Creative LLC

Marin County Tax Collector

Marin Landscape Materials

34 Marin County Ford

35 County of Marin

McGee, Barbara

McMaster-Carr Supply Co

Michael Baker lnternational

Replacement Backwash Flow Meter Transmitter
for STP

Organic Chemist Temp Labor (Lab) (51 hrs)

Prog Pymt#4 Drought Rules Postcard Mailer
($2,468), Prog Pymt#S: Novato Waterline
Design ($1,605), Prog Pymt#6: W.M. Waterline
Design ($1,605) & Prog Pymt#7: Website
Maintenance ($699) (Balance Remaining on

Contract $43,518)

Supplemental Possessory lnterest Tax Bill (25

Giacomini Rd) (7 I 1 120-7 I 1 121)

Sand Bags for Yard (50) (Due to Rain Storm),
Bark (4 yds) ($243) & Concrete (42 bags)
($3os¡

Service Parts ('12 F250-$101, Transit Cargo
Van-$76) & Repairs ('20 F250) ($4OS¡

Encroachment Permit (165 Caribe lsle Novato)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Pipe Fittinss (4) ($86) & Parts for Gate ($ZAo¡

Prog Pymt#12: Engineering Services Prepare
Additional lnundation Map & EAP for Stafford
Dam (Balance Remaining on Contract $2,096)

2,515.97

3,126.02

6,376.92

9,809.67

1,000.00

1,889.42

713.91

589.05

581.83

448.54

125.00

366.1 2

580.00

1,145.76

920.00

103,934.00

145.54

29 Lincoln Life Employer Serv Deferred Compensation PPE 10131121

30 Liss, Julia Refund of Deposit/New Development/WC
Restriction-W.M.

31 The Madera Owners Assoc Refund-Not Our Customer (2)

32

33

36

3B

37

39 Mutual of Omaha November Group Life lnsurance Premium

40 Nationwide Retirement Solution Deferred Compensation PPE 10131121

41 Noll & Tam Architects Prog Pymt#7: Provide NMWD Headquarters
Upgrade A/E Services (Balance Remaining on

Contract $529,182)

42 North Bay Gas Oxygen Hose ($33), Nitrogen & Breathing Air
($6S) & October Cylinder Rental ($45)

*Prepaid Page 3 of 5 Disbursements - Dated November 11,2021



Seq Pavable To For Amount

43

44

45

Novato Builders Supply

Office Depot

Pace Supply

46 Pape Machinery lnc.

47 Peterson Trucks

48 Pacific Gas & Electric Co

Pini Hardware

Pofsky, Jonathan

Quadient, lnc.

R & B Company

Recology Sonoma Marin

Sass, Karen

Scott Technology Group

Hardware Supplies & Concrete (2 yds) ($3AO¡

Miscellaneous Office Supplies

Magnet Valve Cover Lifter ($340), Hand Pump
($3to¡, Pipe Pañs (2) ($59), 2" lnserts for
Plastic Service (20) ($64), Fiberlyte Blank Bolt
Down Lids (2) ($238), Full Potl BallValve (2)

($14+¡ & Dual Bell Restrainer (2) ($140)

Service Parts ('09 John Deer Backhoe) ($eAZ¡,

Hydraulic Oilfor Equipment ($400¡ & Equipment
Pafts ($108)

Service Parts ('12 lnternational Dump Truck-
$115 &'02 5yd Dump Truck-$320)

Power Service Design for 999 Rush Creek
Place ($2,500), Power Service Connection,
Remaining Costs for Engineering Service &
lnstallation (420 Drakes View) ($650) & Refund
Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less Final

Bill ($644)

Miscellaneous Maintenance Tools & Supplies

Novato "Pool Cover" Rebate Program

November & December Postage Meter Rental

Corp Stops (5)

October Trash Removal

Novato "Cash for Grass Rebate" Program

Monthly Maintenance on Engineering Copier
(10121121 - 11120121) ($187) & Contract
Overage Charge

Pump Flange for Trumbull P/S

Asphalt Recycling (11 tons)

October Energy Delivered Under Solar Services
Agreement

Misc Office Supplies

Phenylarsine Oxide (Lab)

420.41

403.67

1,294.87

955.63

434.35

3,794.20

652.47

75.00

286.18

1,470.18

541.78

800.00

203.77

3,100.00

163.35

10,435.37

712.46

171 .10

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

5B

59

60

Seastrand Engineering LLC

Soiland Co., lnc.

SPG Solar Facility Xll, LLC

Staples Business Credit

USA BlueBook

*Prepaid Page 4 of 5 Disbursements - Dated November 11,2021



Seo Pavable To For Amount

61 Verizon Wireless

Verizon Wireless

VWR lnternational LLC

Cellular Charges: Data ($1,185), Airtime ($1at¡
& iPads for Asset Management ($200)

Oct SCADA & AMI Collectors ($6SO¡

Graduated Cylinders (2) ($73), Spinbar (10),

Wipes (2,800), Conductivity Standards ($96),

Cold Packs (10) ($6q) & Nitric Acid ($68) (Lab)

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

62

63

1,566.38

810.78

373.90
494,E15.52

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $494,81 5.52 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

0 )0Jl
ntroller Date

Manager
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Marin County drought tracker

$ltwin $nbrpenùrnf $utunul

The Marin Counfy drought tracker features water supply and conservation numbers

for the Marin Municipal Water District, the North Marin Water District and Sonoma

Water.

Marin Municipal Water District

Total reservoir supply as of Oct. 28: 51%; 40,567 acrefeet Average water supply for
Oct. 28: 66.7%o; 53,082 acrefeet Water conservation, Oct. 22 to 28:. 40Yo (8.5%

increase from prior week) MMWD's mandated conservation target: 40o/o

North Marin Water District

Stafford Lake water supply as of Oct. 28: 32o/o (acrefeet amount not provided)

Average water supply for Oct. 28 (since 1994): 43%o; (acre-feet amount not provided)

Note: NMWD fed about 1,100 acre-feet of Russian River water into Stafford Lake

from February to April. Novato water conservation as of Oct. 24**:31'o/o (7Yo inctease

from prior update) Novato mandatory conservation target: 20%o West Marin water

conservation as of Oct. 24***: 35o/o (lYo increase from prior update) West Marin
mandatory conservation target : 25o/o

Sonoma Water

(provides 25o/o of MMWD's supply and75o/o of NMWD's supply)

Lake Mendocino supply: 3lYo; 17,617 acre-feet Lake Sonoma supply: 48.9%;

119,891 acre-feet * conservation o/o is based on collective use compared to three-year

aveÍage water use for this time period for 2018-2020 ** Novato conservation Vo

compared to June 2020 water use * * * West Marin conservation o/o compared to water

use in June 2013, the last normal water year Sources: MMWD, NMWD, Sonoma

Water

Convrirt'ht'Iernrs ancl 'lenrrs ofI lse. Please review new arbi on lanouaf¡e here.
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Marin County drought tracker

$tl urin Snùepenùrnt $mtnnl

By Will Houston

whowston@marinii.com

The Marin County drought tracker features water supply and conservation numbers

for the Marin Municipal Water District, the North Marin Water District and Sonoma

Water.

Marin Municipal Water District

Total reservoir supply as of Nov.4:52.5Yo; 41,803acrefeet Average water supply for
Oct. 28: 66.25%;52,712-acre feet Water conservation, Oct. 29 to Nov. 4:45% (5%

increase from prior week) MMWD's mandated conseryation target:40o/o

North Marin Water District

Stafford Lake water supply as of Nov .5:37Yo ;7,575 acre-feet Average water supply

for Oct. 28 (since 1994):36% ; 1525 acre-feet Note: NMWD fed about 1,100 acre-

feet of Russian River water into Stafford Lake from February to April. Novato water

conservation as ofNov. 4** :49% (18%o tnctease from prior update) Novato
mandatory conservation target:20Yo West Marin water conservation as of Nov. 4i'*{€'

69% (34% increase from prior update) West Marin mandatory conservation target:

25%

Sonoma Water

(provides 25o/o oflvfvIWD's supply and75o/o ofNMWD's supply) Lake Mendocino

supply: 3l% ; I8,}57acre-feet Lake Sonoma supply: 49.1% ; l20,233acre-feet *

conservatîono/o is based on collective use compared to three-year average water use

for this time period for 2018-2020 ** Novato conservation Yo conpared to Jvne2020

water use t:ls{c West Marin conservationYo compared to water use in June 2013, the

last normal water year Sources: MMWD, NMWD, Sonoma Water

Copyright Terms and Terms of Use. Please review new arbitration language here.

Powered by TECNAVIA

Saturday, 111061202l Page .404



Recent rains bring drought relief
MARIN MUNICIPAL

Supplies to last through 2022, but new water plans continue

$lt urirt $nùrprtùrmt S*uunul

By Will Houston

cotn

The Marin Municipal Water District will likely avoid depleting its main reservoir

supplies next summer, according to new projections following last week's heavy rain.

But the county is not in the clear yet, with local supplies still well below normal for
this time of year, officials said this week.

As such, plans will proceed for emergency water supply projects such as a proposed

$90 million, 8-mile pipeline across the Richmond- San Rafael Bridge that would
pump in purchased Central Valley water.

"Absolutely the rain that we've received did relieve a bit of the pressure in terms of
the hard deadline," said Ben Horenstein, the water district's general manager. "On the

other hand, we need this rain to continue

and the weather as we all know has been very volatile.

"You can'tjust look at the start of the rain season. It unfortunately doesn't help you
predict how the rest of the season is going to be," he said. "Right now, it's staying the

course and continuing to monitor the weather, the rainfall, the benefits to storage and

making decisions accordingly as we see things play out."

For months, the district was projecting fhat it could deplete supplies in its seven local

reservoirs as soon as July or August in the event of a third consecutive dry winter. The

reservoirs make up 75% of the water supply for 191,000 people in central

and southern Marin. However, the last week of October dumped more than 18 inches

of rain on Marin, which caused reservoir supplies to increase from less than a third of
capacity to 52%o of capacity in a maffer of days.

1.



Additionally, the state recently approved the district's petition to reduce dam water

releases into Lagunitas Creek this winter meant to benefit endangered fish. This is
expected to retain about 2,000-acre feet of water, or about 5o/o of the existing reservoir

supplies, according to district water quality manager Lucy Croy.

As a result, the district projects reservoir supplies will last at least through the end of
2022 if residents continue conservation levels of at leasf 20o/o. Current projections

show the district would end 2022 at about 20,000 acre-feet of supply, or about 25%o of
capacity, in case of a dry winter that produces only 25o/o of average runoff into

reservoirs.

While this is good news compared to what was being projected before, reservoirs are

typically 66% full at this time of year.

"'W'e're about 10,000-acre feet less than we were last year," Larry Bragman, a district
board member, said at the board meeting on Tuesday. "So, for sure, the drought is not

over. To me, that number really says it all. We cannot be forgetting about what we've
just gone through because we're not done."

Efforts to plan for the proposed Richmond-San Rafael Bridge water pipeline are

ongoing.

The district already authorized spending more than $23 million last month to buy

necessary supplies and facilities to build the pipeline, which would extend from
Richmond into San Rafael via the underside of the top deck of the bridge. A
construction contract

of around $40 million for the pipeline could come before the district in January.

While the pressure has been lessened by the new supply forecasts, the pipeline still
faces many hurdles.

The project requires permits and approvals from a variety of federal, state and local

agencies including the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, the state Water Resourçes Control
Board, the Federal Highway Administration, the cities of Richmond and San Rafael,

Caltrans and the East Bay Municipal lJtility District.

Paul Sellier, operations director of the Marin Municipal Water District, told the board

that the district has begun "intense outreach efforts" in Richmond after residents and

Mayor Tom Butt raised concerns about the project's impacts to their community and

the district's lack of communication.

2



The district board also voted to authorize a permit application to the San Francisco

Bay Conservation and Development Commission that would allow the pipeline work
on the bridge to take place.

The district has yet to bring forward a proposal for water purchases, though staff said

there have been promising talks with the Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District and the

Yuba Water Agency.

Local environmental groups such as the North Coast Rivers Alliance and the
'Watershed Alliance of Marin have also challenged the water district's stance that the

pipeline would be exempt from state environmental review because it is an emergency

project.

.*t. 'lerrns and 'T'.'-'-- .-€ f l¡^ l]ì ^-l-: t^...",,^^,. L^-.:lon
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IJpgraded Sonoma wells could help Marin supply

COPING WITH DROUGHTS

Would be safeguard if state cuts Russian River imports

Btt urin $nùrprnùpnf $uunrul

By \ilill Houston

v, ho u s t o n(@ nt ar in Li . c o m

North Bay water suppliers are partnering to create what would essentially be a water
banking system to draw from during times of drought - and replenish when supplies

are ample.

The Sonoma'Water agency has already begun the work to bring three existing wells in
the Santa Rosa Plain online to supply another source of water to Marin and its other

customers in response to the drought. The agency has reactivated these wells for every

drought since 1977, but now plans to upgrade them for the first time to allow water to
be injected back into them.

"You oan store it for years even, however long until you need it," said Jay

Jasperse, Sonoma Water's chief engineer and groundwater management director.
"You can look at aquafers as below- ground reservoirs, but much bigger."

Sonoma Water is a significant water supplier to Marin, providing about 75% of North
Marin Water District's water supply for about 60,000 residents in the Novato arca a.td

about 25%o of the supply for the Marin Municipal Water District's 191,000 residents

in central and southern Marin.

The Sonoma agency has two main reservoirs at Lake Sonoma and Lake Mendocino
and imports Russian River water into Marin through an aqueduct running from
Petaluma into northern Novato. The agency also supplies water to the cities of Cotati,
Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sonoma, the town of Windsor and Valley of the

Moon Water Districts.

The project was inspired by two years of drought that have significantly strained

water supplies for the agencies.

1



Sonoma Water's shrinking supplies in its two reservoirs prompted the state to ban
about 1,800 water rights holders from diverting Russian River water and cutting water
imports to customers such as Marin by 20%. Those restrictions have been temporarily
lifted following the recent storms.

A stretch of Novato Boulevard winds along a section of Stafford Lake in Novato. The North Marin Water
District's only reservoir at the lake would have been nearly empty had it not pumped in Russian River
water this winter.

SHERRY LAVARS - MARIN INDBPENDENT JOURNAL

The shoreline of Nicasio Reservoir has receded beyond view from a sign along Nicasio Valley Road in
Nicasio on Sept.20.
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The North Marin Water District's only reservoir at Stafford Lake in Novato would
have beerr nearly empty had it not pumped in Russian River water this winter. Marin
Municipal Water District also faced depleting its main reservoir supplies by next
summer until an atmospheric river in late October helped to bolster supplies.

Facing these challenges, the agencies decicled earlier this year to expedite studies and

projects to make local water supplies more resilient. The groundwater banking at the
three Santa Rosa wells was among them.

"This time around not only are the weils being rehabilitated, they're also being
engineered to provide for aquifer storage and recov?Íy," North Marin Water District
General Manager Drew Mclnlyre said. "This will be the first time that the design that
gets implemented will allow water when there are natural flows in the Russian River
to be pumped back into the aquifer."

The upgrades could be completed within the next two years.

All three wells will be able to produce about 6 million gallons per day, which equates

to about l0%o of the capacity on the Russian River during the winter, according to
Sonoma Water's water resources manager Don Seymour. The first completed well can
produce about 1.5 million gallons per day.

For Marin, these groundwater supplies won't mean it will be able to draw more
Sonoma water than it is contractually allowed to. Rather, the benefit will be allowing
Marin water districts to still obtain water from Sonoma Water even if the state cuts or
curtails Russian River imports in future droughts similar to what happened this year.

"This would be a separate source so it's adding to our portfolio of water supplies,"
Jasperse said.

The three wells have not been used since the last drought in 2016. ln the interim years,
new state regulations require Sonoma Water io upgrade the wells' chlorination
treatment systems. 'Ihese upgrades have been completed on the smallest of the three
wells, which was reactivated in mid-October, Jasperse said. Sonoma 'Water plans to
upgrade the other two wells in the coming year so that more water can be produced.
Once completed, the agency plans to begin upgrading all three wells with equipment,
allowing them to store Russian River water when supplies are flush. Completing these

upgrades could take up to two years, according to Jasperse.

Refilling the wells will require an injection system that Jasperse said is used in other
aquifers throughout the state and has previously been tested in Sonoma.
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Ihe Santa Rosa Plain's aquifer has several layers, Jasperse said. The shallowest layer
is able to store water but doesn't produce as much supply as the deeper layer that is
separated from it by a layer of clay. Once completed, the injection system would
allow the agency to pump in Russian River water to this deepest layer through pipes
down into a distribution system and into the well to create a figurative "bubble" of
supply in the aquifer, Jasperse said.

Rehabilitating the first well cost about $1.1 million and was paid for by Sonoma
Counly and the Sonoma Water agency. This did not include the groundwater recharge
upgrades.

For the other two wells and the groundwater injection upgrades, Sonoma Water is
seeking ürore than $2 million in grants fi'om the state's recently created $200 million
fund for emergency drought projects, Jasperse said. Applications for the first rounds
of funds are due Nov. 19. The various water contractors, including the two Marin
districts, will pay for any remaining costs not covered by the grant.

Jasperse said more designworl< needs to be completedbefore atotal cost estimate can
be provided.

Sonoma Water is aiso working with MMWD on a nearer-term effort to import more
Russian River water into Marin during the wetter winter and spring months when
flows are naturally higher.

The idea is to allow the Marin district to pump this imported water directly into its
system between October and May, which would reduce the demand on its seven
reservoirs in the Mount Tamalpais watershed. This extra water would not come from
Sonoma Water's reservoir releases, but from excess flows naturally occurring from
rainfall runoff that would normally just flow into the ooean.

MMWD Operations Director Paul Sellier said this agreement could allow it to obtain
another 6,000-acre feet of water above the 5,300 acre-feet of water it norrnally takes.

"It's not a drought buster for us, it's just that we've got to work to really maximize
every source of water that we can," Sellier toid the MMWD Board of Directors at its
Tuesday meeting.

But there's a snag. The Marin Municipal Water District is contractually able to buy a

maximum of 14,300 acre-feet of Russian River water each year, but has historically
never been able to draw that amount because of constraints in the North Bay
Aqueduct. Currently, the district can only draw in 9,000-acre feet, Sellier said.
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The 9-mi1e aqueduct carries treated Russian River water to the North Marin Water
District, which then wheels the water to the Marin Municipal Water District.

Prior to 2014, the aqueduct required the aid of the l(astania Pump Station near
Petaluma in order to bring the water into Marin. But construction work on the
I{ighway 101 widening project in northern Marin and Sonoma, known as the Marin-
Sonoma Narrows project, required about 5 miles of the aqueduct to be relocated. The
North Marin Water District saw this as an opportunity to upgrade and expand the
capacity of this waterway. The result in 2014 was an aqueduct that used gravity flow
to transport the water into Marin rather Ihan a pumping station and increased the pipe
diameter from 30 to 42 inches, Mclntyre said.

These upgrades nullified the need for the Kastania Purnp Station, or so it seemed.

However, when the North Marin Water District needed to draw rìore Russian River
water, such as when it partially refilled Stafforcl Lake this winter, it limited how much
water MMWD was able to take.

In order to obtain the extra winter flows from Sonoma Water, the MMWD now plans
to restore the Kastania Pump Station at aprice of about $1.7 million.

"Now that we find ourselves in this drought condition we realize that we need to get
I(astania back in service in order to bring additional water down to meet our
contractual allotments," district Engineering Director Crystal Yezman told the board.

The pump station was built in I97l and was run by the district until 1999 when it was
sold to Sonoma Water for $1. Sonoma Water operated the station until the aqueduct
upgrades were completed.

Last week, the MMWD board voted unanimousiy to take bacl< ownership of the pump
station and repurchase the station for $1. The board also authorized its staff to enter
into an emergency construction contract to begin the restoration work. Construction is
estimated to begin later this month and be cornpleted by the end of January 2022,
according to staff.

"There is a significant drought emergency that exists and it really requires immediate
rehabilitation of this facility," district construction maîager Mark Kasraie told the
board.
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The North Marin Water District's only reservoir at Stafford Lake in Novato would have been nearly
empty had it not pumped in Russian River water this winter.
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Appeal fails in battle on well
I\ORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Coast regulators back plan to ease salt influx

þtt rtrin $nùryenùrnf $*mnrtl

By \ilill Houston

vvkowstopt CÛÍ7'I

State regulators have rejected a challenge against a West Marin project meant to
alleviate worsening saltwater contamination in water wells.

The North Marin Water District is proposing a new well about a mile east of Point
Reyes Station. It says the project would provide a new source of water unaffected by
saltwater intrusion.

Two of the district's three wells that serve about 1,800 coastal residents have long

been subject to regular saltwater contamination because of their lower elevation near

Tomales Bay as well as factors such as drought, sea-level rise and dam removal. The

residents are in Point Reyes Station, Olema, Paradise Ranch Estates and lnverness

Park.

But two years of drought have caused saltwater concentrations in the water to reach

levels that district officials say are no longer healthy to drink for ratepayers on salt-

restricted diets. In response, the district took the unprecedented action of setting up an

emergency water refilling station in Point Reyes Station last month for the residents.

The district's third well at the Gallagher Ranch is further inland and is unaffected by
this contamination, but does not produce the full amount of water as originally
planned. In response, the district planned to build a second well at the ranch this year

to add a redundant source of salt-free water and produce the 300 gallon-per minute

flow that it has been seeking.

An Inverness environmental organization, Save Our Seashore, challenged the

county's approval of the project earlier this year. The group's founder, Gordon

Bennett, said the district had not conducted adequate studies on the impacts that a
second well would have on the water flows of the nearby Lagunitas Creek as well as

the endangered and threatened fish species such as coho salmon and steelhead trout.
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The Marin County Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors both rejected

appeals, prompting Bennett to take the issue to the California Coastal Commission on

Oct. 15.

"I'm not opposed to the second Gallagher well that would eliminate the salt problem

if its impacts on endangered and threatened fish on the creek are studied and properly

mitigated," Bennett told the commission. "But North Marin, again, did neither. So,

this isn't about salt in the water, it's about fish in the water."

Bennett could not be reached for comment

Water district staffers, including Drew Mclntyre, the general manager, said the project

will be monitored by multiple agencies, including the California Department of Fish

and Wildlife and State Water Resources Control Board, for any potential impacts. The

district also has the ability to call on the Marin Municipal Water District to release

from its Kent Lake reservoir into Lagunitas Creek should water levels dip below state-

mandated levels.

These measures, Mclntyre told the commission, would "ensure no harm to the stream

habitat and associated species."

Water district offìcials have said the well project could have been completed this

summer and would have prevented the need for an emergency water tank to be set up

in Point Reyes Station last month. Bennett has said that the district should have taken

the proper steps and studies before pursuing the project.

"If North Marin were truly concerned about salt, they could have installed, decades

ago, freshwater tanks and equipment to monitor salt levels continuously instead of
once a week and then guessing," Bennett told the commission'

The commission and its staff concurred with the district and voted unanimously to

deny Bennett's appeal.

"Everybody wants the creek to be protected," commission district director Dan Carl

told the panel last month. "The county relied on studies that showed that the project

would protect the creek, the county required that the creek be protected including

through water board and fish and wildlife signoffs."

Marin Counfy Supervisor Katie Rice, a member of the coast commission, said the

board approved the project beoause it "had confidence in the sttucture of it towards

doing that fishery protection and environmental protection."
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The second Gallagher well project is not expected to begin construction until early

2022 at the earliest, according to Mclntyre.

Bennett has previously stated that he planned to appeal the project to the State Water

Resources Control Board should the California Coastal Commission reject his

challenge. A spokesman for the board said staff were unaware of any appeal being

fÏled as of Friday afternoon.
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Storms hike water supply, but conservation still urged

MAII.IN COUNTY

Officials rernain cautious as reservoir levels improve

pllurtn pnùupmùrnf Suurnul

By \ilill Houston

yt h o u s I o n @,m ct r i n ii . c: o m

Marin County was the bull's-eye of the latest atmospheric river that arrived this weelc, blinging
more rain to Mount Tamalpais than anywhere in the llay Area and further easing conoel'ns about

the county' s drought-strained water supplies.

'fhe storm on Monday and -fuesday followed a signif,rcantly stronger atmospheric river last

month that brought more Octobel rainfàll to some parts of Mariu than in more than 130 yeals.

The Oct. 24 storm durnped 26 inches of rain on Mt. T'amalpais, soaking soils parched after two
years of drought. This allowed much of the water from the nearly 5 inches of lain that fell on the
mountain this week to flow into local reservoirs located in the watershed below.

"T'hey definitely got the bulk of the rainfall in the Bay Area," said National Weather Service
meteorologist Jeff Lorber.

Storage levels in the Marin Municipal 'Water District's seven reservoirs, which provide water for
about two-thirds of county residents, increased fiom a low of 32o/o of capacity on Oct. 20 to
nearly 55Yo as of the end of Tuesday, the tnost recent data available.

Ilris week's storm increased capacity from about 53o/oto 55Yo,6ut storage levels are expectedto
continue increasing in the coming clays as more runoff makes its way into the reservoirs.

'Ilrat said, the reservoirs are typically about 66% full at this time of'year.

"A oouple of oul much smaller reservoils ale full and are spilling but oul larger reselvoirs are

still not full so we're defìnitely not baclc up to 1ull capacity yet," Marin Municipal Water District
spokeswoman Emma Detwiler said.

Local water officials said these past two storms were not enough to make up for: two consecutive
years of drought and that there is no guarantee the region will see any more significant rainfall
this winter.
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"If temperatures warm up and people let their guard down and turn irrigation systems back on
and abandon those good conservation habits, we can really find ourselves back to much-below-
average storage pretty quickly," Detwiler said. But the outlook on local water supplies has

improved significantly compared to just three weeks ago.

Sightseers get a view of the Golden Gate Bridge in the Marin Headlands on Tuesday. This week's storm increased
reservoir capacity to 55Yo.
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Scottie Barksdale, 12, of Novato hops away after exploring under Buck Gulch Falls in Novato on Thursday
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Tlre district recoldecl about 22 inches of rain at its I-ake Lagunitas gauge in the past two weeks,
wlrich is about 2 inches more than it recorded in the entire w inter of 2020-202I.

Iìor most of this year, the district projected it could cleplete its reservoirs, which make up about
l5o/o of its supply, as soon as July if the region experienced a similarly dry w inter as last year.

[,ast winter was the district's second driest in 143 years of rainfall records.

lJpdated forecasts leleased this rnonth now show supplies are expected to last through all of
2022, thougli at just 25o/o of capacity by the end of the year, if residents continue conserving.

The district is continuing to plan for emergency backup water supplies including a potential 8-

mile, $100 million pipeline across the Richmond-San Rafael llridge that would pump in water
purchased fiom the Sacramento Valley.

'fhe smaller North Marin Water District also saw a sr-rpply boost at its Stafford Lake reservoir
just outside of Novato. Just under an inoh of rain fell at the lake, restoring about 1.5% of its
storage capacity and bringing up total storage to 3lYo. The average storage for this time of year is
35o/o, according to Drew Mclntyre, the clistrict general lnanager.

IIowever, the reservoir likely would have been near empty at this time had the district not
pumped irnported Russian Rivel water into the lake last w inter.

Stafford Lake makes up about 25Yo of the water supply that serves more than 60,000 residents in
the greater Novato area. It is typically tapped during the summer months when irligation causes

water demand to double.

The bulk of the district's supply comes fi'om Russian River water imports from the Sonoma
Water agency. Sonorna Water provides l5Yo of the North Marin Water l)istrict's supply and25o/o

of the Marin Municipal Water District's supply.

Sonoma Water's two main reservoirs, Lakc Sonoma and the srnaller Lake Mendocino, have had

some improvements from the two rccent storms. As a result, the state temporarily lifted
curtailments on water imports and divet'sions fi'om earlier this year, including a 20Yo cut to
imports into Marin.

Tlre supply at Lake Sonoma jncreased fiom about 43%o of capacity in Octobel to nearly 50o/o. and
Lalçe Mendocino's supply increased from about 22Yo of capacity to nearly 360/o.

This latest storm might be the last rain the llay A rea gets fol some time. Long range weather
forecasts show that much of the state will remain dry fol most of next weelç and possibly into the
end of the month, though this might change.

Also, temperatures are expected to be "well above normal" fi'om lrriday through Sunday,
possibly reaching 6 to 12 degrees higher than normal, according to the National Weather Selvice.

3



The highel temperatures will wolk to dry out the soils. llhe combination of heat ancl a prolonged
period of dly weathel would require more rain to fàll befole ruuoff is generated.

"We have seen that those impacts do make a difference in terms of how much water ends up in
the reservoirs," Detwiler said.

The U.S. Drought Monitor run by the fecleral government ancl llniversity of Nebraska-Lincoln
showed Marin County and about half of the state being in an "exttente" dtought as of Thursday,
which is the second- highest category for drought intensity.
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Web & Social Media Report
October 2021



Website Statistics

Feb
2021

Mar
2021

Apr
2021

May
2021

Jun
2021

Jul
2021

Aug
2021

Sep
2021

Oct
2021

2020/ 21
Visitors

4,677 5,475 6,707 9,676 12,676 11,538 14,485 8,046 9,220



Social Media Followers

Feb-2021 Mar-2021 Apr-2021 May-2021 Jun-2021 Jul-2021 Aug-2021 Sep-2021 Oct-2021

              

Facebook 
 Followers

1,181 1,185 1,183 1,181 1,178 1,181 1,191 1,291 1,313 

          

Twitter                
Followers

24 29 28 35 42 44 52 57 61

Instagram 
Followers

457 469 482 497 516 536 549 573 593



NMWD Most Visited Pages

Pages Unique Pageviews % of Total

Home 5,179

Watersmart 2,228

Online Billing 1,954

Weather & Production Statistics 1,432

Novato water 380

Save water outdoors 253

Save water indoors 234

Contact 220

Drought is here 202

Recycled Water 166

https://nmwd.com/
https://nmwd.com/account/watersmart/
https://nmwd.com/account/online-billing/
https://nmwd.com/your-water/stats/
https://nmwd.com/your-water/novato-water/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/outdoors/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/indoors/
https://nmwd.com/contact/
https://nmwd.com/save-water/drought/
https://nmwd.com/your-water/recycled-water/


October News



October News



October News



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

171 people reached | 25 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

5,822 people reached | 272 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

147 people reached |  17 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

3 people reached |  7 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

 122 people reached |  64 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

2 people reached |  2 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

 128 people reached |  11 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

 0 people reached |  2 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

116 people reached |  7 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

 0 people reached |  4 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

 91 people reached |  6 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

 115 people reached |  18 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

 0 people reached |  0 engagements

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

 81 people reached |  9 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Facebook

Engagements include likes, reactions, clicks and comments

 67 people reached |  2 engagements



October Social Media Highlights | Twitter



October Social Media Highlights | Twitter



October Social Media Highlights | Twitter



October Social Media Highlights | Twitter
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October Social Media Highlights | Twitter



October Social Media Highlights | Twitter



October Social Media Highlights | Twitter



October Social Media Highlights | Instagram

5 likes 5 likes



October Social Media Highlights | Instagram

23 likes 14 likes



October Social Media Highlights | Instagram

7 likes 10 likes



October Social Media Highlights | Instagram

9 likes 9 likes



October Social Media Highlights | Instagram

6 likes 8 likes



October Social Media Highlights | Instagram

4 likes



Fall 2021 Waterline

Novato Issue 47 West Marin Issue 20



Homepage Image Update



What’s Next?

32

● Kiosk to design ‘Did you know?’ series of print ads for NMWD to run in the Marin IJ, 
with corresponding social media posts

● Kiosk to launch NMWD Facebook “Likes” Campaign on Nov. 1st.
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